
 

Overview & Scrutiny scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Overview & Scrutiny Commission 

Date: 26 January 2010 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: 
Mitchell (Chairman), Alford, Bennett, Elgood, 
Meadows, Morgan, Older, Peltzer Dunn, 
Pidgeon (Deputy Chairman), Randall and 
Wakefield-Jarrett 

Contact: Tom Hook 
Head of Overview & Scrutiny 
29-1110 
tom.hook@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

65. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 1 - 2 

 

66. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 15 DECEMBER 
2009 

3 - 8 

 

67. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

68. PUBLIC QUESTIONS/LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS/NOTICES OF 
MOTION REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 

 

 

69. GOOD GOVERNANCE REPORT - REPORT OF THE AUDIT 
COMMISSION 

 Report of the Director of Strategy and Governance 

9 - 48 

 Contact Officer: Abraham Ghebre-
Ghiorghis 

Tel: 291500  

 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

70. RECOMMENDATIONS ON BUDGET PROPOSALS FROM O&SCS TO 
REPORT TO 11 FEB CABINET 

 Report to follow 

 

 Contact Officer: Tom Hook Tel: 29-1110  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

71. BRIGHTON & HOVE THIRD SECTOR RECOVERY PLAN 

 Report of the Director of Strategy and Governance 

49 - 62 

 Contact Officer: John Routledge Tel: 29-1112  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

72. COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT 

 Report of the Director of Strategy and Governance 

63 - 96 

 Contact Officer: Tom Hook Tel: 29-1110  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

73. MANAGING HEALTH INEQUALITIES;  REFERRAL FROM AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

 Report of the Director of Strategy and Governance 

97 - 134 

 Contact Officer: Giles Rossington Tel: 01273 291038  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

74. SCRUTINY PANELS - UPDATE 

 Report of the Director of Strategy and Governance 

135 - 
138 

 Contact Officer: Tom Hook Tel: 29-1110  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

75. OSC WORK PLAN 

 Report of the Director of Strategy and Governance 

139 - 
148 

 Contact Officer: Tom Hook Tel: 29-1110  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

76. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO CABINET MEMBER, CABINET OR FULL 
COUNCIL 

 To note that item 69, Scrutiny of Budget Proposals to be report to 11 
February 2010 Cabinet 

 

 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website. At 
the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
filmed. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 
1988. Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
published policy (Guidance for Employees’ on the BHCC website). 
 
Therefore by entering the meeting room and using the seats around the meeting tables 
you are deemed to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings for the purpose of web casting and/or Member training. If members 
of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the public gallery 
area. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Head of Scrutiny or the 
designated Scrutiny Support Officer listed on the agenda. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Mary van Beinum, 
Overview & Scrutiny Support Officer, (29-1062, email mary.vanbeinum@brighton-



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

hove.gov.uk) or email scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Date of Publication - Monday, 18 January 2010 

 

 

 



Agenda Item 65  

 

A. Declaration of Substitutes 

 
Where a Member of the Commission is unable to attend a meeting for 
whatever reason, a substitute Member (who is not a Cabinet Member) may 
attend and speak and vote in their place for that meeting. Substitutes are not 
allowed on Scrutiny Select Committees or Scrutiny Panels. 
 
The substitute Member shall be a Member of the Council drawn from the 
same political group as the Member who is unable to attend the meeting, and 
must not already be a Member of the Commission. The substitute Member 
must declare themselves as a substitute, and be minuted as such, at the 
beginning of the meeting or as soon as they arrive.  

B. Declarations of Interest 

  
(1)  To seek declarations of any personal or personal & prejudicial interests 

under Part 2 of the Code of Conduct for Members in relation to matters 
on the Agenda.  Members who do declare such interests are required to 
clearly describe the nature of the interest.   

   
(2)    A Member of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission, an Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee or a Select Committee has a prejudicial interest in 
any business at meeting of that Committee where –  

 
(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or 
not) or action taken by the Executive or another of the Council’s 
committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees; 
and 
 
(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken the Member 
was  
 

 (i) a Member of the Executive or that committee, sub-committee, joint 
committee or joint sub-committee and  

 (ii) was present when the decision was made or action taken. 
 
(3)      If the interest is a prejudicial interest, the Code requires the Member 

concerned:-  
(a) to leave the room or chamber where the meeting takes place while 
the item in respect of which the declaration is made is under 
consideration. [There are three exceptions to this rule which are set out 
at paragraph (4) below]. 
(b) not to exercise executive functions in relation to that business and  
(c) not to seek improperly to influence a decision about that business. 

 
(4)    The circumstances in which a Member who has declared a prejudicial 

interest is permitted to remain while the item in respect of which the 
interest has been declared is under consideration are:-

1



 

 

 
 

(a) for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the item, provided that the public are also 
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a 
statutory right or otherwise, BUT the Member must leave immediately 
after he/she has made the representations, answered the questions, or 
given the evidence, 
 
(b) if the Member has obtained a dispensation from the Standards 
Committee, or 
 
(c) if the Member is the Leader or a Cabinet Member and has been 
required to attend before an Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Sub-
Committee to answer questions. 

C. Declaration of party whip 

 
To seek declarations of the existence and nature of any party whip in relation 
to any matter on the Agenda as set out at paragraph 8 of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Ways of Working. 

D. Exclusion of press and public 

 
To consider whether, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or 
the nature of the proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from 
the meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 
 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its heading the 
category under which the information disclosed in the report is confidential 
and therefore not available to the public. 
 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 
 

2



AGENDA ITEM 66 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 

4.00PM 15 DECEMBER 2009 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Mitchell (Chairman); Bennett, Elgood, Meadows, Older, Pidgeon 
(Deputy Chairman), Randall, Janio and Taylor 
 
Also Present: Councillors Fallon-Khan and Young 

 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
 

53. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
53  Declarations of Substitutes 
 
Councillor Meadows was substituting as voting member for Councillor Morgan. Councillor 
Janio was substituting for Councillor Peltzer Dunn. Councillor Taylor was acting as substitute 
for Councillor Wakefield-Jarrett.  
 
Councillors Alford and Morgan gave their apologies 
 
53b Declarations of Interests 
 
There were none. 
 
53c Declaration of Party Whip 
 
There were none. 
 
53d Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was considered 
whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of the business to be 
transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if members of 
the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in section 100I (1) of the said Act. 
 
RESOLVED: That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 
 
 

3



 

 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 15 DECEMBER 
2009 

54. MINUTES OF THE SCHEDULED MEETING HELD ON 20 OCTOBER 2009 AND 
CALL-IN MEETING HELD ON 27 NOVEMBER 2009 

 
54. RESOLVED that the minutes of the scheduled meeting held on 20 October and the call-in 
meeting held on 27 November both be approved and signed by the Chairman. 
 
55. PUBLIC QUESTIONS/LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS/NOTICES OF MOTION 

REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 
 
55. There were none. 
 
56. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
56. There were none. 
 
57. TARGETED BUDGET MANAGEMENT (MONTH 6) 2009 - 2010 
 
57.1 The Director, Finance and Resources introduced the Targeted Budget Management 
(Month 6) 2009 – 2010 report pointing out the improvement in forecast outturn on revenue and 
capital position as of the end of September compared with Month 4. 
 
57.2 OSC needed to be assured that key issues within the TBM report are adequately reflected 
in the Directorate budget strategies where appropriate. 
 
57.3 The Director answered specific questions on overspends in housing strategy and CYPT, 
area social work teams, Collection Fund performance, capital spend and concessionary bus 
fares. 
 
57.4 RESOLVED: That OSC note the report to 12 November Cabinet and extract from the 
draft minutes. 
 
58. SCRUTINY OF DIRECTORATE BUDGET STRATEGIES 
 
58.1 The Chairman welcomed Cabinet Members Councillors Young and Fallon-Khan to the 
meeting. Councillor Young introduced this item, stating that scrutiny comments would be 
considered carefully, however Departments had little flexibility in achieving a balanced budget. 
 
58.2 Councillor Fallon-Khan outlined the service pressures for the Finance and Resources 
Directorate. Reduced income such as from business rents and commercial rates was largely 
due to the effects of the recession. 
 
58.3 Responding to questions the Director, Finance and Resources told the meeting that it 
would take time and money to deliver significant savings. More effective procurement, 
rationalised office accommodation and better use of ICT were being considered.  A 
consultancy would be looking to achieve significant future savings under Value for Money 
(Phase 2) and initiate project management across the Council. This would be progressed by an 
in-house implementation team. 
 
58.4 Replying to queries she explained the resources available to cover risks as set out in 
Table 4 of the report, pointing out that £1 million is proposed to be set aside for Looked After 

4



 

 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 15 DECEMBER 
2009 

Children. Additional proposals for CYPT savings will be presented at the 5 January CYPOSC 
budget meeting. 
 
58.5 The Director explained the Equalities Impact Assessment process that had been used 
for the budget proposals. Information on this could be presented before the final budget report 
to Council is produced.  
 
58.6  Using an external firm to review single person Council Tax discounts was debated at 
length and questions on the approach to the process were answered in detail.  The report on 
Council Tax Collection Policy appeared as Item 60 later on this agenda. 
 
58.7 Asked about the anticipated borrowing for operational vehicles the Director said that this 
would allow for savings and reduction in the carbon footprint via a more central procurement 
policy. The Director was asked that this be reported to the Sustainability Partnership. 
 
58.8 Information as requested on payments made to consultancies would be made available. 
 
58.9 The Commission asked for more information on budget pressures from staff sickness 
and absence. 
 
58.10 Councillor Fallon-Khan highlighted the budget proposals for Strategy and Governance 
Department. He expressed his congratulations to the officers including the legal team who 
were embracing new ways of working and working hard to achieve the best Value for Money 
within a tight budget at a time when income was falling. 
 
59.11 The Director, Strategy and Governance answered questions on Members Allowances 
(inflationary increase being proposed) and the deletion of two Assistant Director posts in the 
Department to give flatter management structures (Head of Policy and Head of Improvement & 
Organisational Development).  A reduction of one post in the media team was proposed. 
 
58.12 He said Performance would be reshaped, and Information and Analysis and Policy 
brought together.  
 
58.13 Savings were planned by amalgamating some software licences and other supplies and 
services. 
 
58.14 There was concern about the proposed move of the Brighton History Centre. Councillor 
Randall as Chair of Culture Tourism and Enterprise O&S Committee was asked to follow this 
up. 
 
58.15 RESOLVED 
 
a) That the following requests/issues be followed up: 
 

o Early information on CYPT savings proposals before presentation at CYOPSC 5 
January 2010 meeting  

o Further information on how the budget proposals were Equality Impact Assessed  
o A report on operational vehicles to be presented to the Sustainability Partnership  
o Information on payments to consultancies and budget pressures brought about by staff 

sickness are provided to OSC members  

5



 

 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 15 DECEMBER 
2009 

o CTEOSC to follow up issues raised on the Brighton History Centre  
 
b) That 26 January 2010 OSC receive comments from the O&S Committees relevant to their 
remits to be incorporated into a single scrutiny response to the budget. 
 
 
59. VACANCY MANAGEMENT 
 
59.1 The Director of Finance and Resources introduced the report on Vacancy Management, 
set out the key determinants for holding posts and confirmed that the list comprised posts 
currently being held and not necessarily to be deleted.  
 
59.2 The Commission asked that this information be included annually as part of the budget 
proposals papers.  
 
59.3 The Commission asked questions regarding the potential implications of holding posts in 
areas such as libraries, food safety, adult social care and housing and requested that the O&S 
committees discuss the matter in debating the budget proposals. 
 
59.4 RESOLVED  
 
a) OSC requests that this information be included annually as part of the scrutiny of budget 
proposals. 
 
b) That the overview and scrutiny committees be recommended to question staff vacancies as 
part of the scrutiny of the budget proposals. 
 
60. COUNCIL TAX COLLECTION POLICY 
 
60.1     The Head of Scrutiny handed around an updated version of the front page of the report.  
 
60.2     The Cabinet Member for Central Services was pleased that this service area had been 
called in for Overview. A lot of work had gone on to improve the service to customers, however 
the extent of the work was not well known. He was glad of the opportunity to thank the officers 
in the award-winning Revenues and Benefits section for the improvements that had been 
made. 
 
60.3     If residents started to get into arrears they were encouraged to contact the council at an 
early stage to try to make sustainable payment arrangements and avoid accumulating debt. 
 
60.4     The Head of Revenue and Benefits and Assistant Director, Customer Services 
introduced the report and explained in answers to questions that legislation did not allow for all 
residents to pay in 12-monthly instalments. However this could be arranged under some 
circumstances; for example if people contacted the service to say they were having difficulties. 
 
60.5     There are close working links between Revenues and Benefits, Adult Social Care, 
Housing and Pension Service and Electoral Services.  
 

6



 

 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 15 DECEMBER 
2009 

60.6 A team of officers are available to help in person, the small minority of people who do 
arrive at court, as the result of having received a summons, to set up sustainable repayment 
arrangements.  
 
60.7 Members praised the officers for a thorough and interesting report. 
 
60.8 RESOLVED: that the report be noted. 
 
 
61. SINGLE EQUALITY SCHEME 
 
61.1 The Chairman welcomed the report on the first draft Single Equality Scheme as an 
example of pre-decision scrutiny.  
 
61.2 The Head of Equalities and Inclusion described the consultation that had taken place so 
far and presented the new Action Plan that covered the next two years. 
 
61.3 Answering questions the Head of Equalities and Inclusion said that the staff bus had 
been raised at a scoping meeting of the staff disabilities scrutiny panel. She would investigate 
disabled access and the design of major projects. 
 
61.4  At report Recommendation 2 (b) Members requested  6-monthly rather than annual 
monitoring. 
 
61.5 In order to give fuller consideration to the draft scheme an informal Commission meeting 
was suggested and this was agreed. 
 
61.6 RESOLVED a) That an additional OSC meeting be held in early January to review the 
draft Single Equality Scheme and provide feedback to inform the final document. 
 
b) that members request a for 6-monthly monitoring report (not an annual report) as set out in 
paragraph 5 of this report. 
 
62. COUNCIL'S FORWARD PLAN 
 
62.1 The Council’s Forward Plan was noted. 
 
63. OSC WORK PROGRAMME 
 
63.1 The Commission’s work plan was noted. 
 
64. ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO CABINET MEMBER MEETING, CABINET OR FULL 

COUNCIL 
 
64.1 There were none. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 6.10pm 

 
Signed Chair 

7



 

 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 15 DECEMBER 
2009 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this day of  

 

8



OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

Agenda Item 69 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

  

Subject: Good Governance Review – Report of the Audit 
Commission 

Date of Meeting: 15 December 2009  Audit Committee 

12 January 2010  Governance Committee  

26 January 2010               Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission 

Report of: Director of Strategy & Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Abraham Ghebre-Ghiorghis Tel: 29-1500 

 E-mail: abraham.ghebre-ghiorghis@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. PURPOSE AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the findings of the Audit Commission’s 

review of Good Governance in Brighton & Hove and proposed actions in 
response to the recommendations. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

  
2.1 That Members note the report of the Audit Commission (Appendix 1 to this 

report).  
 
2.2 That the proposed action in response to the recommendations of the 

Commission as set out in the action plan listed as Appendix 1 to the 
Commission’s report be noted.  

 
3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
3.1 The Audit Commission undertook a review of governance in Brighton & Hove in 

between October 2008 and March 2009. The review was based on the Good 
Governance Standards for Public Services developed by the Independent 
Commission on Good Governance in Public Service. The findings of the review 
together with the action points are attached. 

 
3.2 The overall conclusion of the report is positive. In particular, it states that: 
 

• Governance arrangements in Brighton & Hove are generally sound and 
there is good formal governance arrangement in place. The constitutional 
arrangements adopted by the Council are sound. 

 

• Community leadership and focus is strong. Partnership working is strong 
and the Council is effective at engaging its stakeholders. 

9



 

• The Council contributes to the improvement of its area and quality of life 
for residents and visitors as a result of the effectiveness of its service and 
strategic arrangements in meeting clearly defined priorities. 

 

• Partnership working is strong and the Council is effective at consulting and 
engaging with its stakeholders. The council has strong and effective 
relationships with partners. 

 

• The approach to Member Development is effective and the conduct of 
elected councillors is good. There is a good training programme for 
Councillors and an excellent induction programme for new Councillors is 
in place. 

 

• There is clear expectation among Councillors of all parties that they 
conduct themselves in an appropriate manner. 

 

• The role of Executive Councillors are becoming clear and more confident 
about their new roles. 

 

• The Council has a clear focus on meeting the needs and improving 
services for its diverse communities. 

 

• The Council’s approach to community consultation is good, with the 
Council having a good track record of involving the community in local 
policy formulation and programming and has developed effective 
networking to consult and involve the people they serve. 

 
3.3 The findings of the report confirm that, judged against the criteria in the Good 

Governance Standards for Public Services, the Council is, overall, performing 
well. However, the report also identifies areas for improvement and, as part of 
this, makes references to some “perceptions” about the Member-Officer working 
relations and the respective roles and responsibilities of Members and Officers. It 
is important to see these apparent perceptions in their proper context. 

 
3.4 The survey and much of the evidence was gathered within 5 months of the new 

constitution coming into being. In practice, due to the summer recess, by the time 
the review was conducted, we would only have had at most 3-4 months 
experience of the new constitution. It was therefore not surprising that there was 
a degree of unfamiliarity with how the different decision-making structures 
operate in practice. Cabinet Members are expected to operate differently from 
the Chairs of Committees whose main statutory role was to settle the agenda 
and Chair the Committee meeting with no decision-making powers. Some of the 
Cabinet Members were also new to local government, let alone executive roles. 
The combination of these factors, including the fact that the administration was 
still relatively new, meant that both Members and Officers had to go through an 
adjustment phase before they settle on ways of working they feel comfortable 
with. Not surprisingly, as has happened with all Local Authorities that moved to 
an executive system, there were bound to be uncertainties on how the respective 
roles and responsibilities of Members and Officers should be exercised during 

10



the early stages of implementing the new system. With the passage of time 
Cabinet Members have become clearer and more confident about their roles and 
both Members and Officers have, by now, adjusted and realigned their respective 
roles and ways of working to reflect the new arrangements. Much of the picture 
presented in the report is therefore more representative of the historical position 
than the current state of affairs. 

 
3.5 The review looked at governance under 6 headings: 

 

• Community Focus 

• Operating effectively in a clearly defined role 

• Promoting and demonstrating values of good governance through 
behaviour. 

• Taking proper decisions and managing risks 

• Developing capacity and capability of Councillors 

• Partnership working and engagement with stakeholders 
 

3.6 Community Focus 
 
3.6.1 The report is complimentary about the Council’s city-leadership role, the work 

with partners, improving the quality of life of residents and services for diverse 
communities. It however identifies the need for better communication of the 
Council’s long term vision and strategic direction to our partners. 

 
3.6.2 As the report points out in paragraph 49, partnership working is strong and the 

Council is effective in engaging its stakeholders (which includes partners). The 
report also states: “there is wide representation from partner organisations [in the 
LSP]… and a strong collective ownership of the vision and priorities for the City, 
which are clearly reflected in the targets set out in the new LAA.” It is therefore 
not clear to what extent the lack of understanding of the Council’s long term 
vision is shared by its partners. 

 
3.6.3 Since the review took place, the Council has worked closely with its partners in 

the city and they jointly developed the Sustainable Community Strategy, through 
the Local Strategic Partnership. The Sustainable Community Strategy sets out 
the vision for the City as well as the priorities for years to come. The partners 
have agreed a priority to make the City ‘a place where communities are strong, 
inclusive and have opportunities to influence decision making. A place where 
individuals are able to take advantage of opportunities to improve their quality of 
life.’ The area assessment being undertaken is expected to confirm that there is 
a shared vision and strong working relationships with our partners. The Council 
will continue to work closely with its partners and ensure that its vision and long 
term direction continues to be communicated effectively. 

 
3.6.4 Rather than limiting the communication of the Council’s vision and priorities to its 

“partners” the Council is aiming to go beyond that and is working on developing a 
new communication strategy so that the whole community is clear about the 
Council’s strategy as well as the services it provides. 

 
 

11



 
3.7 Operating effectively in a clearly defined role 
 
3.7.1 The report acknowledges that the constitutional arrangements, formal processes 

and delegation schemes are all sound. It however suggests that there is room for 
improving the understanding of Members and Officers about their respective 
roles. 

 
3.7.2 The scheme of delegations to Cabinet Members and Officers is not designed to 

be mutually exclusive. As with all properly drafted schemes of delegation, there is 
a degree of overlap. This gives Members and Officers flexibility and allows 
certain issues to be dealt with by either depending on the context and the public 
interest in the issue. In any event, the Local Government Act 2000 provides that 
the body that granted the delegated power to Officers (i.e. Cabinet or Cabinet 
Member) can exercise the delegated power at any time notwithstanding 
delegations and irrespective of what the Constitution says. There is therefore no 
need to change the scheme of delegation itself. 

 
3.7.3 Since the fieldwork that resulted in the report was done, there is greater 

understanding of the different roles and Cabinet Members have regular meetings 
with relevant Directors to plan business and agree responses to issues arising. It 
is therefore unclear to what extent, if any, this is still an issue. However, the new 
Chief Executive, as part of his leadership role, will keep the working 
arrangements under review and take appropriate steps. 

 
3.7.3.a The Code of Conduct for Member/Officer Relations is based on a standard 

format used by most local authorities and was customised to take account of 
local circumstances. Although it is not thought (including by the Audit 
Commission) that there is any problem with the Code itself, the Standards 
Committee will review the Code and how it works in practice as part of its 
normal business. 

 
3.8 Promoting and demonstrating values of good governance through 

behaviour 
 
3.8.1 The report finds that Councillors generally adhere to the Council’s Code of 

Conduct and the majority of Members and Officers felt that the values the 
Council expects them to follow are clearly set out. It however points out that 
relationships between political groups are limited and that there is room for 
improvement in respecting professional judgement and roles and responsibilities 
of Councillors and Officers. The report recommends strengthening and raising 
the profile of the Standards Committee. 

 
3.8.2 Since the field work was done, the Standards Committee has dealt with a 

number of complaints against Members and, as part of their role, Standards 
Panels have made suggestions for improvement which were communicated to 
relevant individuals. The Chairman of the Standards Committee and the two 
other Independent Members of the Committee have also had meetings with each 
of the Group Leaders as well as each political group in the Council to discuss 
issues of common concern. The Chairman of Standards Committee also 

12



presents standards reports at full Council. The profile of the Committee is 
therefore improving, but efforts will be made to continue to raise the profile of the 
Committee and ethical standards generally through a mixture of training, 
attendance at meetings, reviewing guidance and dealing with complaints as they 
arise. 

 
3.9 Taking proper decisions and managing risks  
 
3.9.1 The report finds that the Council’s decision-making powers are properly 

constituted and backed by clear protocols. It however recommends 
improvements in the scrutiny arrangements and suggests that we look at 
authorities recognised as models of best practice. 

 
3.9.2 The scrutiny function is still developing but a number of significant improvements 

have been made during 2009 mostly after the review was undertaken. A scrutiny 
good practice comparison has been completed following concerns raised as part 
of the six month review of the constitution; this has highlighted some additional 
areas for improvement that can build upon work already undertaken. A team of 6 
FTE staff provide support to all scrutiny committees and panels, additionally each 
directorate has appointed a link officer to provide liaison with the scrutiny team.  

 
3.9.3 Quarterly ‘tripartite’ meetings have been established between scrutiny chairs, 

cabinet members, Directors and the Head of Scrutiny to help ensure scrutiny is 
undertaking an appropriate mix of policy development, holding the executive to 
account and pre-decision scrutiny. All Chairs pre-meetings have become cross-
party, allowing for additional refinement of work-plans to be undertaken during 
these discussions. This has also helped scrutiny depoliticise with no ‘closed 
doors’. 

 
3.9.4 Member training has progressed with support from the Centre for Public Scrutiny. 

The CfPS has run a bespoke session within the Council for scrutiny chairs and a 
number of members have benefited from courses highlighting good scrutiny 
practice nationally and within parliament. Individual support is offered to 
members as and when it is needed. Understanding of the role of scrutiny has 
improved amongst council officers as training has been provided through DMTs, 
especially on supporting scrutiny’s policy development role.  

 
3.9.5 The Overview and Scrutiny Commission is undertaking more of a coordinating 

role in prioritising the work of scrutiny review panels and associated resources. 
Updates at OSC from the Chairs of all scrutiny committees and reporting of their 
work-plans is also ensuring a more consistent approach across all Committees. 
A number of refinements to the ways of working across scrutiny have been 
developed to improve performance:  

 
o A protocol has been agreed with the LSP setting out what is expected 

following the LGPIHA 2007, relationships are being developed with all 
themed partnerships within the LSP  

 
o Performance monitoring is undertaken by all committees based on LAA and 

other performance regimes. There is evidence of committees using this data 

13



to direct work programmes and targeting in-depth reviews e.g. Alcohol 
related hospital admissions  

 
o Increased coordination of in-depth scrutiny reviews through an annual 

workplan, rather than each committee establishing reviews independently  
 

3.9.6 The number of agenda items per committee meeting has been identified as an 
issue and members have agreed to more focused agendas, with an acceptance 
that agendas of around 3 items allow for greater discussion of issues. The 
number of reports to note has been reduced with an acceptance from Members 
that there needs to be a rationale for adding a topic to the agenda. Workplan 
monitoring includes what action has occurred as a result of the report. Committee 
work programmes are owned by the committee as a whole and developed 
through discussion at meetings, at chairs pre-meets in discussion with senior 
officers from directorates and are also thoroughly discussed at tripartite 
meetings. 

 
3.9.7 Committees are undertaking more policy development work. Scrutiny policy 

development workshops have been run on the London Road Supplementary 
Planning Document, Cultural Strategy and Sustainable Communities Strategy 
amongst others. There is considerable evidence that scrutiny is influencing policy 
development across the city through its in depth reviews, those completed to 
date include: 

 
o Dual Diagnosis of mental health and substance misuse  
o Students in the Community  
o Environmental Technologies  
o GP-led health centre  
o Children and alcohol related harm  
o Older People and Community Safety  

 
Reviews currently being undertaken: 
o School Exclusions  
o Climate Change Adaptation  
o Dementia Strategy for the City  
o Speed Limits  
o Support services for rape victims  
o Disability issues raised during peer review  
o Street Access Issues  
o Dignity at Work  

 
3.9.8 Most of the proposals in the report have therefore either been implemented or 

are included in the plans for scrutiny. 
 
3.10   Developing the capacity and capability of Councillors 
 
3.10.1 The report is complimentary of the Member Development framework in the 

Council. It recognises that there is a good training programme overseen by the 
Member Development Working-Group. The programme and processes are 
based on a well established national development framework. The report 

14



comments on the absence of job descriptions or performance management 
framework for members, including portfolio holders and the non-attendance by 
some Members of some core training events. 

 
3.10.2 The cross-party Member Development Working-Group has, over the years, 

touched on some of the issues raised in the report. It however has always 
preferred to adopt a consensual approach that relies on Members’ willing 
cooperation and participation rather than anything that may be perceived as an 
imposition. The question of performance management was discussed with 
Members and Group Leaders. In general, there were reservations about the 
introduction of job descriptions and performance management. However, the 
group is proposing to work towards the Member Development Charter Plus (the 
next stage after the Member Development Charter) which incorporates 
performance management for Councillors and consideration of Councillors 
development needs beyond their roles as Councillors. As part of this, the 
Working Group will be asked to consider the development and use of person 
specification for councillors and for specific roles held by Members such as 
Cabinet Members, Chairmen of Committees etc and in seeking to prepare for the 
Member Charter Plus award, consideration will be given to establishing a 
performance management framework that will focus on enabling councillors to 
improve, prepare for succession either in terms of roles as councillors or outside 
of the council and to have a more effective impact for the benefit of the people of 
Brighton and Hove. 

 
3.10.3 The Working Group has recognised the need for certain ‘core’ elements of 

training to be offered to all Members and for them to be encouraged to attend 
these events.  The timing of the events has been set to offer maximum take-up 
and alternative sessions at different times are either offered or arranged on 
request or on-line learning is made available.  However, unless these elements 
are made compulsory (which is not the preference of the Member Development 
Group or Members generally) it is not possible to ensure all Members attend the 
core elements of the training package. 

 
3.11 Partnership working and engaging with stakeholders 
 
3.11.1The report states that partnership working is strong and the overall approach to 

community consultation is good. It however recommends that the Council 
ensures that the community is better informed about the Council’s priorities and 
performance. 

 
3.11.2 As discussed under the heading “Community focus” above, the Council has 

agreed a set of priorities with its partners and the emerging Sustainable 
Communities Strategy reflects this. However, we will continue to ensure that the 
community is better informed about the Council’s priorities and performance by 
incorporating these into our Communications Strategy. 

15



 
4. CONSULTATION: 

  
4.1 The findings in the report are based on consultation with Members, Officers and 

key partners. Relevant Officers were consulted in the preparation of the report. 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
 Financial Implications: 
  
5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report, the proposals within 

the action plan can be achieved within existing resources. 
 
 Finance Officer Consulted:  Anne Silley   Date: 02/12/09 
 
 Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 The Audit Commission report confirms that the formal constitution arrangements 

are sound and has not identified any issues of concern on the legality of any of 
the arrangements in place. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted:  Abraham Ghebre-Ghiorghis Date: 01/12/09 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 There are no equalities implications arising from this report. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
  
5.4 There are no sustainability implications arising from this report. 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  
5.5 The governance arrangements (including the anti fraud strategy) are robust 

enough to avoid and deal with any incidents of fraud, corruption or breaches of 
the law. 

 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 There are no significant risks identified in the report. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.7 The Audit Commission report confirms that the Council has strong partnership 

arrangements and effective consultation processes with the public.  
 

16



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Audit Commission Good Governance Report including Action Plan 
 
2. Extract from Audit Committee 15 December 2009 

 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 

 

17



18



Good
Governance
Brighton and Hove City Council  

Audit 2008/09 

December 2009 

 !"#$%&'()$*++",-./$0

19



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive 
directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. 
Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

 any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

 any third party.

Contents

Introduction and background 3

Audit approach 4

Executive summary 5

Main findings 7

Appendix 1 – Action Plan 19

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

20



Introduction and background 

3   Brighton and Hove City Council 

Introduction and background 
1 Governance is about how local government bodies ensure that they are doing the right 

things, in the right way, for the right people in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and 
accountable manner. It comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, 
by which local government bodies are directed and controlled and through which they 
account to, engage with and, where appropriate, lead their communities. 

2 Governance arrangements in the public services are closely scrutinised and 
sometimes criticised. Significant governance failings attract immense attention and one 
significant failing can taint a whole sector. Local authorities are big business employing 
over 2 million people and accounting for 25 per cent of public spending. They are 
vitally important to all tax payers and citizens. Local authorities have a key role in 
leading their communities as well as ensuring the delivery of high quality services to 
them. Good governance structures enable an authority to pursue its vision effectively. 

3 Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good stewardship 
of public money, good public engagement and ultimately, good outcomes for citizens 
and service users. Good governance enables an authority to pursue its vision 
effectively as well as underpinning that vision with mechanisms for control and 
management of risk. All authorities should aim to meet the standards of the best and 
be able to demonstrate that sound governance arrangements are in place.  

4 This review was included in the 2007/08 audit plan because there was evidence that 
some of the Council's governance arrangements were not as consistently effective as 
they could be, The Council's Corporate Assessment in 2006 also noted that there were 
instances of bullying and harassment of staff from within the Council which can impact 
on the effectiveness of the control environment. 

5 The Council introduced a new constitution and cabinet structure in April 2008 which 
has had an obvious impact on the current governance arrangements. The Council has 
recently completed its six monthly review of the constitution and will be using this as an 
opportunity to strengthen specific areas of governance such as the scrutiny function. 
This report contributes to this review. 

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

21



Audit approach 

Brighton and Hove City Council  4

Audit approach 
6 To complete the performance review we undertook: 

 a document review; 

 interviews and focus groups involving key Councillors, officers and partners; and 

 an electronic survey of Councillors and senior officers to establish their views on 
the effectiveness of the Council's governance arrangements. 

7 The survey was sent out to 145 individuals in October 2008 with a reminder sent out in 
November 2008. We received 75 responses which represents a 51 per cent response 
rate, which is a good rate of return. Of the requests to 54 Councillors, 21 replied 
(response rate of 39 per cent) and of the 91 officers surveyed. 54 replied (response 
rate of 60 per cent)

8 The field work was carried out between November 2008 and March 2009. 

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

22



Executive summary 

5   Brighton and Hove City Council 

Executive summary 
9 Governance arrangements within Brighton and Hove City Council are generally sound. 

There is good formal governance arrangements in place but frameworks and protocols 
are not always fully understood or consistently applied. The Council has clearly defined 
roles and responsibilities and decision-making structures but in practice, roles and 
decision-making powers are not always clear and coherent to all Councillors and 
officers. Governance arrangements have only been in place since April 2008 and 
therefore arrangements are not yet fully embedded.

10 Community leadership and focus is strong. The Local Strategic Partnership - 2020 
Community Partnership (LSP) has developed a shared ambition, with a supporting 
vision which addresses the key issues facing the city and provides a clear focus for it. 
However, some key partners and stakeholders stated that they were not clear about 
the Council's own vision for the city and its role in working with the LSP to deliver the 
LSP's vision. The Council therefore needs to ensure that it clearly articulates its own 
long-term vision to all of its partners. 

11 The Council contributes to the improvement of its area and quality of life for residents 
and visitors. This is largely as a result of the effectiveness of its service and strategic 
arrangements in meeting clearly defined priorities. The Council was rated by the Audit 
Commission as an ‘excellent’ authority in 2007/08 and is improving well. 

12 The formal Constitutional framework and arrangements adopted by the Council are 
sound. The Council has clear formal processes for decision-making outlined in its 
constitution. Executive Councillor's responsibilities and delegation arrangements for 
decision making are clearly set out and supported by well-defined roles and 
responsibilities. However, the responses to our survey indicate there is lack of 
understanding by some Councillors about the Council's decision making and 
delegation processes. The Council expects this to improve as Councillors and officers 
get more experience of working under the new cabinet arrangements.

13 The Council constitution was constructed to allow some flexibility in terms of officer 
and councillor responsibilities. Their respective powers are therefore not mutually 
exclusive and there is a degree of overlap. However, this overlap can sometimes give 
rise to the perception that some Councillors are getting too involved in day to day 
operations or officers are making decisions that should have been taken at the 
Councillor level. During the fieldwork, some portfolio holders stated that Councillors 
were interested in operational matters because they wanted to have a good and full 
understanding of their portfolios. Councillors and officers acknowledge that they would 
welcome greater clarification of the roles and responsibilities set out in the constitution 
and related protocols.

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

23



Executive summary 

Brighton and Hove City Council  6

14 Our work found that some Councillors felt disengaged from the Council's
decision-making processes, Overview and scrutiny has been in place since April 2008 
and, at the time of the review, was still developing and there are inconsistencies in 
approach between the six scrutiny committees. Scrutiny currently lacks rigour and is 
not yet sufficiently robust or challenging of the Executive. Insufficient work has been 
carried out in preparing Councillors and officers to implement effective scrutiny. 
Councillors stated that the Cabinet meetings did not enable effective challenge and 
debate. As a result many Councillors regard full Council as the only real forum where 
they can challenge policy, debate political issues and have a real impact. The Council 
however stated that 'some of the perceived problems were inherent in an executive 
system where most decision-making is reserved for executive members'. The Council 
is taking steps to implement a number of improvements following their six month 
review of the constitution.

15 The protocols for dealing with issues of ethical standards, conduct and declarations of 
interest are in place and are generally effective. There is a well-established standards 
committee. The number of complaints upheld against Councillors is low. The 
monitoring officer and his team carry out their roles proactively and there is a good 
working relationship between the standards committee and the Council's legal team.

16 The approach to Councillors' development is effective. Portfolio holders have annual 
reviews. There is a good training programme for Councillors and an excellent induction 
programme for new Councillors. The Council's democratic services' provides a good 
service. Councillors feel well supported by their training and better equipped to 
undertake their role, although some Councillors do not see learning as a priority and 
have not engaged in the training opportunities offered. Officer support for the  
cross-party Councillors' development working group has enabled the Council to gain 
the South East Employers’ charter for Councillors' development in September 2008.

17 Partnership working is strong and the Council is effective at consulting and engaging 
with its stakeholders. The Council has developed strong and effective relationships 
with it's partners and there is wide representation from partner organisations on key 
forums such as the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) and Public Services Board 
(PSB) .The PSB is well attended and underpinned by partnerships that are responsible 
for the delivery the new LAA priorities. However, delivery planning processes, effective 
data sharing and performance management arrangements are work in progress and 
are not yet fully embedded.

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

24



Main findings 

7   Brighton and Hove City Council 

Main findings

Community Focus  

18 Community leadership from the city partnership is strong and the Council plays a lead 
role in this. The Council with its partners has developed a shared ambition for the city, 
articulated in the sustainable Community Strategy, which is informed by a range of 
consultation processes. Their vision for the city is underpinned by a clear statement 
which recognises key issues. The LSP has a clear understanding of the issues it faces 
which is reflected in the LSP's vision. This vision is supported by priorities and targets 
which are being used to inform a revised sustainable community strategy. These 
priorities have already been translated into the Council's corporate plan and will be 
reflected in new and refreshed service plans with targets. Some partners and 
stakeholders have however stated that they were unclear about the Council's long term 
vision, it's long term strategic direction and what role the Council will play in delivering 
the LSP's city-wide vision and ambitions. The Council should therefore consider 
improving the way it communicates its own long term vision to all partners and 
stakeholders.

19 The Council leadership sets priorities having regard to statutory requirements and 
national guidance and the needs of the community. The Council with its partners has 
undertaken a good analysis of the needs of the city. Through its Reducing Inequalities 
Review the Council has completed a thorough analysis of need and this has been 
used to set the revised Local Area Agreement (LAA) priorities and to inform the 
Council's Corporate Plan 2008-2011. Stakeholders and community groups are 
satisfied that the Council knows and understands the city, has analysed needs and 
listened to the views of residents. One good example is the use of the City Views 
survey which is used to obtain the views of residents and acts as an effective 
barometer of the community.

20 The Council contributes effectively to the improvement of its area and quality of life for 
residents and visitors. The Council has been rated by the Audit Commission as an 
‘excellent’ authority in 2008/09 and is improving well. This is largely as a result of the 
effectiveness of service and strategic arrangements in meeting its priorities. The 
Council has been successful in engaging and influencing community and partnership 
views to develop a collective partnership approach.

21 The Council is further developing performance management arrangements and 
planning frameworks to ensure there is a robust planning framework across the 
Council to consistently translate priorities into action. The Council has been successful 
in developing collective ownership of priorities by its directors and senior managers, 
following a period where there had been a directorate or less corporate approach 
taken on some issues. A consistent planning and performance management 
framework will provide greater rigour to ensure that the Council’s efforts are efficient 
and economic, complementary and coherent. 

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

25



Main findings 

Brighton and Hove City Council  8

22 The Council has a clear focus on meeting the needs and improving services for its 
diverse communities. The Council has adopted an equalities and inclusion policy that 
emphasises its resolve to serve its diverse communities without discrimination. There 
are some good examples of the Council with partners reshaping services to meet 
community needs. Examples include the adaptation of 20 bus stops for the visually 
impaired, the training of volunteer travel buddies to help people with learning 
disabilities travel by bus and an induction programme for new taxi drivers on access 
and equal opportunities as part of their licensing process. Local communities and 
groups, including voluntary and community organisations generally feel listened to but 
there is scope for better regular engagement of some hard to reach groups over broad 
Council priorities and service design (for example, some of the faith groups and recent 
migrants).

Recommendation

R1 Improve communication of the long term vision of the Council to partners, 
stakeholders and the community, in order to increase their understanding of and 
commitment to the Council's agenda for the city and to improve their understanding 
of how the Council operates. 

Operating effectively in a clearly defined role 

23 The constitutional arrangements adopted by the Council are sound. The Council has 
formal processes for decision-making and Councillors' responsibilities and delegation 
arrangements are set out in the constitution. However, some roles and responsibilities 
are less clearly understood in practice which can affect the effectiveness of the 
Council's decision making.  

24 The Council sets out the roles and responsibilities of officers and Councillors in the 
constitution and there is appropriate training for Councillors that explains the scrutiny 
and cabinet functions. The respective powers of officers and members are not mutually 
exclusive and there is therefore a degree of overlap, which could cause confusion. 
Some officers and Councillors interviewed stated that there were differences in some 
Councillors understanding of officers' roles and responsibilities. There is therefore a 
potential risk that some Councillors could become too involved in the day to day 
running of operations. During the fieldwork, some portfolio holders stated that 
Councillors were interested in operational matters because they wanted to have a 
good and full understanding of their portfolios. Councillors and officers acknowledge 
that they would welcome greater clarification of the roles and responsibilities set out in 
the constitution and related protocols.

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

26



Main findings 

9   Brighton and Hove City Council 

25 There is a lack of clarity about delegation powers to support decision-making by 
officers. There are formal delegation arrangements which are clearly defined for 
officers and 76 per cent of officers surveyed regarded these delegation levels as 
appropriate. Seventy-six per cent of Councillors and 81 per cent of officers surveyed 
agreed that there was a formal agreement on the relative delegation levels for officers 
and Councillors. However, the level of delegation to officers, although considered 
appropriate, is sometimes not fully understood by Councillors. Only 46 percent of 
officers surveyed felt that Councillors understood the delegation arrangements. In 
addition, the use of delegated powers by Cabinet portfolio holders varies significantly 
and is dependent on the confidence, knowledge and experience of the portfolio holder. 
In some portfolio areas, there are a higher number of service specific decisions that 
continue to be referred to Cabinet. There is therefore a difference in the way some 
portfolio holders are utilising decision making powers and arrangements.  

26 The Cabinet structure did not support efficient and effective decision making. At the 
time of the fieldwork in December to February 2009, there were nine portfolios some of 
which cover a small area of the Council's business. This meant that some individual 
cabinet member meetings were cancelled due to lack of business, were sometimes 
short with limited decisions being made or were purely an information sharing rather 
than a decision-making forum. The Council however has recognised this and, following 
its six month review of the constitution in March 2009, has adjusted the delegated 
powers for the cabinet members for Central Services, Equalities, Inclusion and 
Community Affairs and Environment. This will enable more efficient and effective 
decision-making. In addition, the challenging and complex political environment means 
that decisions about critical future developments are sometimes delayed.

27 The roles of statutory and strategic partners are clear and the Council works well with 
partners. The involvement and contribution of voluntary and community sector partners 
is good and they have an effective voice in the local strategic partnership.

Recommendation

R2 Review the framework for member and officer relations and the related 
arrangements to ensure that they are understood and followed in practice.  
This needs to include:  

 joint sessions for senior officers and Councillors to improve their understanding 
of each others roles and responsibilities and to help develop improved ways of 
working with each other; 

 a assessment of how well members and officers are adhering to the guidance 
and protocols relating to officer/Councillors roles and responsibilities and 
behaviours; and 

 the development of a good practice checklist for Councillors and senior 
managers that clearly defines what is and is not acceptable behaviour and 
monitor compliance. 

This will enable the Council to develop a clear understanding of the roles and 
delegated responsibilities of Councillors and officers.

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

27



Main findings 

Brighton and Hove City Council  10

Promoting and demonstrating values of good governance through behaviour 

28 Councillors generally adhere to the Council's code of conduct. There is a clear 
expectation amongst Councillors of all parties that they conduct themselves in an 
appropriate manner in accordance with the code. The majority of Councillors and 
officers surveyed felt that the values the Council expects them to follow are clearly set 
out. There is a code of conduct for Councillor/officer relations and standards and 
behaviours for officers are set out in the leader and manager standards. However, only 
40 per cent of officers surveyed felt that Councillors demonstrated commitment to the 
Council's organisational values in the way they conducted themselves. Councillors 
consider that the leadership usually acts quickly on the occasions when Councillors' 
behaviour is inappropriate. However, there is a risk that behavioural issues, if not dealt 
with effectively, could adversely affect working relationships between Councillors and 
officers.

29 There are positive working relationships between most Councillors and officers. The 
change of political administration in May 2007 was difficult but most have now got used 
to the new arrangements that included the Cabinet system of governance. For 
example, clear roles and responsibilities have been established in children's services 
with regular budget and performance reviews. However, both Councillors and officers 
acknowledged that mutual respect for the professional judgement and roles and 
responsibilities of Councillors and officers needs to continue to improve.

30 Working relationships between individual officers and Councillors are improving but are 
not consistently effective across the Council. Some officers continue to hold the view 
that some Councillors' actions impact on the timely delivery of the Council's business. 
For example, there are instances where information has been provided to the press 
inappropriately. This poor behaviour could result in the Council being less open and 
limiting it's sharing of information.

31 The quality of public meetings and effectiveness of full Council, cabinet meetings, 
committees and panels is mixed. Both officers and Councillors expressed some 
concern about the effectiveness of meetings. There is an excessive use of questions 
and motions at full Council, because the opposition regard this as the only real forum, 
where they can have an impact. The Council meeting in January 2009 had 18 
Councillors' questions and 10 notices of motion. The full Council meeting is therefore 
long and is not an effective show case for the public. Councillors recognise that many 
of the motions will not all be debated or are inappropriate but are then used in 
promotional political material. This means meetings are not meaningful to many 
Councillors and to the public and could discourage engagement in the democratic 
process.

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

28



Main findings 

11   Brighton and Hove City Council 

32 Relationships between political groups are limited and there continues to be some 
suspicions by opposition members about the effect of the new Cabinet system on the 
transparency of local government. This has placed a significant responsibility on the 
Council to address these concerns and ensure that matters of governance and 
conduct are effective and are given greater exposure. Council officers have developed 
a strategy for addressing these concerns and have taken appropriate steps. For 
example, protocols are in place to allow officer briefings for the opposition groups on 
an ad hoc basis and the Council has recently reinstated the monthly meeting of the 
leader and the political opposition leaders after an 18 month absence. There are 
formal and robust mechanisms in place to review and manage the conduct of Council 
business and the Council regularly reviews its constitution to ensure it is fit for purpose. 
However, despite these actions some Councillors of the opposition parties continue to 
feel uninformed and disengaged with the current political arrangements.

33 The protocols for dealing with issues of standards, conduct and interest are in place 
and are generally effective. The Monitoring Officer and his team carry out their roles 
proactively and there is a good working relationship between the standards committee 
and the Council's legal team. Eighty-five per cent of Councillors and 67 per cent of 
officers who responded to our survey consider that there are formal and effective 
arrangements in the Council to ensure and promote good ethical governance. There is 
a training programme for Councillors, including a specific module on ethics and probity 
issues. The number of complaints upheld against Councillors is low. In 2007/08, there 
was one complaint about Councillors' misconduct to the Standards Board and four 
complaints to the Council under the new devolved procedures. All were rejected and 
no breach of the Code was found.

34 There is a well-established Standards Committee that includes three independent 
members from different professional backgrounds, one of whom is the chair and is 
highly experienced, well regarded and respected. Where there is a risk that a 
Councillor could breach the code of conduct, the Council uses informal processes 
initially to try to manage the issue. For example, the Chair of the Committee together 
with the Monitoring Officer takes an active approach to ensure that issues do not 
escalate and require formal intervention. The Committee's profile however could be 
raised, such as by actively promoting an understanding of the benefits of the ethical 
agenda inside the Council. This will help the Council to further improve the way 
inappropriate behaviour is dealt with. There is a clear understanding about the 
arrangements for the declaration of Councillors interests and the register of interests is 
readily available to the public.

35 The Council's whistle blowing policy is not well publicised and more work is needed to 
strengthen arrangements for reporting (in confidence) incidents of inappropriate 
behaviour. The Council has a policy in place but 56 per cent of officers and 45 per cent 
of Councillors surveyed did not believe that the Council has an effective whistle 
blowing policy. In addition, there was a very high percentage of 'don't know' responses 
to the survey by senior officers and Councillors for this area. This means that the policy 
has not been effectively communicated to Councillors and officers. 

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

29



Main findings 

Brighton and Hove City Council  12

36 The Council is providing greater clarity about the core values and behaviours that it 
wants staff to adhere to in the workplace. It was however difficult to establish whether 
the Council's expectations are being adhered to and consistently applied by all staff 
and their managers. The Council is in the process of producing a dignity at work 
framework that sets out its key values and behaviours. This framework has been 
developed in response to the issues raised about staff well-being in the 2006 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) report and the 2007 staff survey. 
However, the majority of officers and Councillors interviewed were unclear when the 
framework will be completed or what improvements have been made, since the staff 
survey. In undertaking our work we did not gain access to front line staff, so it has not 
been possible to fully establish how well the Council has responded to the issues 
raised by the CPA report and the 2007 staff survey. Evidence from the survey of 
officers and Councillors however indicated that 80 per cent thought that bullying by 
staff is not tolerated within the Council. 

Recommendation

R3 Strengthen and raise the profile of the standards committee in promoting good 
ethical behaviour and standards across the Council. 

Taking proper decisions and managing risk 

37 The Council's decision-making powers are properly constituted and backed by clear 
protocols, but there is not always a clear understanding of what is required. Officers 
are generally clear about who can take decisions and generally officers with delegated 
authority do take decisions, when it is appropriate. Statutory partners and most senior 
staff report that most key decisions have been made quickly, for example, the Falmer 
Academy Private Finance Initiative (PFI). There are, however examples where 
decisions are being delayed despite funding being in place. Executive Councillors 
report that there is clarity about which decisions can be taken and by whom. However, 
the use of decision-making powers by portfolio holders remains variable. Some are 
taking the appropriate level of decision for their role, while others continue to refer 
most of their decisions to Cabinet.  

38  Recent changes relating to the removal of some decision making from officers has 
been interpreted by some officers as a lack of trust in their abilities and integrity, 
notably the re-introduction of Councillor's selection panels for the appointment of 
Assistant Directors. However, the changes reflect standard practice in most local 
authorities where Directors and Assistant Directors are appointed by senior 
Councillors. 

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

30



Main findings 

13   Brighton and Hove City Council 

39 The communication of decisions taken by the Council is considered to be effective by 
officers and stakeholders, but not by Councillors. Officers interviewed stated that team 
briefings are working well in the directorates. Forthcoming decisions are included in the 
Cabinet's Forward Plan and formal decisions at Cabinet are quickly put on the 
Council's website. There are live webcasts of Council, Cabinet, Planning and Scrutiny 
meetings and all cabinet member meetings are open to members of the public. 
Recordings of the webcasts can also be viewed from the website archives. Some 
Councillors however do not regard the Cabinet's Forward Plan as a useful or accurate 
document. In addition, there remains a perception by opposition Councillors that too 
much business is undertaken confidentially and too many decisions appear to have 
been made before they are debated openly. Whilst it is recognised that the Council's 
practices and arrangements are in line with most other councils, the Council needs to 
look at ways of addressing these current perceptions. In addition, not all Councillors 
receive regular updates about key changes to Council personnel or service delivery. 
Statutory partners and voluntary partners consider that the Council is good at 
consulting with them before decisions are taken and is good at keeping them informed 
about key changes. 

40 The Council's risk management of its own operations is good although risk 
management arrangements involving partners are recognised by the Council as an 
area for improvement. The Council acknowledges that more assurance reporting and 
standardisation and sharing of risk registers needs to take place. The Council has 
made some improvements such as aligning risk matrices between the health partners, 
the Council and the Civil Contingencies Act partners. 

41 Scrutiny under the cabinet arrangements is still developing. Scrutiny lacks rigour and 
insufficient investment had been given over the last few years to prepare Councillors 
and officers to ensure that the scrutiny role was fit for purpose. Training has not 
developed the skills needed to support effective scrutiny. A new structure has been in 
place since April 2008, but this is not yet functioning effectively and there are 
inconsistencies in practice between the six scrutiny committees. The understanding of 
the role and function of scrutiny is not yet fully embedded although Councillors are 
beginning to understand roles and responsibilities.  

42 The Council has recently begun building capacity to support effective scrutiny and 
there is a strong commitment to strengthen scrutiny. The Council has now appointed a 
permanent head of scrutiny and six full time scrutiny support officers to address the 
current weaknesses. During 2007 the Council established an audit committee to 
advise the Council on all matters related to corporate governance. Officers and 
Councillors are determined to introduce more effective challenge and scrutiny of the 
Executive to ensure that all political parties are involved in informing policy 
development. These developments are however very much work in progress and 
further work is needed to strengthen the current arrangements. The scrutiny work 
programme is not well established and does not effectively enable cross party 
Councillors to be engaged in policy development work or for potential calls on officers 
time to be planned in advance. Councillors have not yet considered the balance on 
their agendas of officer initiated items and Councillors commissioned items. Agendas 
are large and focus on information sharing, rather than scrutiny.  

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

31



Main findings 

Brighton and Hove City Council  14

Recommendations

R4 Develop confidence in the transparency of the new political processes by improving 
scrutiny arrangements. The Council should: 

 use the co-ordinating scrutiny committee to produce guidance for officers on the 
formulation of agendas, work programmes, prioritisation of business and 
resource implications of its work; 

 develop the skills needed for effective scrutiny; and 

 ensure that the scrutiny role focuses more on proactive review/challenging of 
decisions, rather than info-sharing.

R5 Embed the new political arrangements and learn from best practice by working with 
similar councils who have been recognised as having effective decision-making and 
democratic processes. 

Developing the capacity and capability of the Councillors 

43 The capacity of elected Councillors is good and it continues to develop amongst 
Councillors who were new to the Council in May 2007. The intake improved the 
balance in the age mix and gender of Councillors, although Black and Minority Ethnic 
(BME) representation is low. The Council does not have a clear strategy for engaging 
with prospective Councillors and developing existing Councillors' potential. There is 
therefore scope for improving the level of BME representation and strengthening 
succession planning for Councillors. The Council needs to re-launch the Councillors' 
buddy system to develop those Councillors that have been identified as having 
leadership potential. 

44 Executive Councillors are becoming clearer about their new roles following the change 
of administration in 2007 and are becoming more confident in their roles. In 2007, the 
skills levels of those elected as Councillors varied considerably, but an induction 
programme and continuous skills development programme for Councillors is in place. 
Most Councillors have responded well to the move to a Cabinet structure and the 
Cabinet usually operates at a strategic level. Councillors have worked hard at 
understanding their specific portfolios and in some areas such as children's services 
they have developed a strong and effective working relationship with officers.

45 There are no job descriptions/person specifications or agreed specific and measurable 
performance criteria for formally performance managing Councillors including 
Executive Councillors. Performance of Executive Councillors is monitored informally by 
the Leader of the Council but this is ad-hoc. None of the political parties have a 
process for evaluating the effectiveness of individual Councillors. This means the 
Council cannot be certain that Councillors are effective and that those Councillors who 
represent the Council on external bodies are the most appropriate to do so.

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

32



Main findings 

15   Brighton and Hove City Council 

46 There is a good training programme for Councillors and an excellent induction 
programme for new Councillors is in place. New Councillors praised the induction 
programme used following the May 2007 election and the formal training for 
Councillors of statutory committees, such as planning. Other support to Councillors 
includes corporate briefings to update Councillors on changes to law, policy or services 
as well as Councillor-specific skills workshops such as chairing meetings. Democratic 
services provide a good support service for Councillors and officer support for the 
cross-party Councillors Development Working Group enabled the Council to gain the 
South East Employers’ Charter for Councillors Development in September 2008. 
Councillors feel well supported by their training and better equipped to carry out their 
role.

47 The approach to Councillor development is effective although the take up of training 
opportunities by Councillors is inconsistent and a number of Councillors do not see 
learning as a priority. Councillors' development processes and programmes have been 
designed based on well-established national development frameworks. The Council 
uses generic competencies for the different roles Councillors undertake and uses 
these to assess Councillors training needs. Councillors are required to complete an 
annual self-assessment against these competencies to determine their training needs. 
This is used to shape Councillors development events. These events are evaluated 
and Councillors are sent additional follow up reviews to identify the difference learning 
has made to their knowledge or skills. However, there are a number of reasons for 
some Councillors not undertaking training. For example, long serving Councillors feel 
there is no need for them to have training whereas others work full time and found it 
difficult to find the time to take up training. The lack of attendance by some Councillors 
means that core training modules such as scrutiny, equalities and diversity, and the 
code of conduct have been missed by some Councillors. This is a significant omission 
for the Council. 

48 Partners report that Councillors' conduct on the various forums and boards is 
appropriate and professional. There is no formal process to ensure the Council is 
properly represented by Councillors with appropriate skills although generally the 
profile of the allocated Councillors matches the needs of the partnership. 

Recommendation

R6 Develop a process to review specific Councillor roles and to ensure the 
effectiveness of individual Councillors across all the political groups by providing the 
necessary development and support, where gaps are identified. The focus should be 
on improving Councillors impact for the benefit of the people of Brighton and Hove. 

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

33



Main findings 

Brighton and Hove City Council  16

Partnership working and engaging with stakeholders 

49 Partnership working is strong and the Council is effective at engaging its stakeholders. 
The Council has strong and effective relationships with partners both through the LSP 
and the Public Services Board (PSB). There is wide representation from partner 
organisations on these forums and a strong collective ownership of the vision and 
priorities for the city, which are clearly reflected in the targets set for the new LAA. The 
PSB is well attended and underpinned by thematic working groups that are responsible 
for the delivery the LAA priorities. 

50  The Leader of the Council is establishing herself with strategic partners and partners 
reported that they valued the work done by the recently retired Chief Executive in 
prioritising and driving the development of an effective city-wide partnership. Most 
Councillors feel involved and have an identified community role. Seventy-six per cent 
of Councillors and 83 per cent of officers surveyed were clear about the partners with 
which the Council is working to improve outcomes for users. Seventy-one per cent of 
Councillors and 74 per cent of officers consider that the Council works effectively with 
partners. Effective community leadership is helping the Council to work in partnership 
to support delivery of the citywide vision.  

51 Partnership working is also developing well at an operational level. The Children’s 
Trust has fostered a strong culture of multi-disciplinary team-working and through 
strong partnership and inter-agency working has contributed effectively to the delivery 
of projects, such as the Falmer Academy PFI Project. Within adult social care, good 
use is being made of joint commissioning and partnership working to improve the 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of local services, particularly to increase the 
levels of independent living. In addition, the strong community safety partnership has 
achieved 'beacon status' for its work on the night time economy. This has led to 
improved feeling of safety and reduced crime.

52 Robust delivery planning, data sharing and performance management arrangements 
are not yet fully embedded. Delivery plans have been formulated and agreed by 
partners for each LAA priority and the emphasis has been placed on the partners to 
deliver improvement. The partnership acknowledged that there was scope to improve 
data sharing between partners, for example, the sharing of data between the hospitals 
and the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP) on alcohol related injury. 
The partnership is taking appropriate action to ensure that data sharing is improved by 
developing the new Brighton and Hove Local Information System (BHLIS), which is a 
web-accessible system and is fed with data from all partners. Performance 
management arrangements require further enhancement to meet the challenging LAA 
agenda to ensure that there is a robust joint partnership approach to performance 
management. Partners stated that there was insufficient challenge to
under-performance, particularly in the themed partnerships. For example the 
significant increase in the number of teenage pregnancies.

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

34



Main findings 

17   Brighton and Hove City Council 

53 Overall the Council’s approach to community consultation is good. The Council has a 
good track record of involving the community in local policy formation and programmes 
and has developed effective networks to consult and involve the people they serve, for 
example neighbourhood renewal schemes. The Council is a proactive partner that is 
willing to engage in local issues and Councillors of all parties are actively engaged, 
both formally and informally, with their communities. There are good examples of the 
Council harnessing support from some Councillors of the community, for example the 
business community in relation to the Brighton Conference Centre development and it 
is taking steps to make more effective use of the large pool of expertise, knowledge 
and enthusiasm that exists within the community. The Council with its partners is also 
further strengthening engagement with the community with the introduction of a new 
outline framework for consultation within the city - the community engagement 
framework. The framework sets out the strategic vision and guiding principles for 
community engagement and priority actions to improve engagement. 

54 The Council has a good system for consulting with the partners and the community 
about the needs of the community and the priorities for the city. The Council uses its 
citizen's’ panel, Xchange, for consultation and customer feedback. The panel is 
effectively managed and is used as the main vehicle for seeking the views of city 
residents about their satisfaction with specific services or issues. This shows, with 
some exceptions, broad satisfaction with many areas of the Council’s work. Officers try 
to ensure that people with disabilities and those from minority communities are 
included in the panel. As the panel is drawn from those on the electoral roll, young 
people under the age of 17 and those not registered are excluded from the process 
and as a result the views of youth are insufficiently taken into account. However, the 
children's trust ensures that children and young people are consulted about policy 
developments. For example, the consultation of children and young people about the 
children and young people's plan and the referendum on schools admissions policy.

55 The Council uses the information from Xchange and 'City View' to effectively inform 
strategy and policy development. The annual 'City View' survey of 10 per cent of the 
city's population is run in partnership with the Council's health and police and 
community safety partners. It aims to build up a clear picture of who lives in the city, 
why they like living there, what they think about Council services, their health, the city 
generally and their local neighbourhood. The information from the two surveys has 
been used in developing strategies to tackle crime and disorder, initiatives for young 
and old people, maintaining a visible police presence on foot for Friday and Saturday 
nights, replacement and upgrading of bus shelters and improved signage, Brighton 
and Hove's Transport Plan and the Council's Waste Strategy. A report on the previous 
survey, together with an update on any action taken, is sent via a newsletter. The 
Council makes appropriate use of its website to seek comments on draft polices and 
plans and to invite general feedback on its activities.

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

35



Main findings 

Brighton and Hove City Council  18

56 There are strong consultation frameworks for partners, stakeholders and staff in place, 
but the process for providing feedback on the outcomes from consultation is unclear. 
Fifty-seven per cent of Councillors and 62 per cent of officers surveyed believed that 
there were effective systems to listen to suggestions from external stakeholders, but 
over 58 per cent of Councillors and 56 per cent of officers thought that the Council did 
not take action in response to the suggestions made. In addition, 48 per cent of officers 
felt that the systems for responding to staff views were ineffective. The Council is 
strengthening the process to ensure feedback on the outcomes from any public and 
stakeholder consultation is provided to ensure that the community is fully informed of 
any changes made as result of their consultation.  

57 The quality of reporting on Council performance to the public is mixed. The Council 
has been slow in developing user friendly performance reporting information for the 
public and service users. There is insufficient information on how the Council has 
performed against its corporate priorities. The Council currently produces an annual 
performance plan and an associated summary that sets out key inspection ratings and 
limited commentary on performance. The overall performance plan includes 
performance indicators, but this plan does not relate the performance indicators to the 
Council's priorities. It is therefore difficult to determine how well the Council has 
delivered its key priorities. The performance plan is set out in tabular format but there 
is limited commentary highlighting achievements against priorities and areas for 
improvement. The links between the indicator results and the Council’s statements of 
its achievements and future plans are not clear. Elsewhere, access to other 
information on performance is not easily available, for example information on meeting 
customer service standards and dealing with complaints. Pages on individual 
directorates and services consisted mainly of descriptions of the range of provision 
available.

58 External communication is developing. The Council has appointed a Communications 
Manager and is in the process of modernising its external communication functions 
including the production of a new communications strategy. This is work in progress 
and it is therefore too early make judgements on how effective the new arrangements 
are.

Recommendation

R7 Ensure the community is better informed about the Council’s priorities and 
performance, in particular identify with greater clarity key service and corporate 
performance targets as a basis for communication with, and reaction from, the whole 
of the local community. 

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

36



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

1
9
 
  

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

P
g

n
o

.
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1
 =

 L
o

w
2

 =
 M

e
d

3
 =

 H
ig

h

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
te

G
o

o
d

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

8
R

1
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
ir
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
h
o
w

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
p

e
ra

te
s
. 

3
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

Y
e
s

A
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
s
h
a
re

d
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

w
it
h
 o

u
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

L
A

A
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

L
S

P
, 

P
S

B
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
. 

M
a

rc
h

2
0
1
0

 !
"

#
$%

1
'(

)$
*

+
+

"
,

-
./

$0

37



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
2
0

P
g

n
o

.
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1
 =

 L
o

w
2

 =
 M

e
d

3
 =

 H
ig

h

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
te

9
R

2
 R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 a

n
d
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

T
h
is

 n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

 

 
jo

in
t 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 o

th
e
rs

 r
o
le

s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r;

 

 
a
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

h
o
w

 w
e
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 a
d
h
e
ri
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

O
ff
ic

e
r/

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 r
o
le

s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

; 
a
n
d
 

 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
s
 w

h
a
t 

is
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
. 

3
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
.

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

O
ff

ic
e

r

Y
e
s

M
u

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
re

fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 i
t 

w
a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e

 s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

m
u
c
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 w

it
h
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 m

o
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 
ro

le
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 e

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
: 

 
th

a
t 

th
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 t

h
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r/

O
ff
ic

e
r 

c
o
d
e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
y
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

it
s
 e

th
ic

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

o
le

; 

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 t

a
k
e
s
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

h
is

 r
o
le

 a
s
 H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

P
a
id

 S
e
rv

ic
e
; 

a
n
d
 

 
th

a
t 

th
e

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 
a
n
y
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0
1
0

 !
"

#
$%

1
'(

)$
*

+
+

"
,

-
./

$0

38



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
1
 
  

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
g

n
o

.
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1
 =

 L
o

w
2

 =
 M

e
d

3
 =

 H
ig

h

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
te

T
h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 
c
le

a
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
.

1
2

R
3
 S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 

g
o
o
d
 e

th
ic

a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

2
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

O
ff

ic
e

r
Y

e
s

S
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
, 

th
e
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

te
p
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 g

ro
u
p
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

p
o
lit

ic
a
l 
g
ro

u
p
s
, 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
ri
n
g
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
: 

 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a

l 
re

p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 f

u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
h

e
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
is

s
u
e
s
 o

f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

re
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
; 

 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 w

o
rk

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
; 

a
n
d

 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d

/o
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 a

s
 a

n
d
 

w
h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
. 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 

 !
"

#
$%

1
'(

)$
*

+
+

"
,

-
./

$0

39



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
2
2

P
g

n
o

.
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1
 =

 L
o

w
2

 =
 M

e
d

3
 =

 H
ig

h

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
te

1
4

R
4
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

tr
a

n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
o
lit

ic
a
l 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
: 

 
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 o
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
g
e
n
d
a
s
, 

w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
, 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
it
s
 w

o
rk

; 

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 n

e
e

d
e
d
 f

o
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
; 

a
n
d
 

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

o
le

 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 

m
o
re

 o
n
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
/c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 

o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
, 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
fo

-s
h
a
ri
n
g
. 

3
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y

Y
e
s

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 A

C
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
. 

T
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 6

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

re
v
ie

w
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

re
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 g

o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 h

a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
o
in

ts
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 m
o
re

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 o

rg
a
n
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

h
e
 '
tr

ip
a
rt

it
e
' 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
.

M
e

m
b

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

 o
n

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 
c
e

n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

p
u

b
lic

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
. 

S
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 m

o
re

 p
o
lic

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 

le
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
ly

 i
te

m
s
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 

b
u
t 

w
e
 w

ill
 k

e
e
p
 i
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

M
a

rc
h

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g

 !
"

#
$%

1
'(

)$
*

+
+

"
,

-
./

$0

40



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
3
 
  

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
g

n
o

.
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1
 =

 L
o

w
2

 =
 M

e
d

3
 =

 H
ig

h

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
te

1
4

R
5
 E

m
b
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 p
o
lit

ic
a
l 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 f
ro

m
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 

a
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 

a
n
d
 d

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

2
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

Y
e
s

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
e
ri
o
d
ic

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
, 

o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 e

v
e
ry

 s
ix

 
m

o
n
th

s
. 

T
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 f

ro
m

 
e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
h
e
m

 w
h
e
re

 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
.

W
e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o

r 
T

e
a
m

s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 a

s
 m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

.

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
0

1
5

R
6
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 b

y
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
w

h
e
re

 g
a
p
s
 a

re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 f

o
c
u
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

n
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 

H
o

v
e

.

3
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
L
a
w

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Y
e
s

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 M
e

m
b
e

r 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
h

a
rt

e
r 

P
lu

s
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

. 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
0

 !
"

#
$%

1
'(

)$
*

+
+

"
,

-
./

$0

41



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 
2
4

P
g

n
o

.
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1
 =

 L
o

w
2

 =
 M

e
d

3
 =

 H
ig

h

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
te

1
8

R
7

 E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

, 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 
w

it
h
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
la

ri
ty

 k
e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
s
 a

 
b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

n
d
 

re
a
c
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
.

3
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

Y
e
s

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 w

o
rk

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 L

S
P

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

u
ild

 
o
n
 i
ts

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
 t

h
e
 

g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
re

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il;

 a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
; 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
g
e

n
d
a
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

m
o
d
e
rn

 p
u
b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 m

e
d
ia

 a
n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
).

 !
"

#
$%

1
'(

)$
*

+
+

"
,

-
./

$0

42



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
5
 
  

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
g

n
o

.
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
1
 =

 L
o

w
2

 =
 M

e
d

3
 =

 H
ig

h

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e
d

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
D

a
te

T
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 
c
it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 a

n
d
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
’ 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

n
e

e
d

s
. 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

ls
o

 h
a

s
 f

o
c
u

s
e

s
 

o
n
 ‘
b
u
ild

in
g
 f

ro
m

 w
it
h
in

’ 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 s
ta

ff
 

a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

m
b
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

.
T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

ro
b
u
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
re

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
a

l 
d
ri
v
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

(L
A

A
) 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 A

re
a
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(C
A

A
) 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

s
 

 !
"

#
$%

1
'(

)$
*

+
+

"
,

-
./

$0

43



Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on audio, or in 
a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2009 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212  Fax: 0844 798 2945  Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.  

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

 !"#$%1'()$*++",-./$0

44



GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 

Overview and 
Scrutiny Commission 
Agenda Item 69 
Appendix 2 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

4.00PM 15 DECEMBER 2009 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 3, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Hamilton (Chairman), Watkins (Deputy Chairman), Kitcat, Oxley, 
Phillips, Simpson, Smith and C Theobald 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

47. AUDIT COMMISSION: GOOD GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
47.1 The Committee considered a report from the Director of Strategy & Governance 

regarding the Good Governance Review and report from the Audit Commission (for a 
copy see minute book). 

 
47.2 Ms Thompson briefly introduced the Audit Commission’s report on Good Governance 

and noted that the fieldwork for evidence for this report had been conducted at the end 
of 2008 and beginning of 2009. The draft report had been produced early in 2009, but 
for various reasons had taken time to finalise. She added however that there were very 
few differences between the draft report and the final report. 

 
 The main findings of the report were that the Constitutional and governance 

arrangements at Brighton & Hove City Council were robust and strong. There was 
recognition that there had been a major change in the way the Council conducted its 
governance arrangements resulting from the introduction of the new constitution and 
that this had a noticeable effect on the culture and operation of the authority. The District 
Auditor, Ms Thompson, believed the report reflected this inevitable settling in period, but 
highlighted that the organisation could not be complacent with regard to its own 
arrangements and suggested areas where improvements might be made in the form of 
an action plan (appended to the Audit Commission’s report). She added that the Audit 
Commission was not criticising the Council, but felt that it was important to regularly 
review and monitor arrangements to ensure they were strong and transparent. 

 
47.3 The Head of Law introduced the officer’s review of the Good Governance report and felt 

that the work of the Audit Commission was useful and overall complimentary of the 
Council’s arrangements. A number of strengths in the Council’s current arrangements 

45



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 15 DECEMBER 2009 

were identified in the report including the constitutional arrangements, partnership 
working, community engagement, Member development and Member conduct. The 
report identifies areas for improvement, but the Head of Law reiterated that these have 
to be seen in the proper context. The fieldwork had been conducted between October 
2008 and March 2009 shortly after a new Constitution had been introduced with a 
relatively new administration. This was therefore a period of adjustment and it is not 
surprising that Members and Officers felt unsure about aspects of the new 
arrangements. The action plan records improvements that have already taken place and 
others to be implemented in the coming months. The Head of Law thanked the Audit 
Commission for the work they had done in identifying these areas. 

 
47.4 The Chairman asked if there were any questions and Councillor Kitcat asked whether 

the Council had contracted this report from the Audit Commission or whether it was part 
of the regular programme of work the Audit Commission performed.  

 
Ms Thompson replied that examination of governance arrangements was part of the 
Code of Practise for authorities, but it was also something the Audit Commission had 
identified as necessary for Brighton & Hove City Council as a result of issues that had 
emerged from the 2007 Comprehensive Performance Assessment, which had 
highlighted governance as an area that needed reviewing. This work was delayed until 
the new arrangements were introduced, and could act as a compliment to the work of 
the Council on the six month review of the new Constitution. 

 
47.5 Councillor Kitcat was concerned there had been significant changes between the draft 

report and the final report and asked who had been responsible for negotiating these 
changes with the Audit Commission. Ms Thompson stated that the draft report had been 
written in the Audit Commission’s “house style”, which formulated a judgement, gave 
reasons for the judgement and assessed why this judgement was important. She 
recognised that this could often come across as austere and direct. There was a need to 
factor in the special circumstances of the Council at the time the evidence was 
gathered, and to make the report more encompassing of the situation the authority 
faced than was expressed in the original. This process had taken some time to achieve, 
but Ms Thompson recognised that the length of time between the draft report and the 
final report was unacceptable and assured Councillors that this would not happen in the 
future. 

 
47.6 The Head of Law stated that the essence of the final report was the same as the original 

draft and the recommendations from the Commission were essentially the same. There 
had been no Member involvement in between the draft and final stage, and the first 
Members to see the report had been the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of Audit 
Committee. He added that all of the changes made to the report had either been factual 
or contextual and were necessary for a complete report. 

 
47.7 Councillor Kitcat believed that the way in which the Council ran Cabinet Member 

Meetings was unusual when compared with other Councils and asked why this was not 
referred to in the report.  

 
The Head of Law stated that this area of work was identified in the report, as originally 
there had been the perception that many of the reports going to Cabinet Member 
Meetings were simply for ‘noting’ and this was not an efficient use of time for the 

46



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 15 DECEMBER 2009 

authority. However, following the six month review of the Constitution, the reporting 
processes and delegations had changed to reflect a more streamlined approach. This is 
also an area that has been considered as part of the 12 month Constitution review of the 
constitution and there will be proposals to change some of the CMMs. 

 
 The Head of Law understood that most other authorities did not hold Cabinet Member 

Meetings in public and decisions in these authorities were taken in private. However, 
when the new system had originally been designed at Brighton & Hove City Council, 
there was a commitment by members and officers to ensure the new system was as 
transparent and open as possible. He added that officers remained up-to-date with what 
other authorities were doing in this area, but he believed Brighton & Hove had 
formulated the most open and inclusive system as possible.  

 
47.8 The Chairman agreed that Brighton & Hove City Council had worked very hard to 

achieve the best system possible and thanked Councillor Oxley, who had led on the 
project, for his commitment to developing such a transparent system. Councillor Watkins 
agreed with this statement. 

 
47.9 Councillor Oxley felt that the current situation in Brighton & Hove was quite different 

from when the fieldwork was undertaken for the report, and this was not reflected in the 
final version. He stated that the 12 month Constitution review would be much more in-
depth and contain many more suggestions that further developed the recommendations 
in the Good Governance report. The Overview & Scrutiny function had been looked at, 
and further work would be undertaken on Cabinet Member Meetings, although when the 
system had originally been introduced, there was concern across the Council that it 
would be a very closed system, and a conscious effort was made to give open access to 
both Council Members and members of the public and press. He felt the report was 
valuable and important, but it was important to recognise how far the Council had 
developed from the point when the evidence base had been gathered.  

 
47.10 Councillor Mrs Theobald asked about the recommendations regarding raising the profile 

of the Standards Committee and the Head of Law stated that the Independent Chairman 
had already visited with Group Leaders and Groups, there was ongoing discussion and 
consultation around standards issues at the Council, and the Annual Report of the 
Standards Committee would be coming to Full Council in the new year, and would 
reflect the work that had been done, and was being done, to develop standards further. 
Councillor Oxley added that the Chairman of Standards Committee had been invited to 
the Governance Committee to discuss the recommendations from this report. 

 
47.11 Councillor Mrs Theobald expressed concern that the report stated that the Cabinet 

structure did not support efficient and effective decision making, but Councillor Oxley felt 
this was no longer a concern as effective measures had been put in place after the six 
month Constitution review to help streamline the Cabinet portfolios and make meetings 
more effective. Ms Thompson added that at the time of assessment between December 
2008 and February 2009 the Cabinet structure had not been working effectively. The 
Commission had not conducted follow-up work to assess the current situation however, 
but felt this could be assessed as part of the Commission’s Use of Resources work for 
2009/10. 

 

47



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 15 DECEMBER 2009 

47.12 Councillor Mrs Theobald expressed concern that the report highlighted problems with 
the Council developing a more user-friendly approach to performance reporting 
information and Councillor Oxley stated that this had been recognised and work was in 
progress in this area. Ms Thompson added that she had met with the current Chief 
Executive and this was a clear area he was focussing on for improvement. The 
Assistant Director, Improvement & Organisational Development agreed that this was an 
area under review and was aware there was a high density of information produced by 
the authority that was complex for both members and members of the public. 

 
47.13 RESOLVED – 
 
 1. That the report of the Audit Commission is noted; and 

2. That the proposed action in response to the recommendations of the Commission 
as set out in the action plan, listed at appendix 1 to the Commission’s report, is 
noted.  

 
 

The meeting concluded at 6.30pm 
 

Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

48



OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

Agenda Item 71 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

 

Subject: Brighton & Hove Third Sector Recovery Plan 

Date of Meeting: 26 January 2010 

Report of: Director of Strategy and Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  John Routledge Tel: 29-1112 

 E-mail: John.routledge@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE/ EXEMPTIONS  

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 

1.1 Brighton & Hove’s Third Sector Recovery Plan ‘Ready, Responding 
and Resilient’ sets out the vital role that the Third Sector plays in supporting 
the most vulnerable citizens and communities in the City in a recession. It 
proposes actions that will help the third sector contribute to the social, 
environmental and economic health of the city. 

 

1.2  The approach to developing the plan was presented to the June 2009 
OSC meeting and this report gives the Overview and Scrutiny Commission an 
opportunity to comment on the draft before it is approved by the Cabinet 
Member for Community Affairs, Inclusion & Internal Relations and Cabinet. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

(1) That Members consider and comment on the draft Plan. 

 

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

3.1 The Brighton & Hove Third Sector Recovery Plan ‘Ready Responding 
and Resilient’ is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

 

4.1 Consultation on the Draft Action Plan is set out in the body of the 
report. 

49



5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Financial Implications: 

5.1 The financial investment by the Council and partners in the third sector 
is set out in section 3 of the recovery plan. Future investment will be in line 
with budget strategies. The action plan does not assume any additional 
resources. 

 

Legal Implications: 

5.2 The recommendation is for members to consider and comment on the 
draft Plan.  Doing so is consistent with OSC's terms of reference.  These 
include reviewing and scrutinising all matters relating to Community Affairs, 
Equalities and Inclusion. 

  

Part 6.1, paragraph 2.1.5 of the council's constitution refers. 

 

Equalities Implications: 

5.3 Equalities implications have been considered in the drafting of this plan 
and an internal Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) will be carried out on the 
Action Plan prior to implementation 

 

Sustainability Implications: 

5.4 None 

 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

5.5 A healthy third sector contributes towards the prevention of crime and 
disorder. 

 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

5.6 There is a risk that the actions proposed will not go far enough to 
prevent shrinkage in third sector services and a reduction in the quality of life 
for some residents if the fiscal climate worsens further. However, the actions 
will support the third sector to minimise the impact of recession and be better 
prepared for the next economic upturn. 

 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

5.7 This action plan supports the corporate priority to ‘reduce inequality by 
increasing opportunity’ and supports a wide range of other city strategies, for 
example Community Strategy, Social Enterprise, Volunteering and the wider 
recession actions of the council. 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

50



Appendices: 

 

1. Brighton & Hove draft Third Sector Recovery Action Plan 

  

 

Documents In Members’ Rooms 

 

None.  

 

Background Documents 

 

None. 

51



52



Agenda Item 71 Appendix 1 
 

Ready, Responding, Resilient: 

Brighton & Hove Third Sector Recovery Plan 

 

Section 1: Introduction 

This plan both recognises and responds to the vital role that the Third Sector1 plays in 
supporting the most vulnerable citizens and communities in Brighton and Hove in a 
recession. In addition, this plan proposes actions that will help the third sector 
contribute to the social, environmental and economic health of the city, from which all 
residents and organisations benefit.  

 

Why have a third sector specific recovery plan? 

A struggling third sector will have a negative impact on the: 

• Continuity of services and a voice for vulnerable groups 

• Number of paid jobs locally 

• Volunteering opportunities and the added value that this brings  

• Potential partners responding to priority local needs; and 

• External resources brought into the area. 

 

Brighton and Hove Third Sector contributes approximately £96 million to the local economy 
annually and employs around 8,000 people, 7% of the local workforce. It provides at least 
19,000 volunteering opportunities and brings significant inward investment into the city. 43% 
of the income to local third sector organisations comes from grants of which nearly 62% 
comes from outside the city (Taking Account 2008).   

 

The aim of this plan is to identify and deliver a cross-sector package of measures to support 
third sector groups in the city, at a time when their income is falling and demand for their 
services is increasing. The objective is to build a more resilient third sector that is better 
equipped to survive an economic downturn and to rise to new opportunities in the recovery.   

 

Critically, the plan is about identifying action that compliments, links to and does not 
duplicate existing activity in the city, for example the Recession Relief package for 
businesses, the City Employment & Skills Plan, Social Enterprise Strategy or Volunteering 
Strategy. 

 

The city’s Recession Task Force, led by the city council, is co-ordinating the delivery of 
recession-focused strategies in the city. It fully supports and endorses this action plan. It is 
also supported by the city’s Local Strategic Partnership.  

 

The overall impact of the recession on the third sector and the communities they serve is well 
documented nationally, such as significant reductions in income and increased demand for 

                                                 
1
 Third Sector is not for profit organisations including community groups, voluntary organisations and social 

enterprises. 

53



 2 

their services. Some analysts believe that the recession has peaked but experiences of the 
last recession suggest that impacts on public and third sector budgets will lag behind the 
private sector. If recovery from the recession is slow, it may take several years for the third 
sector to recover.   

 

Hard evidence of the impact of the recession on the local third sector is still coming to light 
but it is known that there will be a variety of impacts, both positive and negative. Some 
organisations will fail, some will falter while others will emerge stronger. Parts of the sector 
are facing increased demands, others fewer. For some, income and costs will decline, for 
others they will increase.  

 
One snapshot survey reveals that in Brighton & Hove approximately three-quarters of the 
organisations that took part in a ‘Resilience and the Recession’ reported a reduction in 
income between April 2008 and April 2009. Nearly all the respondents anticipated that the 
levels of income available to the sector will get considerably worse.  

As well as being a local plan ‘Ready, Responding and Resilient’ has been submitted to the 
National Association for Voluntary and Community Action (NAVCA) to contribute towards the 
national picture and will inform the work of the Office of the Third Sector, other parts of 
central government and the Local Government Association with the intention that this will 
ultimately benefit the city. 

 

 

Section 2: Local impact of the recession 
 
This section describes the actual and likely impact of the recession on local third 
sector groups, drawing upon local and national sources of information.  The key 
message is that the third sector will suffer in the recession but that individual 
organisations will experience the downturn differently. Actions to support the local 
third sector will need to be individual, targeted and flexible. 

 

Key Findings 

The third sector in Brighton & Hove is experiencing a variety of impacts linked to the 
recession. The sector’s income does not always decrease in downturns. In previous 
downturns, some charities reported decreases in income, but almost an equal number 
reported increases and the same number again reported no change.   

 

In Brighton & Hove approximately three-quarters of the organisations surveyed in ‘Resilience 
and the Recession’ reported reduced income between April 2008 and April 2009 and all bar 
one anticipated that income available will get much worse.  
 
Most organisations have limited assets (or ‘capital’). The sector’s assets are held by a 
relatively small number of organisations, mostly foundations. Mid-sized organisations in 
particular have been unable to build significant surpluses and therefore reserves. These 
organisations are the most vulnerable to falls in income. 
 

54



 3 

Larger organisations are usually more capable of resilience although some larger 
charities are making redundancies or scenario planning for cuts in income. However, most 
evidence points to the resilience of large or more established charities during an economic 
downturn. Resilience reflects better strategic planning, larger assets, relatively diverse 
income streams, and greater capacity to fundraise effectively.   
 
Some larger third sector groups have experienced dramatic cutbacks and losses in the 
recession, for example The Shaw Trust and others heavily involved in large contracts to 
deliver training and job placements for unemployed people. 
 
Smaller organisations are the most likely to suffer hardship. A recurrent message from 
umbrella bodies is that in a recession the strong get stronger and the weak get weaker. 
Larger organisations typically have wider resources to draw upon, including larger financial 
reserves. They are also more likely to have professional fundraisers, campaigners, and 
volunteer co-ordinators who can respond to shifting needs. 
 
Some smaller third sector groups will successfully adapt to change as they are ‘light on 
their feet’ and move fast. Others lack the capacity to deal with increased financial or service 
pressures. This is of particular concern for the specialist services, innovation and 
campaigning that small third sector groups excel at. Vulnerable groups include those 
empowering and supporting minority communities and issues at grass roots level. 
 

 
What is happening to third sector income? 
 

• Public sector funding is crucial, accounting for 36p in every £1 raised by the third 
sector. Evidence suggests public sector funding falls in a recession.  

• A reduction in public funding is the most cited problem in a recent survey of local 
Third Sector Organisations2. 

• Charitable giving from individuals does not always fall in recession. There is 
evidence from both the UK and US demonstrating that recession simply slows the 
rate of increase in giving. Just as giving has failed to keep pace with increases in 
GDP, it will probably not fall proportionately as GDP contracts 

• Donor attitudes and habits can change in recession. A drop in donor income is a 
significant loss to third sector organisations as the difference is not likely to be made 
up for some time once donors re-establish their giving. 

• Corporate giving varies with economic performance and falling profits may 
generate a reduction in corporate giving. Such giving is more closely related to 
economic performance than to the wider economic climate, with corporate donations 
in the UK having increased steadily over time. The supply of corporate volunteers 
may, however, increase. 

• Charities’ investment income is linked to the value of assets and interest rates. 
The value of legacies falls in line with property prices and investment portfolios. Falls 
in investment income hits trusts and foundations hard and local third sector groups 
say that income from trusts is more difficult to access. However, the Association of 
Charitable Foundations says that trust giving is cushioned by long-term investment 
policies, reserves and endowments. More investment approaches from trusts and 
foundations may benefit social enterprise activity at the expense of more conventional 
revenue grants. Organisations dependent on membership subscriptions may 
suffer, for example, parents and toddler groups, sports and recreation groups, will 
see their income reduce as households cut back their expenditure.  

                                                 
2
 Resilience and Recession: How is the Third Sector Managing’, 2009, Jim Simpson Consultancy  and 

Community & Voluntary Sector Forum 

55



 4 

• Local third sector groups are prudent in managing less income in downturns. 
Very few are reporting a deficit. However, the local sector has seen significant 
number of redundancies with a few groups reducing wage levels.3 

 
 
What is happening to third sector staff and volunteers? 
 

• Some organisations are cutting staff, but this is not widespread.  Staff costs 
represent almost 50% of total third sector expenditure and there is evidence of some 
third sector groups making redundancies. According to NCVO research 20% of third 
sector groups anticipate redundancies in the medium term. In Brighton and Hove this 
would equate to around 1,600 jobs. 

• Some groups are freezing or lowering wages or putting staff on short term 
contracts. The third sector needs to avoid driving down wage levels if it is to avoid the 
longer term detrimental effect of recruiting the skilled staff they need to recover.   

• Job losses in social care contracts may be limited and there is a concentration of 
third sector staff in this area. Rising unemployment may place downward pressure on 
costs 

• Skills gaps and shortages seen in recent years may ease as there is more 
competition for jobs. Local third sector organisations are reporting that job enquires 
and applications are higher in 2009 that in 2008. However, more specialist jobs are 
difficult to recruit to, possibly due to individuals currently in employment not wishing to 
risk a move. 

• The impact on volunteering is mixed.  Local third sector groups say that the 
availability of volunteers is buoyant and the variety of skills has increased. 
Organisations with well established volunteering schemes are reporting 
improvements in retention of volunteers 

• Many organisations are experiencing budget pressures, making it difficult to 
recruit and train volunteers. There is a latent resource for the sector that is not being 
fully utilised. High numbers of potential volunteers presents the third sector with an 
opportunity to develop its workforce of the future, as many develop into paid workers.  

• Historically, the third sector is a training ground for individuals needing to learn 
new skills, either to return to work or to access employment in changing labour 
markets. With stretched resources third sector organisations are unable to provide as 
many opportunities.   

 

 
What is happening to demand for third sector services? 
 

• The impact of the downturn on third sector services is uneven across the 
diversity of the sector. Demand can change up or down depending on service 
specialism or location.  

• Demand for advice, information and support on debt, employment, training, re-
possession and social enterprise is increasing. There is likely to be more demand 
for third sector services in mental health, family breakdown, domestic violence and 
alcohol and drug dependency. 60% of organisations responding in ‘Resilience and 
Recession’ reported an increased demand for their services, 40% reported demand 
remaining static. 

• Other groups are experiencing a reduction in demand, such as fee-charging 
leisure and cultural activities.  

• The capacity of some providers to meet increased demand is limited for several 
reasons. In some cases providers do not have sufficient funding or staff. One local 

                                                 
3
 Ibid p.6  

56



 5 

advice agency is turning away ten people a day as it does not have the resources to 
meet increased demand. Another organisation cannot place people into jobs as 
vacancies in relevant job markets have dried up. 

• There will be mixed impact of public spending cuts on the third sector. Some 
third sector groups will be able to offer competitive services with the added value of 
volunteers and strong service user involvement. Other services may be kept ‘in 
house’ by public bodies trying to avoid redundancies or cut if they are not a statutory 
responsibility to deliver. 

• The third sector prevents and reduces demand on public services but third 
sector groups need to work with commissioners to demonstrate the financial value of 
such prevention if it is to survive a harsh financial climate. 

 

Local sources of information used: 

• CVSF position statement: ‘Impact of the recession on the local community and Third 
Sector’ (May 2009) 

• Chief Executives (Third Sector infrastructure organisations) meeting (May 2009) 

• Cross-sector conference ‘Don’t Get Burn: protecting the city from the heat of the 
recession’ (June 2009) 

• ‘Resilience and the Recession: How is the Third Sector Managing’ (June 2009)  

National sources: 

• ‘Backing Communities: Local Solutions’ (Local Government Association, 
February 2009) 

• NCVO website 

 

57



 6 

Section 3: Responding to the recession 

A number of actions to support the local third sector in the recession are 
already in place but much more can be done. This section describes some of 
the work in progress and proposes a number of actions to increase resilience 
and help the sector prepare for new opportunities and recovery. 

The council, local NHS, wider public sector, business and the third sector itself 
already provides significant support to local third sector groups. The council provides 
an annual and three year strategic grants programme together worth over £1.5m 
per year and commissions the third sector to deliver £500,000 of community 
development and ‘stronger communities’ support across the city. In addition, the 
council invests over £25 million per year in third sector service contracts in areas 
such as housing support, adult social care and youth services. 

 
In March 2009 the council invested £75,000 from grants contingency to kick start 
action on some immediate recession concerns for the third sector and local 
residents. These grants supported: 

• Debt advice to residents delivered by local third sector advice agencies; 

• Specialist capacity building support for local groups, including specialist 
Human Resource (HR) support; 

• Promotion of local Credit Union savings and loans to help keep residents 
out of the hands of loan sharks and provide small scale savings accounts; 

• Development of the city volunteering strategy with local businesses on 
employee volunteering, skills diversification and temporary secondments. 

 
In addition the council is exploring the scope for asset transfer from the public and 
private sectors to the third sector. This could increase the scope for under-used land 
and buildings in the city to be put to more productive use and improve the viability of 
local third sector organisations.  
 
The Sussex Community Foundation (SCF) is building an endowment fund to benefit 
local third sector groups in Sussex, including Brighton & Hove. This fund provides an 
opportunity to build an endowment, for every £1 donated SCF receives £2.56 
because of tax relief and match funding from government. The council is looking at 
the feasibility of council staff being offered the opportunity to give through payroll.  
 
The council is working with public and third sector partners to make procurement 
and commissioning opportunities more accessible to local third sector 
organisations. The actions include: 

• Drawing up a matrix of third sector income in the city, in partnership with the 
NHS and a cross-sector steering group. This will form a baseline from which 
all sectors will gain improved intelligence to inform future commissioning; 

• Working with smaller third sector groups to increase their capacity to compete 
for contracts, through consortia, merger and/or partnership development; 

• Working with local commissioners to improve their knowledge and 
understanding of third sector service providers in the city. 

 
The ChangeUp Consortium, made up local third sector infrastructure groups, is 
looking at ways of improving fundraising advice available in the city and to 
contribute to discussions with local funders through a Funders Forum. ChangeUp 

58



 7 

members also provide a wide range of other support services to local third sector 
groups, some funded by the national CapacityBuilders programme. 
 
The NHS provides small grants to local third sector groups through it’s ‘Healthy 
Neighbourhoods’ funding. On a larger scale, the NHS buys a range of health 
services from the third sector and has recently consulted upon its’ future 
commissioning arrangements. These will include greater opportunities for social 
enterprise as part of a ‘world class’ commissioning regime. 
 
Many other public bodies also commission significant third sector services in the 
city, including the Department for Work & Pensions (DWP), Legal Services 
Commission (LSC), Learning & Skills Council (LSC), Ministry of Justice (MoJ), the 
Treasury and the European Union. 
 
For social enterprise, specialist support is available from Business Link and from 
networks in the city run by the Business Community Partnership and others. Wider 
support to the third sector is provided ‘in kind’ by volunteers and pro bono 
arrangements with local companies. 
 
 

Priority Actions 
 
In light of existing activity and in response to the research and findings 
outlined above, the following priorities have been identified as a means by 
which the third sector and its partners can build on the strengths of the sector, 
protect against threats from the recession and capitalise on opportunities now 
and into the future.  
 
Equalities 
For all the actions identified, there are equalities issues to be addressed to make the 
plan holistic and inclusive. Actions need to reach relevant communities of interest 
and identity as well as more deprived communities and areas of the city. Actions also 
need to reach small groups and larger organisations delivering key services. To this 
end, an equalities impact assessment (EIA) will be undertaken on this Plan; 
 
 

Three areas for priority action in 2010 
 
Finance 
 

Human Resources 
 

Capacity 
 

Priority 1: Finance 

Key Issue: Diversify income and improve financial management 

Key actions:        Lead  
  

1. Increase fund raising, business planning and financial                  
management support including trading & tendering   ChangeUp 

59



 8 

2. Support third sector involvement in procurement &          ChangeUp/           
commissioning including learning on consortia   PSB 

3. Convene local and regional Funder Forum   BHCC 

 

Priority 2: Human Resources 

Key Issue: Recruit, Retain & Support paid and unpaid staff  

Key actions: 

4. Increase support for recruitment and retention of staff                         
and volunteers including peer support for key staff  ChangeUp  

5. Implement city volunteering strategy including council                                   
volunteering scheme      Impetus/BHCC 

 

Priority 3: Capacity 

Key Issue: Support to services and communities in most need 

Key actions: 

6. Benefit take-up campaign      BHCC/ASSG 

7. Credit Union campaign     ESCU/BHCC 

8. Increase support to high demand services   ChangeUp 
 
 

Cross Cutting Project 
Brighton & Hove City Council is exploring the development of a cross cutting project 
with partners to support four key actions in this plan: 

• Benefits take-up campaign      

• Credit Union campaign 

• Funding Advice 

• Council Volunteering programme 
 

60



 9 

 

Section 4: Action Plan 

 

Finance  

Action Outcome Timescale Lead Partners Resources 

1. Fund raising and 
financial management         
support  

2. Procurement &         

commissioning support 

3. Convene Funder 
Forum 

     

Human Resources  

Action Outcome Timescale Lead Partners Resources 

4. Increase support for 
recruitment and 

     

6
1



 10 

retention of staff and 
volunteers  

5. Implement city 

volunteering strategy 
including council                                   
volunteering scheme 

  

Capacity      

Action Outcome Timescale Lead Partners Resources 

6. Benefit take-up 
campaign 

7. Credit Union 
campaign 

8. Increase support to 
high demand services 

Inflow of benefits for 
people on low income 

Affordable loans and 
savings 

Resilient third sector  
delivering key 
services 

    

Monitoring Arrangements 

• Progress on this action plan will be reported to the Stronger Communities Partnership (SCP)  

• An equalities impact assessment (EIA) will be carried out by the city council and CVSF. 

6
2



OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

Agenda Item 72 

 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

  

Subject: Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009  

Date of Meeting: 26 January 2010 

Report of: Director of Strategy & Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Barbara Green  

Tom Hook 

Tel: 29-1081 

29-1110 

 E-mail: barbara.green@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

tom.hook@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY & BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This is the first year of Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) judgements. 

Attached in Appendices 1 & 2 are the final published versions of the Area and 
Organisational assessments. These were published on 9 December 2009.  

 
1.2 The information contained within the CAA reports will help Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees in prioritising agenda items. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny Commission: 
 

a) Notes the findings and judgements contained within the Comprehensive 
Area & Organisation Assessment reports 

b) Asks Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairs to take account of the CAA 
report and action plan when developing work-programmes 

 
3.  RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 

Area Assessment – summary of findings 
 

3.1  Overall the assessment is very positive, highlighting good partnership working 
delivering outcomes locally, particularly in terms of the night time economy and 
reducing crime. 

 
3.2 The report proposes to award a green flag for partnership working reducing 

youth disorder and improving the security and quality of life for people in the city 
at night time. The green flag reflects innovative practice and positive outcomes 
locally. 

 

63



 

 

3.3 The report also identifies areas in need of improvement, these include;  
§ Numbers of people on JSA and numbers of children living in poverty  
§ Health inequalities – men die earlier on average than elsewhere in 

comparable areas 
§ Drug misuse, hospital admissions due to alcohol related problems and 

suicide rates are highlighted as areas of concern 
§ Improve academic results of young people at age 16 
§ Improve the delivery plan to ensure it reflects activity on how we are 

strengthening our communities and involving people; sustainable transport 
and delivering quality services 

   
3.4 The thematic partnerships and PSB will review these areas for improvement and 

ensure that where necessary the Delivery Plan is strengthened and the focus 
increased on areas in most need of improvement. 

 
3.5 The report also includes a red flag on housing, specifically performance against 

the decent homes standard for council housing stock. The red flag reflects the 
Audit Commission’s (advised by the Housing Inspectorate), opinion that our 
approach on decent represents an ‘unmanaged risk’ and poor performance.  
Despite robust challenge by the council and its partners, it remains the 
Commission’s  view that achievement of the decent homes standard (DHS) by 
2013 remains ‘uncertain’ and that ‘the council and its partners need to do more 
to ensure contingency plans are on place so that minimum standards are met at 
the earliest opportunity’. 

 
3.6      Decent homes performance continues to be regularly review by TMT and 

Cabinet to ensure that the rate of improvement continues to deliver.  
 
   Organisation Assessment – summary of findings 
 
3.7  The Organisation Assessment combines and summarises the Ofsted & Care 

Quality Commission assessments and provides and an overall judgement for the 
city council, that we are ‘performing well’. This is broken down into a managing 
performance and use of resources scores. We have been assessed as 
‘performing well’, with the following breakdown: 

 
1 = Performs poorly 2 = performs adequately 3 = performs well 4 =performs 
excellently 

 

Managing performance  3 out 4 

Use of resources  3 out 4 

Managing finances 3 out 4 

Governing the business  2 out 4 

Managing resources 3 out 4 

Service assessments  

Children’s services  Performs well 

Adult social care services  Performs well 

64



 

 

        
3.8 The assessment highlights many areas of good performance including; providing 

good quality services for older people, the children’s homes and fostering agency 
are highlighted as providing an outstanding service, work to support local 
business, improvement in numbers of young people not in employment, 
education or training (NEETs) and high levels of satisfaction with the city as a 
place to live, with a strong reputation for celebrating diversity. 

 
3.9 Managing our resources, finances and performance were all assessed as 

performing well. Governing the business was assessed as performing 
adequately, data quality and the level of challenge by scrutiny areas were 
highlighted as needing improvement. 

 
3.10 The report recognises the continuing progress the council has made providing 

value for money and has clear plans in place for taking this work forward and has 
set challenging targets for the next few years. 

 
4. CONSULTATION: 
 
4.1 The Management Team and Directorate Management Teams have been 

consulted on the new national indicator set and on introduction of the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment.  

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The CAA is of significant reputational importance to partners, stakeholders and 

investors.  The findings and judgements maintains the council’s reputation as a 
well-managed organisation that makes good use of its resources, including those 
invested with and by partnering organisations. The council with partner 
organisations will review resources and performance in those areas identified as 
in need of improvement. Performance against the national indicator set will be 
reflected in the level of LAA Reward grant that is attainable subject to satisfactory 
progress. 

 
 Finance Officer consulted: Anne Silley     Date: 14/12/09 
 

Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
 
 Legal Officer consulted:  Elizabeth Culbert   Date: 16/12/09 

 
Equalities Implications: 

 
5.3 The proposed new performance management framework aims to incorporate 

monitoring of progress against equalities and inclusion outcomes in the city. 
  
 Sustainability Implications: 
 

65



 

 

5.4 The proposed new performance management framework aims to incorporate 
monitoring of progress against sustainability outcomes in the city. 

 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications: 
 
5.5 The management of performance is important and contributes to avoiding the risk 

that the council’s improvement priorities will not be delivered. Progress against 
performance indicators informs our risk and opportunity management 
assessments. 

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications: 
 
5.6 Reducing crime and disorder is a central theme of the Corporate Plan and the 

Local Area Agreement and monitoring progress against these outcomes is a key 
element of the proposed new performance management framework. 

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.7 Cabinet and The Management Team  will continue to have a Performance Focus 

sessions, this is recognised as good practice and allows for both a quarterly 
overview of the organisation performance against the LAA and more spotlighted 
discussions on areas that require additional discussion. These discussions will 
feed into the service planning timetable and establishment of a new corporate 
plan in the future. This work will drive local improvement in the future and meet 
the requirements of the CAA framework. 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices:  
 
1. Comprehensive Area Assessment report  
 
2. Comprehensive Organisation Assessment report 

 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 
None  
 
Background Documents 
 
None  

 

66



 !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(

3!-)(311-119-'%((

K,#$-&b&K$1$45$(&DFFb&

 !""#$%&' (

67



 !"#$"#%&

 !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-()%()(#.)'/-((

+&0("1( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(*&"'#2((

34&5%( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-((

+&0(0-..(*&(6!"&!"%"-1(7&!( !"#$%&'()'*(

+&,-(-86!-11(/&995'"%:('--*1()'*(

)16"!)%"&'12((

;!"&!"%"-1(7&!( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(

 ;!&9&%"'#(-'%-!6!"1-()'*(.-)!'"'#((

 <-*5/"'#(/!"9-()'*("96!&,"'#(1)7-%:((

 =96!&,"'#($-).%$()'*(0-..(4-"'#((

 =96!&,"'#($&51"'#()'*()77&!*)4"."%:((

 >%!-'#%$-'"'#(/&995'"%"-1()'*("',&.,"'#(

6-&6.-((

 ;!&9&%"'#(!-1&5!/-(-77"/"-'/:()'*(-'$)'/"'#(

%$-(-',"!&'9-'%((

 ;!&9&%"'#(151%)"')4.-(%!)'16&!%((

 ;!&,"*"'#(?5)."%:(1-!,"/-1((

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     2     Brighton and Hove

 !""#$%&' (

68



'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$&,#&,&*0,"1$&

2+)%&)"-$3$"-$"#&,%%$%%4$"#&56&%)7&)"%3$1#!(,#$%&%$#%&!8#&+!9&9$00&0!1,0&
3850)1&%$(/)1$%&,($&#,1:0)"*&#+$&4,;!(&)%%8$%&)"&'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$<&=#&%,6%&+!9&
9$00&#+$6&,($&-$0)/$()"*&5$##$(&($%80#%&>!(&0!1,0&3$!30$&,"-&+!9&0):$06&#+$%$&,($&
#!&)43(!/$&)"&>8#8($<&=>?&,"-&!"06&)>?&!8(&,%%$%%4$"#&%+!9%&#+,#&#+$&>!00!9)"*&
%3$1),0&1)(184%#,"1$%&,($&4$#&)"&($0,#)!"&#!&,&4,;!(&)%%8$?&9$&8%$&>0,*%&#!&
+)*+0)*+#&!8(&;8-*$4$"#%<&@$&8%$&,&*($$"&>0,*&#!&+)*+0)*+#&9+$($&!#+$(%&1,"&
0$,("&>(!4&!8#%#,"-)"*&,1+)$/$4$"#%&!(&)43(!/$4$"#%&!(&,"&)""!/,#)!"&#+,#&
+,%&/$(6&3(!4)%)"*&3(!%3$1#%&!>&%811$%%<&@$&8%$&,&($-&>0,*&#!&+)*+0)*+#&9+$($&
9$&+,/$&%)*")>)1,"#&1!"1$("%&,5!8#&($%80#%&,"-&>8#8($&3(!%3$1#%&#+,#&,($&"!#&
5$)"*&#,1:0$-&,-$A8,#$06<&2+)%&4$,"%&#+,#&0!1,0&3,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&-!&
%!4$#+)"*&4!($&!(&-)>>$($"#&#!&)43(!/$&#+$%$&3(!%3$1#%<&

@$-(.&/).()!-)(

'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$& )#6&)%&0!1,#$-&!"&#+$&%!8#+&1!,%#&!>&B"*0,"-<&C5!8#&DEF&
FFF&3$!30$&0)/$&)"&#+$&1)#6&,"-&#+$&"845$(&)%&)"1($,%)"*<&2+$&3!380,#)!"&)%&
*$"$(,006&6!8"*&,"-&-)/$(%$&,"-&4,"6&3$!30$&9$($&5!("&!8#%)-$&B"*0,"-<&2+$&
1)#6&)%&+!4$&#!&#9!&8")/$(%)#)$%&,"-&#+$($&)%&,&0,(*$&%#8-$"#&3!380,#)!"<&G$!30$&
,($&,##(,1#$-&#!&#+$&1)#6&5$1,8%$&!>&)#%&/)5(,"#&,"-&/,()$-&180#8($&,"-&)#%&
%$,%)-$&0!1,#)!"&10!%$&#!&H!"-!"<&I$%#0$-&5$#9$$"&#+$&1!,%#&,"-&#+$&J!8#+&
K!9"%?&)#&)%&+!4$&#!&#+$&'()*+#!"&G,/)0)!"&,"-&)#&+!%#%&%!4$&!>&#+$&0,(*$%#&
>$%#)/,0%&)"&B"*0,"-<&

L,"6&3$!30$&)"&#+$&1)#6&,($&+)*+06&A8,0)>)$-&58#&#+$&0!1,0&$1!"!46&)%&
-!4)",#$-&56&4,"6&0!9&%:)00&;!5%<&C-4)%%)!"%&#!&+!%3)#,0%&($0,#$-&#!&,01!+!0?&
%8)1)-$&(,#$%&,"-&4$"#,0&)00"$%%&,($&+)*+&1!43,($-&#!&!#+$(&,($,%<&

2+$&1)#6&1!8"1)0?&3850)1&%$(/)1$%?&/!08"#,(6&!(*,")%,#)!"%&,"-&58%)"$%%$%&9!(:&
#!*$#+$(&#!&)43(!/$&#+$&A8,0)#6&!>&0)>$&>!(&0!1,0&3$!30$<&2+$6&+,/$&,*($$-&!"&
3()!()#)$%&#+$6&9)00&#,1:0$&,"-&+,/$&%$#&#,(*$#%&>!(&)43(!/$4$"#<&

2+$&"$7#&%$1#)!"&#$00%&6!8&+!9&'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$M%&3850)1&%$(/)1$%&,($&-!)"*&)"&
$,1+&!>&#+$)(&0!1,0&3()!()#6&,($,%<&

A!--'(7.)#1(G(-8/-6%"&').(6-!7&!9)'/-(&!(

"''&,)%"&'(%$)%(&%$-!1(/)'(.-)!'(7!&9(

[($$"&>0,*_&G,(#"$(%+)3&9!(:)"*&($-81)"*&6!8#+&-)%!(-$(&,"-&)43(!/)"*&
#+$&%$18()#6&,"-&A8,0)#6&!>&0)>$&>!(&3$!30$&)"&#+$&1)#6&,#&")*+#&#)4$&

<-*(7.)#1(G(1"#'"7"/)'%(/&'/-!'1H()/%"&'(

'--*-*(

V$-&>0,*_& !8"1)0&+!4$%&"!#&4$$#)"*&5,%)1&%#,"-,(-%&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     3     Brighton and Hove

 !""#$%&' (

69



.!9&)%&'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$&-!)"*N&

;!&9&%"'#(-'%-!6!"1-()'*(.-)!'"'#(

G,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&#+$&0!1,0&$1!"!46&9$00<&2+$6&+,/$&9!(:$-&10!%$06&
#!*$#+$(&#!&+$03&0!1,0&3$!30$&,"-&58%)"$%%$%&#+(!8*+&#+$&($1$%%)!"<&O!(&
$7,430$?&#+$6&+,/$&%$#&83&58%)"$%%&10)")1%&,"-&!>>$($-&>($$&#(,)")"*&>!(&3$!30$&
9+!&+,/$&0!%#&#+$)(&;!5%<&L,"6&($%)-$"#%&,($&9$00&$-81,#$-&,"-&%#8-$"#&
"845$(%&,($&+)*+&9)#+&#9!&8")/$(%)#)$%&)"&#+$&1)#6<&2+$($&)%&,&%#(!"*&>)","1),0&
,"-&58%)"$%%&%$(/)1$&%$1#!(&58#&4,"6&;!5%&,($&0!9&%:)00$-<&G,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&
#+)%&,"-&9!(:&+,(-&#!&%!0/$&#+$&4)%4,#1+&5$#9$$"&%:)00%&,"-&-$4,"-&,1(!%%&
#+$&1)#6<&'8#&#+$($&)%&4!($&#!&-!&)"108-)"*&)43(!/)"*&#+$&%1+!!0&($%80#%&!>&
6!8"*&3$!30$&,#&,*$&PQ<&

<-*5/"'#(/!"9-()'*("96!&,"'#(1)7-%:(

G,(#"$(%+)3&9!(:)"*&+,%&($-81$-&6!8#+&-)%!(-$(&,"-&4,-$&#+$&1)#6&,&%,>$(&
30,1$&,#&")*+#<&2+$($&)%&481+&#+,#&!#+$(%&1,"&0$,("&>(!4&,"-&9$&+,/$&)"108-$-&
,&*($$"&>0,*&#!&%+,($&#+$&0$,(")"*&<&

=96!&,"'#($-).%$()'*(0-..(4-"'#(

2+$&+$,0#+&!>&3$!30$&)"&#+$&1)#6&)%&/,()$-<&L$"&-)$&$,(0)$(&!"&,/$(,*$&#+,"&
$0%$9+$($&,"-&#+$($&,($&4!($&$,(06&-$,#+%&>(!4&1,"1$(<&G,(#"$(%&%+!9&
%#(!"*&1!44)#4$"#&#!&#,1:0)"*&#+$&/,(),#)!"%&)"&+$,0#+&,1(!%%&#+$&1)#6&,"-&#+$6&
#,(*$#&#+$)(&$>>!(#&9+$($&)#&1,"&+,/$&4!%#&)43,1#<&'8#&#+$($&)%&481+&4!($&#!&
-!&R&-(8*&4)%8%$?&+!%3)#,0&%#,6%&($0,#$-&#!&,01!+!0&,"-&%8)1)-$&(,#$%&,($&+)*+<&
G,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&%$#&10$,($(&#,(*$#%&>!(&#+$&>8#8($&#!&$"%8($&#+$6&4,:$&,&($,0&
-)>>$($"1$<&

=96!&,"'#($&51"'#()'*()77&!*)4"."%:(

2+$&1)#6&+,%&+)*+&+!8%$&3()1$%<&G,(#"$(%&9!(:&9$00&#!&3(!/)-$&+!4$%&#+,#&0!1,0&
3$!30$&1,"&,>>!(-&#!&586&!(&($"#&,"-&#!&($-81$&+!4$0$%%"$%%<&

'8#&,04!%#&+,0>&!>&0!1,0&1!8"1)0&+!4$%&>,)0&#!&4$$#&4)")484&*!/$("4$"#&
%#,"-,(-%<&2+)%&3!!(&3$(>!(4,"1$&4$,"%&#+,#&,5!8#&Q?FFF&1!8"1)0&+!4$%&-!&
"!#&+,/$&5,%)1&A8,0)#6&!>&>,1)0)#)$%&%81+&,%&4!-$("&:)#1+$"%&,"-&5,#+(!!4%?&
3(!3$(&+$,#)"*&,"-&)"%80,#)!"<&2+)%&,>>$1#%&%)*")>)1,"#&"845$(%&!>&3$!30$&)"&#+$&
1)#6&4,"6&!>&9+!4&,0($,-6&%8>>$(&-)%,-/,"#,*$&>!(&$7,430$&#+(!8*+&
8"$430!64$"#&,"-&)00&+$,0#+<&2+$& !8"1)0&-$1)-$-&#!&#(,"%>$(&1!8"1)0&+!4$%&#!&
,&+!8%)"*&,%%!1),#)!"&58#&,&#$","#&5,00!#&)"&DFFS&($;$1#$-&#+)%&!3#)!"<&=#&+,%&
9!(:$-&+,(-&%)"1$&#+$"&#!&)"/!0/$&#$","#%&)"&-$1)%)!"%&!/$(&#+$&>8#8($&!>&#+$&
+!8%)"*&%#!1:<&.!9$/$(?&)#&)%&10$,(&#+$&*!/$("4$"#M%&#,(*$#&>!(&,1+)$/)"*&#+$&
-$1$"16&%#,"-,(-&56&DFPF&9)00&5$&4)%%$-?&0,(*$06&-8$&#!&0,1:&!>&3(!*($%%&)"&
>)"-)"*&,&9!(:,50$&%!08#)!"<&

H,(*$&,4!8"#%&!>&4!"$6&,($&"$$-$-&#!&>8"-&#+$&9!(:&($A8)($-&#!&5()"*&
+!4$%&83&#!&,"&,11$3#,50$&%#,"-,(-<&2+$($&+,%&5$$"&($1$"#&3(!*($%%&9)#+&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     4     Brighton and Hove

 !""#$%&' (

70



H,(*$&,4!8"#%&!>&4!"$6&,($&"$$-$-&#!&>8"-&#+$&9!(:&($A8)($-&#!&5()"*&
+!4$%&83&#!&,"&,11$3#,50$&%#,"-,(-<&2+$($&+,%&5$$"&($1$"#&3(!*($%%&9)#+&
30,"%&58#&4,;!(&8"1$(#,)"#)$%&($4,)"<&2+)%&4$,"%&#+,#&#+$&3(!;$1#$-&
,1+)$/$4$"#&!>&4)")484&%#,"-,(-%&56&DFPT&)%&"!#&1$(#,)"<&2+$& !8"1)0&9)#+&
)#%&3,(#"$(%&"$$-%&#!&-!&4!($&#!&$"%8($&1!"#)"*$"16&30,"%&,($&)"&30,1$&%!&#+,#&
4)")484&%#,"-,(-%&,($&4$#&,#&#+$&$,(0)$%#&!33!(#8")#6<&

>%!-'#%$-'"'#(/&995'"%"-1()'*("',&.,"'#(

6-&6.-(

.)*+&"845$(%&!>&($%)-$"#%&5$0)$/$&#+,#&3$!30$&>(!4&-)>>$($"#&5,1:*(!8"-%&*$#&
!"&9$00&#!*$#+$(<&2+)%&)%&)43!(#,"#&)"&,&-)/$(%$&1)#6&9)#+&,&()1+&4)7&!>&
1!448")#)$%<&2+$&1)#6&+,%&,"&)"#$(",#)!",0&($38#,#)!"&>!(&1$0$5(,#)"*&-)/$(%)#6&
,"-&#+)%&)%&3,(#&!>&)#%&,##(,1#)!"&#!&($%)-$"#%&,"-&/)%)#!(%<&2+$&%#(!"*&(!0$&!>&,(#%&
,"-&>$%#)/,0%&1!"#()58#$%&#!&#+$&%$"%$&!>&5$0!"*)"*<&O!(&$7,430$&#+$&1)#6&)%&
+!4$&#!&4,"6&9$00R:"!9"&>$%#)/,0%&%81+&,%&UG()-$M<&'8#&#+$&3,(#"$(%+)3&-!$%&
"!#&($1$)/$&481+&)">!(4,#)!"&,5!8#&#+)%&3()!()#6<&=#&"$$-%&#!&%$#&!8#&)#%&
$73$1#,#)!"%&10$,(06&,"-&#(,1:&%811$%%<&

;!&9&%"'#(!-1&5!/-(-77"/"-'/:()'*(

-'$)'/"'#(%$-(-',"!&'9-'%(

G,(#"$(%&,($&%,/)"*&$"$(*6&)"&4,"6&9,6%&58#&1,(5!"&-)!7)-$&$4)%%)!"%&,($&"!#&
>,00)"*&A8)1:06&$"!8*+&#!&4$$#&0!1,0&#,(*$#%<&2+$($&,($&4,"6&$7,430$%&!>&
$"$(*6&%,/)"*&R&%81+&,%&$0$1#()1&/$+)10$&1+,(*)"*&3!)"#%&!"&#+$&1)#6&%#($$#%<&

V$%)-$"#%&#+)":&%#($$#%&,($&10$,"<&2+$($&+,%&5$$"&,&%811$%%>80&>!18%&!"&
($-81)"*&*(,>>)#)&,"-&0)##$(<&2+$&,4!8"#&!>&9,%#$&1!00$1#$-&)%&"!#&>,00)"*&,%&
A8)1:06&,%&%!4$&!#+$(&,($,%<&2+$&1)#6&+,%&4,"6&>)"$&58)0-)"*%&,"-&
1!"%$(/,#)!"&,($,%<&H!1,0&3$!30$&,($&5$)"*&1!"%80#$-&!"&30,"%&>!(&#+$&>8#8($<&
G,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&,0)*"&30,"%&>!(&"$9&+!4$%&,"-&;!5%&9)#+&3(!#$1#)"*&#+$&
",#8(,0&$"/)(!"4$"#<&

;!&9&%"'#(151%)"')4.-(%!)'16&!%(

2+$&1)#6&"$$-%&$>>$1#)/$&#(,"%3!(#&#!&4,:$&%8($&#+,#&0!1,0&3$!30$&,"-&/)%)#!(%&
1,"&4!/$&,(!8"-&#+$&1)#6<&H!1,0&3$!30$&,($&8%)"*&58%$%&4!($&,"-&#+$6&,($&
1610)"*&,"-&9,0:)"*&4!($<&2+$&"$9&#(,"%3!(#&30,"&"$$-%&#!&10,()>6&#+$&9,6&
>!(9,(-&<&G,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&>)"-&9,6%&#!&%$#&10$,(&4$,%8($%&!>&%811$%%&,*,)"%#&
9+)1+&#+$6&1,"&#(,1:&3(!*($%%<&

;!&,"*"'#(?5)."%:(1-!,"/-1(

=#&)%&"!#&10$,(&9+,#&#+)%&3()!()#6&-$0)/$(%&>!(&0!1,0&3$!30$<&=#&)%&4!($&,5!8#&+!9&
$>>$1#)/$&!(*,")%,#)!"%&,($&#+,"&9+,#&3,(#"$(%&1,"&-!&#!*$#+$(<&G,(#"$(%&"$$-&
#!&1!"%)-$(&9+,#&)%&*,)"$-&56&+,/)"*&#+)%&,%&,&3()!()#6<&

C5!8#&'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     5     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

71



C&($1$"#&%8(/$6&%+!9%&#+,#&)"&'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$&WQ&3$(&1$"#&!>&3$!30$&,($&
%,#)%>)$-&9)#+&#+$)(&)44$-),#$&0!1,0&,($,&,%&,&30,1$&#!&0)/$<&2+)%&)%&+)*+$(&#+,"&
#+$&,/$(,*$&>!(&%)4)0,(&,($,%&,"-&+)*+$(&#+,"&#+$&",#)!",0&,/$(,*$&!>&WP&3$(&
1$"#<&

'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$&)%&,&-)/$(%$&,"-&-6",4)1&1)#6&#+,#&,##(,1#%&,&()1+&4)7&!>&
3$!30$&,"-&1!448")#)$%<&=#&+,%&,"&)"#$(",#)!",0&($38#,#)!"&>!(&)#%&180#8($?&,(#%&
,"-&>$%#)/,0%<&=#%&%$,%)-$&0!1,#)!"&"$,(&H!"-!"&4,:$%&)#&,##(,1#)/$&#!&4!($&
#+,"&$)*+#&4)00)!"&/)%)#!(%&,&6$,(&<&I$%#0$-&5$#9$$"&#+$&1!,%#&,"-&#+$&J!8#+&
K!9"%?&)#&)%&+!4$&#!&#+$&'()*+#!"&G,/)0)!"&,"-&)#&+!%#%&%!4$&!>&#+$&0,(*$%#&
>$%#)/,0%&)"&B"*0,"-<&2+$%$&)"108-$&#+$&'()*+#!"&O$%#)/,0&X &#+$&0,(*$%#&,(#%&
>$%#)/,0&)"&B"*0,"-&R&,"-&#+$&G()-$&O$%#)/,0?&#+$&1!8"#(6M%&0,(*$%#&>$%#)/,0&>!(&
0$%5),"?&*,6?&5)%$78,0&,"-&#(,"%*$"-$(&3$!30$<&

=#&+,%&,&*(!9)"*&,"-&/,()$-&3!380,#)!"&!>&,5!8#&DEF&FFF<&Y"0):$&"$)*+5!8()"*&
#!9"%&X &9+)1+&,($&+!4$&#!&*(!9)"*&"845$(%&!>&!0-$(&($%)-$"#%&R&#+$&1)#6&+,%&
,&+)*+&3(!3!(#)!"&!>&3$!30$&!>&9!(:)"*&,*$<&2+$($&,($&4,"6&%#8-$"#%<&L,"6&
3$!30$&9$($&5!("&!8#%)-$&B"*0,"-&,"-&#+$($&,($&4,"6&9!(:$(%&>(!4&$,%#$("&
B8(!3$,"&1!8"#()$%<&2+$($&,($&4,"6&3$!30$&9+!&,($&0$%5),"?&*,6?&5)%$78,0&!(&
#(,"%*$"-$(&ZH['2\<&

L,"6&,($,%&!>&#+$&1)#6&,($&3(!%3$(!8%&58#&%!4$&3,(#%&,($&,4!"*&#+$&4!%#&
-$3()/$-&#$"&3$(&1$"#&)"&#+$&1!8"#(6<&2+$&"845$(&!>&3$!30$&!"&]!5&J$$:$(%&
C00!9,"1$&)%&+)*+&)"&%!4$&3,(#%&!>&#+$&1)#6&,"-&4!($&#+,"&DF&3$(&1$"#&!>&
1+)0-($"&0)/$&)"&+!8%$+!0-%&9)#+&"!&9!(:)"*&,-80#%<&

H!1,0&3$!30$&,($&*$"$(,006&0$%%&+$,0#+6&#+,"&$0%$9+$($&)"&B"*0,"-<&L$"&,"-&
)">,"#%&,($&0):$06&#!&-)$&$,(0)$(&#+,"&)"&!#+$(&3,(#%&!>&#+$&($*)!"&,"-&#+$($&,($&
4!($&$,(06&-$,#+%&>(!4&1,"1$(&#+,"&#+$&B"*0,"-&,/$(,*$<&L!($&3$!30$&,($&
,-4)##$-&#!&+!%3)#,0&5$1,8%$&!>&,01!+!0&#+,"&)"&!#+$(&,($,%&,"-&%8)1)-$&(,#$%&
,"-&(,#$%&!>&4$"#,0&)00"$%%&,($&+)*+<&

2+$($&)%&,&4)%4,#1+&5$#9$$"&#+$&%:)00%&!>&0!1,0&3$!30$&,"-&#+$&"$$-%&!>&#+$&
0!1,0&$1!"!46<&L,"6&0!1,0&3$!30$&,($&+)*+06&A8,0)>)$-&1!43,($-&#!&!#+$(&
30,1$%&58#&#+$($&)%&,&0,1:&!>&+)*+&%:)00$-?&9$00&3,)-&;!5%<&G$!30$&1+!!%$&#!&0)/$&
)"&#+$&1)#6&5$1,8%$&!>&)#%&4,"6&,##(,1#)!"%&,"-&#,:$&;!5%&#+,#&-!&"!#&>8006&8%$&
#+$)(&%:)00%&!(&1!448#$&#!&H!"-!"<&2+)%&4$,"%&#+,#&4,"6&0!9$(&%:)00$-&;!5%&,($&
"!#&,/,)0,50$&>!(&#+$&3$!30$&9+!&+,/$&>$9&%:)00%<&

2+$&1)#6&)%&,&+85&>!(&>8#8($&*(!9#+&,"-&PP&^FF&"$9&+!4$%&,($&#!&5$&3(!/)-$-&
)"&#+$&"$7#&DF&6$,(%<&.!8%$&3()1$%&,($&+)*+&,"-&#+$($&)%&,&%+!(#,*$&!>&>,4)06&
+!4$%<&2+$($&)%&,&"$$-&>!(&4!($&+!4$%&#+,#&3$!30$&1,"&,>>!(-&#!&586&!(&($"#&
,"-&,&5(!,-$(&4)7&!>&+!4$%<&2+$($&,($&*!!-&#(,"%3!(#&0)":%&#!&H!"-!"&,"-&,&
9$00R-$/$0!3$-&3850)1&#(,"%3!(#&"$#9!(:<&

2+$&1)#6&1!8"1)0?&3850)1&%$(/)1$&3(!/)-$(%?&/!08"#,(6&!(*,")%,#)!"%&,"-&
58%)"$%%$%&9!(:&#!*$#+$(&#!&)43(!/$&0)>$&>!(&0!1,0&3$!30$&,"-&#+$6&%$#&#,(*$#%&
>!(&)43(!/$4$"#<&2+(!8*+&#+$&DFDF&G,(#"$(%+)3&#+$6&+,/$&,*($$-&$)*+#&
3()!()#)$%&#+,#&#+$6&"$$-&#!&#,1:0$_&G(!4!#)"*&$"#$(3()%$&,"-&0$,(")"*`&
V$-81)"*&1()4$&,"-&)43(!/)"*&%,>$#6`&=43(!/)"*&+$,0#+&,"-&9$00&5$)"*`&
=43(!/)"*&+!8%)"*&,"-&,>>!(-,5)0)#6`&J#($"*#+$")"*&1!448")#)$%&,"-&)"/!0/)"*&
3$!30$`&G(!4!#)"*&($%!8(1$&$>>)1)$"16&,"-&$"+,"1)"*&#+$&$"/)(!"4$"#`&
G(!4!#)"*&%8%#,)",50$&#(,"%3!(#`&,"-&G(!/)-)"*&A8,0)#6&%$(/)1$%<&

2+$%$&3()!()#)$%&,($&%$#&)"&,&J8%#,)",50$& !448")#6&J#(,#$*6&1,00$-&U ($,#)"*&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     6     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

72



2+$%$&3()!()#)$%&,($&%$#&)"&,&J8%#,)",50$& !448")#6&J#(,#$*6&1,00$-&U ($,#)"*&
#+$& )#6&!>&a33!(#8")#6M<&
&
&

.!9&9$00&-!&3()!()#)$%&>!(&'()*+#!"&,"-&

.!/$&$73($%%&1!448")#6&"$$-%&,"-&

,%3)(,#)!"%N&

G,(#"$(%&9!(:&9$00&#!*$#+$(&,"-&9)#+&0!1,0&3$!30$&#!&8"-$(%#,"-&#+$&"$$-%&!>&
#+$&1)#6<&2+$($&,($&*!!-&$7,430$%&!>&3,(#"$(%&0)%#$")"*&#!&#+$&/)$9%&!>&0!1,0&
3$!30$<&O!(&$7,430$?&1+)0-($"&,"-&6!8"*&3$!30$&R&)"108-)"*&#+!%$&9+!%$&
%)#8,#)!"%&4,:$&#+$4&/80"$(,50$&R&,($&)"/!0/$-&)"&-$1)%)!"&4,:)"*&,"-&#+$)(&
/)$9%&!"&%$(/)1$%&+$03&#!&)43(!/$&#+)"*%&>8(#+$(<&

2+$&:$6&1+,00$"*$%&>!(&#+$&1)#6&)"108-$&3(!/)-)"*&#+$&()*+#&#63$%&,"-&"845$(%&
!>&+!4$%?&,-$A8,#$06&3(!#$1#)"*&#+$&5$,8#6&!>&#+$&",#8(,0&0,"-%1,3$&,"-&
$"%8()"*&0!1,0&;!5%&4$$#&#+$&"$$-%&!>&0!1,0&3$!30$<&2+$%$&1+,00$"*$%&,($&9$00&
8"-$(%#!!-&56&3,(#"$(%&,"-&($>0$1#$-&)"&#+$&%8%#,)",50$&1!448")#6&%#(,#$*6&
1,00$-&U ($,#)"*&,& )#6&!>&a33!(#8")#6M<&2+$&1+!)1$&!>&3()!()#)$%&9,%&4,-$&,>#$(&
0!1,0&3$!30$&9$($&,%:$-&>!(&#+$)(&/)$9%<&C&1!43($+$"%)/$&($/)$9&!>&
)"$A8,0)#)$%&0!!:)"*&,#&#+$&/,(),#)!"%&)"&-)%,-/,"#,*$&,1(!%%&#+$&1)#6<&2+)%&+,%&
+$03$-&3,(#"$(%&#!&8"-$(%#,"-&0!1,0&"$$-%&)"108-)"*&#+$&"$$-%&!>&3$!30$&9+!&
%8>>$(&-)%,-/,"#,*$&#+(!8*+?&>!(&$7,430$?&)00&+$,0#+&!(&3!/$(#6<&2+$6&,($&8%)"*&
#+,#&($/)$9&#!&4,:$&%8($&#+,#&#+$6&#,(*$#&#+$)(&9!(:&9+$($&)#&)%&0):$06&#!&+,/$&
4!%#&)43,1#<&

G,(#"$(%&,($&18(($"#06&($1!"%)-$()"*&#+$&1+!)1$&!>&0!1,0&3()!()#)$%&,"-&9!(:)"*&
+,(-&#!&$"%8($&#+,#&#+$&/)$9%&!>&0!1,0&3$!30$?&)"108-)"*&+,(-$(R#!R($,1+&
1!448")#)$%?&,($&#,:$"&)"#!&,11!8"#<&2+$6&,($&!(*,")%)"*&4$$#)"*%&9)#+&0!1,0&
*(!83%&,"-&,((,"*)"*&3850)1&$/$"#%&#!&$"%8($&#+$%$&/)$9%&,($&+$,(-<&2+)%&
)"108-$%&#,0:)"*&9)#+&%3$1)>)1&*(!83%&%81+&,%&0$%5),"?&*,6?&5)%$78,0&,"-&
#(,"%*$"-$(&3$!30$<&

G,(#"$(%&9!(:&9$00&#!*$#+$(<&2+$&1)#6&1!8"1)0?&3850)1&%$(/)1$%?&/!08"#,(6&
!(*,")%,#)!"%&,"-&58%)"$%%$%&9!(:&#!*$#+$(&#+(!8*+&#+$&DFDF&3,(#"$(%+)3<&
V$0,#)!"%+)3%&,($&4,#8($&,"-&0$,-$(%+)3&)%&%#(!"*<&=#%&-$5,#$%&,($&!3$"&#!&#+$&
3850)1&,"-&$,1+&4$$#)"*&-$5,#$%&,&#!3)1&!>&0!1,0&)"#$($%#&)"&,&9,6&#+,#&
$",50$%&0!1,0&3$!30$&#!&%+,3$&-$1)%)!"%<&=#%&9$5%)#$&)%&8%$(&>()$"-06&,"-&
$",50$%&0!1,0&3$!30$&#!&:"!9&9+,#&3,(#"$(%&,($&-!)"*&#!&)43(!/$&#+$&1)#6<&

2+$($&,($&4,"6&/!08"#,(6&!(*,")%,#)!"%&)"&#+$&1)#6<&2+$6&30,6&,&:$6&(!0$&)"&
-$1)-)"*&9+,#&)%&)43!(#,"#&,"-&)43(!/)"*&#+$&A8,0)#6&!>&0)>$&>!(&0!1,0&3$!30$<&
2+$)(&(!0$&)%&($%3$1#$-&56&3,(#"$(%<&2+$&0!1,0&C(#%& !44)%%)!"&)%&,&3,(#"$(&
($>0$1#)"*&#+$&)">08$"#),0&(!0$&!>&#+$&,(#%&)"&-$0)/$()"*&0!1,0&3()!()#)$%<&

G,(#"$(%&+,/$&,*($$-&,&%$#&!>&#,(*$#%&#+(!8*+&#+$&H!1,0&C($,&C*($$4$"#<&
2+$6&+,/$&,*($$-&4,"6&0!1,0&#,(*$#%&)"&,--)#)!"&#!&#+!%$&($A8)($-&56&1$"#(,0&
*!/$("4$"#<&G,(#"$(%&,($&%#,(#)"*&#!&%#8-6&($*80,(&($3!(#%&!"&3(!*($%%<&2+$%$&
($3!(#%&,($&9$00&0,)-&!8#&,"-&8%$&,&1!0!8(R1!-$-&-,%+5!,(-&#!&%+!9&9+)1+&
#,(*$#%&,($&!"&#(,1:&,"-&9+)1+&,($&"!#<&'8#&#+$&3)1#8($&!>&3$(>!(4,"1$&)%&"!#&
1!"%)%#$"#<&J!4$&3()!()#)$%&+,/$&10$,(&%+,($-&30,"%&,"-&#,(*$#%<&a#+$(%&-!&"!#<&
O!(&$7,430$?&#+$&3,(#"$(%+)3&-!$%&"!#&($1$)/$&,&10$,(&3)1#8($&!>&3(!*($%%&>!(&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     7     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

73



1!"%)%#$"#<&J!4$&3()!()#)$%&+,/$&10$,(&%+,($-&30,"%&,"-&#,(*$#%<&a#+$(%&-!&"!#<&
O!(&$7,430$?&#+$&3,(#"$(%+)3&-!$%&"!#&($1$)/$&,&10$,(&3)1#8($&!>&3(!*($%%&>!(&
)#%&3()!()#)$%&>!(&%8%#,)",50$&#(,"%3!(#&,"-&A8,0)#6&%$(/)1$%<&2+)%&4$,"%&#+,#&
%!4$&3()!()#)$%&*$#&4!($&,##$"#)!"&#+,"&!#+$(%<&=#&,0%!&4$,"%&#+,#&3,(#"$(%&
1,"M#&5$&%8($&#+,#&#+$6&,($&3(!/)-)"*&/,08$&>!(&4!"$6&!(&#+,#&#+$6&,($&4,:)"*&
,&($,0&-)>>$($"1$&#!&0!1,0&3$!30$&#+(!8*+&9!(:)"*&#!*$#+$(&#!&#,1:0$&,00&
3()!()#)$%<&

G(!4!#)"*&$"#$(3()%$&,"-&0$,(")"*&

.)%#!()1,006&#+$&1)#6M%&$1!"!46&+,%&3$(>!(4$-&%#(!"*06&%$$)"*&%)*")>)1,"#&>,00%&)"&
$430!64$"#&,"-&()%$%&)"&,/$(,*$&$,(")"*%<&2+$($&+,%&+!9$/$(&5$$"&/)(#8,006&
"!&1+,"*$&)"&#+$&$430!64$"#&(,#$&-8$&#!&#+$&+)*+&,"-&)"1($,%)"*&"845$(%&!>&
9!(:)"*&,*$&($%)-$"#%&)"&#+$&1)#6<&

2+$&1)#6&+,%&,&%#(!"*&>)","1),0&,"-&58%)"$%%&%$(/)1$&%$1#!(&58#&4,"6&;!5%&,($&
0!9&%:)00$-&,"-&,/$(,*$&9,*$%&,($&0!9<&L,"6&($%)-$"#%&,($&+)*+06&$-81,#$-&
,"-&%#8-$"#&"845$(%&,($&+)*+&9)#+&#9!&8")/$(%)#)$%&)"&#+$&1)#6<&2+$&($%80#&)%&,&
4)%4,#1+&5$#9$$"&%:)00%&,"-&-$4,"-&,1(!%%&#+$&1)#6M%&$1!"!46<&2+$($&,($&
"!#&$"!8*+&+)*+$(&%:)00$-&;!5%&#!&4,#1+&#+$&%:)00%&!>&0!1,0&3$!30$<&G$!30$&
1!448#$&#!&H!"-!"&!(&#,:$&0!9$(&3,)-&;!5%&5$1,8%$&#+$6&>)"-&#+$&1)#6&,"&
,##(,1#)/$&30,1$&#!&9!(:&!(&0)/$<&

G,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&#+$&0!1,0&$1!"!46&9$00<&2+$6&8"-$(%#,"-&#+$&"$$-&#!&
$"%8($&#+,#&#+$&1)#6&%#,6%&,##(,1#)/$&#!&3$!30$&,"-&58%)"$%%$%&,"-&#+,#&+!8%)"*&
,"-&%3,1$&>!(&58%)"$%%&-$/$0!34$"#&4$$#&0!1,0&"$$-%<&

2+$6&+,/$&,*($$-&,%&,"&,)4&U#!&3(!/)-$&,&9)-$&(,"*$&!>&;!5&!33!(#8")#)$%?&
%833!(#)"*&58%)"$%%$%&#!&*(!9?&$"1!8(,*)"*&)"/$%#4$"#?&)""!/,#)!"&,"-&,&
+$,0#+6?&%8%#,)",50$&$1!"!46&,1#)/$06&3(!4!#)"*&0$,(")"*&,"-&#(,)")"*&
!33!(#8")#)$%&>!(&,00<M&

2+$&4!%#&3($%%)"*&)%%8$&($1$"#06&+,%&5$$"&8"-$(%#,"-)"*&,"-&($%3!"-)"*&#!&
#+$&$1!"!4)1&-!9"#8("<&

2+$&($1$%%)!"&+,%&"!#&+)#&$430!64$"#&,%&481+&,%&>$,($-<&'8#&%!4$&0!1,0&
#,(*$#%&R&#!&($-81$&"845$(%&!>&9!(:)"*&,*$&3$!30$&10,)4)"*&!8#&!>&9!(:&
5$"$>)#%&,"-&*(!%%&/,08$&,--$-&3$(&+$,-&!>&3!380,#)!"&R&,($&8"0):$06&#!&5$&
4$#<&G,(#"$(%&,($&4!")#!()"*&#($"-%&10!%$06<&G,(#"$(%&+,/$&9!(:$-&10!%$06&
#!*$#+$(&#!&+$03&0!1,0&58%)"$%%$%<&O!(&$7,430$&#+$6&+,/$&%$#&83&58%)"$%%&
10)")1%&,"-&>($$&#(,)")"*&>!(&3$!30$&9+!&+,/$&0!%#&#+$)(&;!5%?&#(,)"$-&1!8"1)0&
!>>)1$(%&#!&%)*"3!%#&,/,)0,50$&,-/)1$&%$(/)1$%?&(,)%$-&,9,($"$%%&!>&58%)"$%%&
(,#$&($0)$>&>!(&%4,00&58%)"$%%$%&Z#,(*$#)"*&4!($&#+,"&PPFF&0!1,0&58%)"$%%$%\<&
2+$6&+,/$&,0%!&3(!4!#$-&,&U5$&0!1,0&R&586&0!1,0M&1,43,)*"&#!&$"1!8(,*$&0!1,0&
#(,-$<&

G,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&#+$&()%:%&)>&8"$430!64$"#&()%$%&>8(#+$(&,"-&#+$&:"!1:R!"&
$>>$1#&>!(&>,4)0)$%&,"-&1!448")#)$%<&2+$6&,($&4!")#!()"*&#($"-%&#!&3)1:&83&,"6&
$/)-$"1$&!>&,&%$1!"-&9,/$&!>&($1$%%)!"<&

G(!/)-)"*&$"!8*+&;!5%&,"-&+!4$%&9+)0%#&3(!#$1#)"*&#+$&",#8(,0&5$,8#6&!>&#+$&
0,"-%1,3$&)%&,&1+,00$"*$<&2+$&1)#6&1!8"1)0&)%&18(($"#06&1!"%80#)"*&!"&)#%&30,"%&>!(&
>8#8($&-$/$0!34$"#&%$#&!8#&)"&#+$&1!($&%#(,#$*6<&C0)*")"*&#+)%&9)#+&($>($%+$-&
3,(#"$(%+)3&3()!()#)$%&9)00&5$&,"&)43!(#,"#&%#$3&)"&%$##)"*&10$,(&0!1,0&3()!()#)$%&
>!(&3,(#"$(%&*!)"*&>!(9,(-<&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     8     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

74



3,(#"$(%+)3&3()!()#)$%&9)00&5$&,"&)43!(#,"#&%#$3&)"&%$##)"*&10$,(&0!1,0&3()!()#)$%&
>!(&3,(#"$(%&*!)"*&>!(9,(-<&

2+$&1)#6M%&$1!"!46&*!$%&5$6!"-&#+$&1)#6&5!8"-,()$%<&2+$($&,($&$7,430$%&!>&
+!9&3,(#"$(%&9!(:&9$00&9)#+&"$)*+5!8(%&58#&>$9&3(,1#)1,0&($%80#%&>!(&0!1,0&
3$!30$<&

B-81,#)!",0&%#,"-,(-%&"$$-&#!&)43(!/$&>8(#+$(<&L!%#&6!8"*&1+)0-($"&3(!*($%%&
9$00&-8()"*&#+$)(&$,(06&6$,(%<&C#&#+$&,*$&!>&PP&1+)0-($"&,1+)$/$&%)4)0,(&($%80#%&
#!&$0%$9+$($<&C%),"&1+)0-($"&,"-&#+!%$&!>&4)7$-&+$()#,*$&-!&9$00&,#&,*$&PP&
58#&,1+)$/$4$"#&56&'0,1:&1+)0-($"&)%&0!9&56&",#)!",0&%#,"-,(-%<&C#&PQ?&>$9$(&
6!8"*&3$!30$&,1+)$/$&E&*!!-&[ JB%&)"108-)"*&B"*0)%+&,"-&4,#+$4,#)1%&9+$"&
1!43,($-&#!&%)4)0,(&,($,&!(&#+$&1!8"#(6&!/$(,00&,"-&#+$&(,#$&)%&"!#&)43(!/)"*&
,%&A8)1:06&,%&)"&%!4$&!#+$(&,($,%<&C0%!?&>$9$(&#+,"&,/$(,*$&6!8"*&3$!30$&
,1+)$/$&D&!(&4!($&*!!-&[ JB%&)"&%1)$"1$&%85;$1#%<&=43(!/)"*&#+$&A8,0)#6&!>&
%$1!"-,(6&%1+!!0%&,"-&6!8"*&3$!30$M%&,1+)$/$4$"#%&,#&,*$&PQ&)%&,&:$6&
1+,00$"*$&>!(&#+$&1)#6<&V$%80#%&-)>>$(&,1(!%%&%1+!!0%&,"-&0$%%&#+,"&+,0>&!>&
%$1!"-,(6&%1+!!0%&)"&#+$&,($,&,($&*!!-&!(&5$##$(<&O$9$(&#+,"&,/$(,*$&
%$1!"-,(6&%1+!!0%&+,/$&,&*!!-&%#,"-,(-&!>&5$+,/)!8(<&G$(%)%#$"#&,5%$"1$&)%&
+!9$/$(&($-81)"*&9$00&3,(#)180,(06&)"&%!4$&#,(*$#$-&%1+!!0%<&I845$(%&!>&
1+)0-($"&3$(4,"$"#06&$7108-$-&>(!4&%1+!!0&)%&0!9<&C1+)$/$4$"#&56&'0,1:&
6!8"*&3$!30$&)%&)43(!/)"*&9$00&,#&,*$&PQ&,"-&!8#1!4$%&>!(&-)>>$($"#&4)"!()#6&
$#+")1&*(!83%&,($&,%&%$$"&$0%$9+$($<&2+$($&,($&"!&%)*")>)1,"#&-)>>$($"1$%&)"&
,1+)$/$4$"#&5$#9$$"&1+)0-($"&,"-&6!8"*&3$!30$&>(!4&0!9&)"1!4$&>,4)0)$%&
,"-&!#+$(%&,#&,*$%&PP&,"-&PQ&9+$"&1!43,($-&#!&%)4)0,(&,($,%<&[,3%&)"&
,1+)$/$4$"#&5$#9$$"&1+)0-($"&,"-&6!8"*&3$!30$&>(!4&0!9&)"1!4$&>,4)0)$%&
,"-&!#+$(%&,($&"!#&",((!9)"*&+!9$/$(<&

 +)0-($"M%&+!4$%&)"&#+$&,($,&,%&9$00&,%&#+$&0!1,0&,8#+!()#6&>!%#$()"*&,*$"16&
,($&!8#%#,"-)"*&,"-&#+$&,-!3#)!"&,*$"16&)%&*!!-<&2+$%$&%$(/)1$%&+$03&1+)0-($"&
,"-&6!8"*&3$!30$&9+!%$&1)(184%#,"1$%&4,:$&#+$4&/80"$(,50$&/$(6&9$00&<'8#&
#+!%$&)"&>!%#$(&1,($&,((,"*$4$"#%&"$$-&#!&+,/$&4!($&%#,5)0)#6&56&"!#&4!/)"*&
%!&!>#$"<&V$%80#%&>!(&1+)0-($"&9)#+&%3$1),0&"$$-%&,($&,5!8#&,/$(,*$&1!43,($-&
#!&$0%$9+$($<&

G,(#"$(%&+$03&1+)0-($"&,"-&6!8"*&3$!30$&#!&-$/$0!3&#+$&%:)00%&,"-&:"!90$-*$&
#+$6&"$$-&#!&9!(:<&I845$(%&!>&PS&6$,(&!0-%&)"&$-81,#)!"&!(&#(,)")"*&)%&+)*+$(&
#+,"&,/$(,*$&,"-&)43(!/)"*&%0)*+#06&>,%#$(&#+,"&$0%$9+$($<&2+$&1)#6&+,%&>$9$(&
*!!-&!(&5$##$(&%1+!!0&%)7#+&>!(4%&#+,"&!#+$(&30,1$%&R&,0#+!8*+&4!%#&6!8"*&
3$!30$&9+!&,($&%#8-6)"*&>!(&CR0$/$0%&,##$"-&!"$&!>&#+$&#9!&*!!-&%)7#+&>!(4&
1!00$*$%&9+)1+&%$(/$&#+$&,($,<&I845$(%&!>&6!8"*&3$!30$&"!#&)"&$-81,#)!"?&
$430!64$"#&!(&#(,)")"*&)%&%0)*+#06&+)*+$(&#+,"&,/$(,*$<&L!($&6!8"*&3$!30$&
+!9$/$(&,($&,1+)$/)"*&,33(!3(),#$&%:)00%&,"-&A8,0)>)1,#)!"%&56&#+$&,*$&!>&Pb&
,"-&#+$&(,#$&)%&)"1($,%)"*<&L!($&6!8"*&3$!30$&>(!4&0!9&)"1!4$&>,4)0)$%&#+,"&
,/$(,*$&3(!*($%%&#!&+)*+$(&$-81,#)!"<&

V$-81)"*&1()4$&,"-&)43(!/)"*&%,>$#6&

A!--'(7.)#B(;)!%'-!1$"6(0&!C"'#(!-*5/"'#(:&5%$(
*"1&!*-!()'*("96!&,"'#(%$-(1-/5!"%:()'*(?5)."%:(&7(
."7-(7&!(6-&6.-("'(%$-(/"%:()%('"#$%(%"9-((

2+$&1)#6&)%&,&%,>$(&30,1$&,#&")*+#&5$1,8%$&3,(#"$(%&,($&($-81)"*&-)%!(-$(&
#+(!8*+&,"&)43($%%)/$&3,1:,*$&!>&,1#)!"?&9+)1+&!#+$(&($%!(#&#!9"%&1!80-&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     9     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

75



#+(!8*+&,"&)43($%%)/$&3,1:,*$&!>&,1#)!"?&9+)1+&!#+$(&($%!(#&#!9"%&1!80-&
0$,("&>(!4<&c$6&4$,%8($%&)"108-$&,"&,9,(-&9)"")"*&,33(!,1+&#!&+$03)"*&
3$!30$&%,>$06&$";!6&385%&,"-&1085%?&,&%#(!"*&,33(!,1+&#!&+,#$&1()4$?&,&A8)1:&
($%3!"%$&#!&6!8#+&-)%!(-$(?&,"-&%833!(#&#!&#+$&4!%#&-)%(83#)/$&>,4)0)$%&#!&#8("&
#+$)(&0)/$%&,(!8"-<&V$%)-$"#%&,($&0$%%&1!"1$("$-&#+,"&#+$6&9$($&#9!&6$,(%&,*!&
,5!8#&3$!30$&5$)"*&-(8":&!(&(!9-6&!(&8%)"*&-(8*%&)"&3850)1&30,1$%<&C#&WQ&3$(&
1$"#?&#+$&3$(1$"#,*$&!>&3$!30$&9+!&,($&%,#)%>)$-&9)#+&'()*+#!"&d&.!/$&,%&,&
30,1$&#!&0)/$&)%&+)*+&1!43,($-&9)#+&%)4)0,(&30,1$%<&

G,(#"$(%&+,/$&9!(:$-&#!*$#+$(&#!&4,:$&#+$&1)#6&1$"#($&,&%,>$(&,"-&4!($&
$";!6,50$&30,1$&#!&5$&,#&")*+#<&2+$&3,(#"$(%+)3&,33(!,1+&#!&4,",*)"*&#+$&
)43,1#&!>&385%?&1085%&,"-&($%#,8(,"#%&)%&/$(6&$>>$1#)/$&,"-&9!"&",#)!",0&
,110,)4&)"&DFFW<&I)*+#&#)4$&/)!0$"1$&,"-&-)%!(-$(&,%%!1),#$-&9)#+&-(8":$"&
5$+,/)!8(&+,%&($-81$-&!/$(&#+$&3,%#&6$,(<&2+$&"845$(&!>&,%%,80#%&)"&#+$&1)#6&
>$00&56&P^&3$(&1$"#&1!43,($-&#!&Q&3$(&1$"#&)"&#+$&%!8#+&$,%#&!/$(,00<&G(,1#)1,0&
4$,%8($%&)"108-$&,&")*+#&#)4$&58%&%$(/)1$&#!&10$,(&1(!9-%&>(!4&#+$&1)#6&1$"#($&
,"-&4,:$&3$!30$&>$$0&%,>$(<&C&($-&,"-&6$00!9&1,(-&%6%#$4&)%&!3$(,#$-&56&
,(!8"-&PbF&0)1$"%$-&3($4)%$%&,1(!%%&#+$&1)#6?&,"-&1,"&($%80#&)"&#+!%$&,1#)"*&)"&
,&-)%!(-$(06&9,6&5$)"*&$7108-$-&>(!4&,00&/$"8$%<&

'()*+#!"&d&.!/$&)%&,&-)/$(%$&1)#6?&,"-&%!&#,1:0)"*&(,1)%#&,"-&($0)*)!8%06&
4!#)/,#$-&)"1)-$"#%&)"108-)"*&+,#$&1()4$&,*,)"%#&0$%5),"?&*,6?&5)%$78,0?&,"-&
#(,"%*$"-$(&3$!30$&)%&,&3()!()#6<&G,(#"$(%&9!(:&9)#+&0!1,0&1!448")#6&
($3($%$"#,#)/$%&#+(!8*+&1,%$9!(:&3,"$0%&#!&%!0/$&0!1,0&3(!50$4%&,"-&3(!/)-$&
%833!(#&>!(&#+!%$&,>>$1#$-<&2+)%&1!"#()58#$%&#!&#+$&+)*+&"845$(%&!>&0!1,0&
($%)-$"#%&)"&,&($1$"#&%8(/$6&9+!&5$0)$/$&3$!30$&>(!4&-)>>$($"#&5,1:*(!8"-%&
*$#&!"&9$00&#!*$#+$(&,"-&#+,#&#+$6&#($,#&$,1+&!#+$(&9)#+&($%3$1#<&

a3$(,#)!"&G,(:&%811$%%>8006&#,(*$#%&6!8#+&-)%!(-$(<&.)*+&/)%)5)0)#6&3,#(!0%&,($&
5,1:$-&56&10!%$&9!(:)"*&5$#9$$"&#+$&3!0)1$?&#+$&6!8#+&!>>$"-)"*&%$(/)1$&,"-&
#+$&1+)0-($"M%&%$(/)1$%<&J)"1$&]8"$&DFFW&ESE&6!8"*&3$!30$&+,/$&5$$"&%#!33$-&
,%&3!#$"#),006&)"/!0/$-&)"&,"#)R%!1),0&5$+,/)!8(<&2+$&3,($"#%&!>&,00&#+!%$&
%#!33$-&9$($&1!"#,1#$-&,"-&"!#&!"$&!>&#+$&6!8"*&3$!30$&1!"1$("$-&+,%&
5$$"&#,:$"&#!&1!8(#?&,%&+$03&9,%&*)/$"&#!&1+,"*$&#+$)(&5$+,/)!8(<&

C&3(!;$1#&,)4$-&,#&($-81)"*&#+$&"845$(&!>&,"#)&%!1),0&5$+,/)!8(&1!430,)"#%&
4,-$&,*,)"%#&3,(#)180,(&>,4)0)$%&)"&#+$&1)#6&9+$($&#+$($&)%&,&1+)0-&,#&()%:&!>&
!>>$"-)"*&+,%&5$$"&)"#(!-81$-<&C&3(!;$1#&9!(:)"*&9)#+&>,4)0)$%&:"!9"&>!(&
,"#)R%!1),0&5$+,/)!8(&)%&+,/)"*&,&3!%)#)/$&)43,1#&"!#&!"06&>!(&#+$&>,4)0)$%&
1!"1$("$-&58#&)"&($-81)"*&#$"%)!"%&,4!"*%#&"$)*+5!8(%<& !430,)"#%&,*,)"%#&
#+$&>,4)0)$%&($-81$-&56&Sb&3$(&1$"#<&2+)%&3(!*(,44$&0!!:%&"!#&!"06&,#&#+$&
)"-)/)-8,0&6!8"*&3$(%!"&58#&#+$&>,4)06&$"/)(!"4$"#<&

2+$&%811$%%>80&,33(!,1+&)%&>!8"-$-&!"&,&+)%#!(6&!>&%#(!"*&3,(#"$(%+)3&)"&
($-81)"*&1()4$&#!*$#+$(<&

<-*5/"'#(/!"9-()'*("96!&,"'#(1)7-%:(

G,(#"$(%&+,/$&,*($$-&,&3()!()#6&>!(&#+$&1)#6&#!&5$&U,&30,1$&)"&9+)1+&1+)0-($"?&
6!8"*&3$!30$&,"-&,-80#%&1,"&>$$0&%,>$&,"-&,#&$,%$&56&($-81)"*&1()4$&,"-&>$,(&
!>&1()4$&Z$%3$1),006&/)!0$"#&1()4$&,"-&1()4$&)"&3850)1&30,1$%\?&,"#)%!1),0&
5$+,/)!8(?&(,1),006&4!#)/,#$-&,"-&+!4!3+!5)1&1()4$&,"-&56&#,1:0)"*&-(8*&,"-&
,01!+!0&($0,#$-&1()4$M<&

a/$(,00&1()4$&)"&#+$&1)#6&)%&5$0!9&,/$(,*$&>!(&%)4)0,(&30,1$%?&,%&)%&1!"1$("&
,5!8#&,"#)R%!1),0&5$+,/)!8(<& ()4$&(,#$%&($-81$-&0,%#&6$,(<&C00&0!1,0&#,(*$#%&%$#&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     10     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

76



a/$(,00&1()4$&)"&#+$&1)#6&)%&5$0!9&,/$(,*$&>!(&%)4)0,(&30,1$%?&,%&)%&1!"1$("&
,5!8#&,"#)R%!1),0&5$+,/)!8(<& ()4$&(,#$%&($-81$-&0,%#&6$,(<&C00&0!1,0&#,(*$#%&%$#&
56&3,(#"$(%&,($&!"&#(,1:&$71$3#&1!"/)1#)!"%&>!(&3(!0)>)1&,"-&3()!()#6&!>>$"-$(%<&

2+$($&)%&9$00&$%#,50)%+$-&3,(#"$(%+)3&9!(:)"*&#+,#&+,%&5$$"&58)0#&83&!/$(&#)4$<&
 !448")#6&%,>$#6&#$,4%&)"108-$&%#,>>&>(!4&:$6&3,(#"$(%&)"108-)"*&%!1),0&1,($?&
3!0)1$?&3(!5,#)!"?&#+)(-&%$1#!(?&+$,0#+?&6!8#+&!>>$"-)"*<&2+)%&$"%8($%&,&%#(!"*&
0!1,0&>!18%&,"-&%+,()"*&!>&)">!(4,#)!"&,1(!%%&3,(#"$(%<&2+$($&,($&4,"6&
$7,430$%&!>&%811$%%>80&3,(#"$(%+)3&)")#),#)/$%&#+,#&,($&+,/)"*&,"&)43,1#&>!(&
0!1,0&3$!30$<&

G,(#"$(%&$"*,*$&9$00&9)#+&0!1,0&3$!30$&R&)"108-)"*&4)"!()#6&1!448")#)$%<&2+$&
U%,>$&)"&#+$&1)#6M&9$5%)#$&)%&8%$(&>()$"-06&,"-&3(!/)-$%&481+&)">!(4,#)!"&>!(&
0!1,0&3$!30$<&H!1,0&,1#)!"&#$,4%&5()"*&3,(#"$(%&#!*$#+$(&,#&#+$&0!1,0&0$/$0&#!&
-)%18%%&)%%8$%&(,)%$-&56&($%)-$"#%&,"-&#(,-$(%&,"-&>)"-&%!08#)!"%<&2+$%$&#$,4%&
>$$-&)"#!&1)#6&9)-$&;!)"#&,1#)!"&*(!83%&,"-&)">!(4&%#(,#$*)1&-$1)%)!"&4,:)"*<&
H!1,0&3$!30$&#+$($>!($&+$03&>)"-&-)($1#&%!08#)!"%&#!&0!1,0&)%%8$%&,%&9$00&,%&
)">08$"1)"*&5(!,-$(&-$1)%)!"%&,5!8#&>8#8($&3!0)16<&

@+)0%#&#+$&#,(*$#&>!(&($-81)"*&($!>>$"-)"*&56&#+$&*(!83&!>&!>>$"-$(%&)-$"#)>)$-&
,%&!>&4!%#&1!"1$("&+,%&"!#&5$$"&4$#?&3,(#"$(%&+,/$&9!(:$-&#!*$#+$(&10!%$06&
#!&8"-$(%#,"-&9+6&#+)%&+,%&5$$"&#+$&1,%$?&,%&3($/)!8%&($%80#%&+,-&5$$"&*!!-<&
C&($/)%$-&,33(!,1+&+,%&5$$"&38#&)"&30,1$&)"108-)"*&1+,"*$%&#!&($1!(-&:$$3)"*&
,"-&4!($&($%!8(1$%&-)($1#$-&,#&#+$&+)*+$%#&()%:&!>>$"-$(%<&G(!%3$1#%&>!(&>8#8($&
)43(!/$4$"#&,33$,(&*!!-<&

a3$(,#)!"&V$-81#)!"&#,1:0$%&10,%%&C&-(8*&%83306&#+(!8*+&4,33)"*&,"-&
-)%(83#)"*&!(*,")%$-&1()4$&,"-&)"1($,%)"*&#+$&,/,)0,5)0)#6&!>&#($,#4$"#&
%$(/)1$%<&e!8"*&3$!30$&+!9$/$(&($3!(#&%85%#,"1$&4)%8%$&#!&5$&+)*+$(&#+,"&)"&
%)4)0,(&3,(#%&!>&#+$&1!8"#(6<&

2+$& !8"1)0&,"-&)#%&3,(#"$(%&9!(:&9$00&#!&3(!#$1#&1+)0-($"&,"-&)430$4$"#&1+)0-&
3(!#$1#)!"&,((,"*$4$"#%<&2+$&"845$(%&!>&6!8"*&3$!30$&!>>$"-)"*?&,"-&#+!%$&
($R!>>$"-)"*&-(!33$-&)"&DFFWfFb<&V$R!>>$"-)"*&(,#$%&,($&0!9&58#&4!($&6!8"*&
3$!30$&#+,"&,/$(,*$&,($&%$"#$"1$-&#!&18%#!-6<&2!!&>$9&6!8"*&!>>$"-$(%&,($&
)"/!0/$-&)"&,33(!3(),#$&$430!64$"#?&$-81,#)!"&!(&#(,)")"*&,"-&#+$&%)#8,#)!"&)%&
"!#&)43(!/)"*&A8)1:06&$"!8*+<&

V!,-&%,>$#6&+,%&)43(!/$-<&O!(&$7,430$&#+$&"845$(%&!>&1+)0-($"&,"-&6!8"*&
3$!30$&:)00$-&!(&%$()!8%06&)";8($-&!"&#+$&1)#6M%&(!,-%&>$00&>(!4&PS&)"&DFFQ&#!&PT&
)"&DFFW<&

=43(!/)"*&+$,0#+&,"-&9$00&5$)"*&

2+$&+$,0#+&!>&3$!30$&)"&#+$&1)#6&)%&/,()$-<&L$"&-)$&$,(0)$(&!"&,/$(,*$&#+,"&
$0%$9+$($&)"&B"*0,"-&,"-&#+$($&,($&4!($&$,(06&-$,#+%&>(!4&1,"1$(<&G$!30$&
9+!&,($&-)%,-/,"#,*$-&X &>!(&$7,430$?&56&3!!(&+!8%)"*&1!"-)#)!"%&!(&3!/$(#6&R&
#$"-&#!&+,/$&#+$&3!!($%#&+$,0#+<&L$"&)"&#+$&4!%#&-$3()/$-&,($,%&!>&#+$&1)#6&
#$"-&#!&-)$&")"$&6$,(%&$,(0)$(&#+,"&$0%$9+$($&,"-&9!4$"&>)/$&6$,(%&$,(0)$(<&

K(8*&4)%8%$&)%&9!(%$&#+,"&#+$&,/$(,*$&>!(&B"*0,"-<&.!%3)#,0&%#,6%&($0,#$-&#!&
,01!+!0&4)%8%$&,($&+)*+&,"-&%8)1)-$&(,#$%&,($&,4!"*%#&#+$&+)*+$%#&)"&#+$&
1!8"#(6<& +)0-&3!/$(#6&)%&9!(%$&#+,"&#+$&%!8#+&$,%#&B"*0,"-&,/$(,*$<&

.!9$/$(?&-8()"*&#+$&3,%#&#$"&6$,(%&$,(06&-$,#+&(,#$%?&)"108-)"*&>(!4&+$,(#&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     11     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

77



.!9$/$(?&-8()"*&#+$&3,%#&#$"&6$,(%&$,(06&-$,#+&(,#$%?&)"108-)"*&>(!4&+$,(#&
-)%$,%$&,"-&%#(!:$%?&+,/$&-$1($,%$-<&2+$&"845$(&!>&!5$%$&,-80#%&,"-&#+$&
3(!3!(#)!"&!>&3$!30$&-),*"!%$-&9)#+&-),5$#$%&,($&0!9$(&#+,"&$0%$9+$($<&
a5$%)#6&,4!"*&/$(6&6!8"*&1+)0-($"&)%&0!9$(&#+,"&,/$(,*$&58#&56&#+$&#)4$&#+$6&
0$,/$&3()4,(6&%1+!!0&)%&#+$&%,4$&,%&$0%$9+$($<&

C04!%#&WF&3$(&1$"#&!>&0!1,0&3$!30$&%,6&#+$)(&+$,0#+&)%&*!!-&!(&/$(6&*!!-?&
,11!(-)"*&#!&,&($1$"#&%8(/$6<&

2+$($&)%&4!($&#!&-!&#!&!>>$(&+)*+&A8,0)#6&+$,0#+&%$(/)1$%&>!(&,00&3$!30$&,1(!%%&
#+$&1)#6<&2+$&A8,0)#6&!>&+$,0#+1,($&%$(/)1$%&)%&4)7$-&,"-&/,()$%&-$3$"-)"*&!"&
9+$($&6!8&0)/$&,"-&9+$($&6!8&,($&%$"#&>!(&#($,#4$"#<&2+$&A8,0)#6&!>&%$(/)1$&
3(!/)-$-&,#&+!%3)#,0%&/,()$%&>(!4&$71$00$"#&#!&9$,:<&

=43(!/)"*&+$,0#+&,"-&9$005$)"*&)%&,&3()!()#6&>!(&3,(#"$(%&,"-&#+$($&)%&%#(!"*&
1!44)#4$"#&,"-&0$,-$(%+)3<&2+$&1)#6&+,%&@!(0-&.$,0#+&a(*,")%,#)!"&%#,#8%&
9+)1+&($1!*")%$%&#+)%&1!44)#4$"#<&G,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&#+,#&,1+)$/)"*&*!!-&
+$,0#+&)%&"!#&;8%#&,5!8#&+$,0#+1,($<&G$!30$&9+!&%8>>$(&3!!(&+$,0#+&!>#$"&%8>>$(&
!#+$(&-)%,-/,"#,*$%<&2+$6&,($&!>#$"&)"&"$$-&!>&5$##$(&+!8%)"*&,"-&%#(8**0$&#!&
*$#&;!5%&5$1,8%$&0!9&%:)00&;!5%&,($&#,:$"&56&3$!30$&9+!&,($&4!($&A8,0)>)$-<&
'$>!($&,*($$)"*&"$9&4,;!(&3!0)1)$%&3,(#"$(%&0!!:&,#&#+$&3!#$"#),0&+$,0#+&
)430)1,#)!"%&#!&#(6&#!&$"%8($&#+,#&,00&#+$)(&3!0)1)$%&9!(:&#!*$#+$(&#!&1!"#()58#$&
#!&)43(!/)"*&#+$&+$,0#+&!>&0!1,0&3$!30$<&O!(&$7,430$?&#+$6&$"1!8(,*$&9,0:)"*&
,"-&1610)"*&,%&3,(#&!>&#+$)(&#(,"%3!(#&3()!()#6<&

G,(#"$(%&,($&9!(:)"*&9$00&#!*$#+$(&#!&#,1:0$&#+$&/,(),#)!"%&)"&+$,0#+&,1(!%%&
#+$&1)#6<&2+$($&+,%&5$$"&,&#+!(!8*+&($/)$9&!>&#+$%$&)"$A8,0)#)$%<&2+)%&($/)$9&
+,%&+)*+0)*+#$-&#+,#&%!4$&3$!30$&9+!&0)/$&)"&9$00R!>>&,($,%&1,"&%8>>$(&#+$&
%,4$&3(!50$4%&,%&#+!%$&)"&3!!($(&,($,%<&G,(#"$(%&,($&($%3!"-)"*&56&>!18%)"*&
4!($&!"&#+$&"$$-%&!>&)"-)/)-8,0%&,"-&>,4)0)$%&(,#+$(&#+,"&#,(*$#)"*&#+$&0$%%&
9$00&!>>&"$)*+5!8(+!!-%<&O!(&$7,430$?&>,4)06&)"#$(/$"#)!"&3(!*(,44$%&
3(!/)-$&%833!(#&#!&>,4)0)$%&#+,#&,($&>,1)"*&,&"845$(&!>&1+,00$"*$%<&'8#&
3,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&%$#&10$,($(&#,(*$#%&>!(&#+$&>8#8($&)>&#+$6&9,"#&#!&$"%8($&#+$6&
,($&4,:)"*&,&-)>>$($"1$<&

 +)0-&3!/$(#6&)%&9!(%$&#+,"&4,"6&!#+$(&30,1$%&)"&B"*0,"-<&a"$&)"&#+($$&
1+)0-($"&0)/$&)"&0!9&)"1!4$&+!8%$+!0-%&,"-&#+$&#,(*$#&>!(&)43(!/$4$"#&)%&"!#&
0):$06&#!&5$&+)#<&'8#&3,(#"$(%&+,/$&10$,(&30,"%&#!&)43(!/$&#+)"*%&,"-&,($&
30,"")"*&#!&(,)%$&#+$&3(!>)0$&!>&1+)0-&3!/$(#6&)"&#+$&"$9&1+)0-($"&,"-&6!8"*&
3$!30$&30,"<&2+)%&*)/$%&1!">)-$"1$&#+,#&>8#8($&3(!*($%%&9)00&5$&4,-$<&2+$&
"845$(&!>&3()4,(6&,*$-&1+)0-($"&9+!&,($&!5$%$&)%&,5!8#&#+$&%,4$&,%&%)4)0,(&
,($,%<&.$,0#+&$-81,#)!"&,"-&%3!(#&,($&3(!/)-$-&)"&0!1,0&%1+!!0%&58#&%$1!"-,(6&
%1+!!0%&-!&"!#&-!&$"!8*+&#!&+$03&6!8"*&3$!30$&,-!3#&+$,0#+6&0)>$%#60$%<&

2!!&4,"6&#$$",*$&*)(0%&,($&5$1!4)"*&3($*","#<&V$-81)"*&#$$",*$&
3($*","1)$%&)%&,&0!1,0&#,(*$#&,*($$-&56&3,(#"$(%<&C0#+!8*+&"845$(%&,($&>,00)"*&
#+$6&,($&"!#&>,00)"*&,%&A8)1:06&,%&$0%$9+$($<&2+$&+)*+$%#&(,#$%&)"&#+$&1)#6&,($&)"&
#+$&4!%#&-)%,-/,"#,*$-&,($,%<&G,(#"$(%&+,/$&,*($$-&,&"$9&%#(,#$*6&#!&
($-81$&"845$(%&>8(#+$(&56?&>!(&$7,430$&?4,:)"*&4,:)"*&5)(#+&1!"#(!0&,-/)1$&
4!($&9)-$06&,/,)0,50$&,"-&#,(*$#)"*&%$78,0&+$,0#+&%$(/)1$%&,#&#+$&6!8"*&
3$!30$&)"&4!%#&"$$-<&

2+$&"845$(&!>&3$!30$&*!)"*&#!&+!%3)#,0&>!(&($,%!"%&($0,#$-&#!&,01!+!0&)%&+)*+$(&
#+,"&#+$&",#)!",0&,/$(,*$<&C01!+!0&4)%8%$?&)"108-)"*&5)"*$&-()":)"*?&)%&,&
*(!9)"*&3(!50$4&3,(#)180,(06&>!(&4$"<&2+$&"845$(&!>&-(8*R8%$(%&9+!&)";$1#&)%&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     12     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

78



*(!9)"*&3(!50$4&3,(#)180,(06&>!(&4$"<&2+$&"845$(&!>&-(8*R8%$(%&9+!&)";$1#&)%&
($0,#)/$06&+)*+<&

2+$&1)#6&+,%&+,-&!"$&!>&#+$&+)*+$%#&%8)1)-$&(,#$%&)"&B"*0,"-&>!(&4,"6&6$,(%<&C&
0!1,0&,8-)#&)"&DFFTRFE&%+!9$-&#+,#&,&4,;!()#6&!>&3$!30$&9+!&1!44)##$-&
%8)1)-$&+,-&,0%!&5$$"&-),*"!%$-&9)#+&4$"#,0&)00"$%%&,"-&4!%#&9$($&6!8"*&
9+)#$&4$"<&G,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&#+$%$&)%%8$%&,"-&9!(:&9$00&#!*$#+$(&#!&#,1:0$&
#+$&1,8%$%<&O!(&$7,430$?&4,",*$4$"#&!>&#+$&")*+#&#)4$&$1!"!46&#!&
$"1!8(,*$&%$"%)50$&-()":)"*&,"-&%833!(#)"*&3$!30$&9+!&%8>>$(&4$"#,0&)00"$%%<&
'8#&#+$($&)%&4!($&#!&-!&,"-&9$&9)00&#(,1:&3(!*($%%&#!&%$$&)>&30,"%&-$0)/$(&
)43(!/$4$"#%<&

.$,0#+6&,*$)"*&)%&,&3()!()#6&>!(&3,(#"$(%<&2+$&3!380,#)!"&)%&($0,#)/$06&6!8"*&
1!43,($-&#!&%)4)0,(&,($,%&!>&B"*0,"-&58#&!0-$(&3$!30$&4,:$&5)*&-$4,"-%&!"&
)"3,#)$"#&+!%3)#,0&%$(/)1$%<&G,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&#+)%&,"-&#,:$&,&(,"*$&!>&%#$3%&
#!&:$$3&!0-$(&3$!30$&+$,0#+6&,"-&)"-$3$"-$"#<&J!1),0&1,($&)%&,%%)%#)"*&3$!30$&
#!&0)/$&)"-$3$"-$"#06<&J$(/)1$%&>!(&1,($(%&,($&1!43($+$"%)/$<&[!!-&%+!(#&#$(4&
+!4$&1,($&%833!(#&)%&+$03)"*&4,"6&3$!30$&#!&%#,6&,#&+!4$&0!"*$(&9)#+!8#&
"$$-)"*&#!&*!&#!&+!%3)#,0<& +!)1$&!>&9+!&3(!/)-$%&1,($&%$(/)1$%&)%&)"1($,%)"*&
)"108-)"*?&>!(&$7,430$?&*)/)"*&4!"$6&#!&#+!%$&9+!&"$$-&1,($&%!&#+,#&#+$6&3,6&
>!(&)#&#+$4%$0/$%&X &:"!9"&,%&U-)($1#&3,64$"#%M&<&

=43(!/)"*&+!8%)"*&,"-&,>>!(-,5)0)#6&

<-*(7.)#B(D&5'/".($&9-1('&%(9--%"'#(4)1"/(
1%)'*)!*1(

 !8"1)0&+!4$%&"!#&4$$#)"*&5,%)1&%#,"-,(-%&

C04!%#&+,0>&!>&0!1,0&1!8"1)0&+!4$%&>,)0&#!&4$$#&4)")484&*!/$("4$"#&
%#,"-,(-%<&2+)%&3!!(&3$(>!(4,"1$&4$,"%&#+,#&,5!8#&Q?FFF&1!8"1)0&+!4$%&-!&
"!#&+,/$&5,%)1&A8,0)#6&!>&>,1)0)#)$%&%81+&,%&4!-$("&:)#1+$"%&,"-&5,#+(!!4%?&
3(!3$(&+$,#)"*&,"-&)"%80,#)!"<&2+)%&,>>$1#%&%)*")>)1,"#&"845$(%&!>&3$!30$&)"&#+$&
1)#6&4,"6&!>&9+!4&,0($,-6&%8>>$(&-)%,-/,"#,*$&>!(&$7,430$&#+(!8*+&
8"$430!64$"#&,"-&)00&+$,0#+<&C>>$1#$-&+!4$%&,($&"!#&1!"1$"#(,#$-&)"&!"$&
30,1$&58#&,($&%1,##$($-&#+(!8*+!8#&#+$&1)#6M%&+!8%)"*&%#!1:<&2+$& !8"1)0&
-$1)-$-&#!&#(,"%>$(&1!8"1)0&+!4$%&#!&,&+!8%)"*&,%%!1),#)!"&58#&,&#$","#&5,00!#&
)"&DFFS&($;$1#$-&#+)%&!3#)!"<&=#&+,%&9!(:$-&+,(-&%)"1$&#+$"&#!&)"/!0/$&#$","#%&
)"&-$1)%)!"%&!/$(&#+$&>8#8($&!>&#+$&+!8%)"*&%#!1:<&.!9$/$(?&)#&)%&10$,(&#+$&
*!/$("4$"#M%&#,(*$#&>!(&,1+)$/)"*&#+$&-$1$"16&%#,"-,(-&56&DFPF&9)00&5$&
4)%%$-?&0,(*$06&-8$&#!&0,1:&!>&3(!*($%%&)"&>)"-)"*&,&9!(:,50$&%!08#)!"<&

H,(*$&,4!8"#%&!>&4!"$6&,($&"$$-$-&#!&>8"-&#+$&9!(:&($A8)($-&#!&5()"*&
+!4$%&83&#!&,"&,11$3#,50$&%#,"-,(-<&2+$& !8"1)0&30,"%&#!&>8"-&#+$&9!(:&)"&
#9!&9,6%<&O)(%#?&#+$&0$##)"*&!>&,&4,)"#$","1$&1!"#(,1#&9+)1+&)%&>!($1,%#&#!&
5()"*&,5!8#&%)*")>)1,"#&%,/)"*%<&J$1!"-?&56&!5#,)")"*&)"1!4$&>(!4&0$,%)"*&83&
#!&^bb&!>&)#%&+!4$%&#!&,&"$9&!(*,")%,#)!"&%3$1),006&%$#&83&>!(&#+)%&38(3!%$<&
2+$($&+,%&5$$"&($1$"#&3(!*($%%&9)#+&#+$%$&30,"%&58#&4,;!(&8"1$(#,)"#)$%&
($4,)"<&2+$&4,)"#$","1$&1!"#(,1#&-!$%&"!#&%#,(#&8"#)0&C3()0&DFPF&,"-&)#&)%&#!!&
$,(06&#!&%,6&)>&#+$&,45)#)!8%&>!($1,%#%&>!(&%,/)"*%&,($&($,0)%#)1<&[!/$("4$"#&
1!"%$"#&)%&($A8)($-&#!&0$#&3(!3$(#)$%&#!&#+$&"$9&!(*,")%,#)!"&58#&#+)%&1!"%$"#&
+,%&"!#&5$$"&!5#,)"$-&,"-&>8"-,4$"#,0&1!"1$("%&18(($"#06&($4,)"&
8"($%!0/$-<&C0#$(",#)/$&30,"%&#!&1!"#)"8$&#+$&%1+$4$&9)#+!8#&[!/$("4$"#&
1!"%$"#&,($&,%&6$#&8"#$%#$-<&2+$&18(($"#&($1$%%)!"&,0%!&4,:$%&3()/,#$&>8"-)"*&
8"1$(#,)"<&=>&#+$&0$,%)"*&!3#)!"&>,)0%&!(&#+$&%,/)"*%&>(!4&#+$&4,)"#$","1$&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     13     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

79



1!"%$"#&,($&,%&6$#&8"#$%#$-<&2+$&18(($"#&($1$%%)!"&,0%!&4,:$%&3()/,#$&>8"-)"*&
8"1$(#,)"<&=>&#+$&0$,%)"*&!3#)!"&>,)0%&!(&#+$&%,/)"*%&>(!4&#+$&4,)"#$","1$&
1!"#(,1#&-!&"!#&+,33$"&,%&A8)1:06&,%&30,""$-&#+$& !8"1)0&9)00&"$$-&#!&>)"-&
,0#$(",#)/$&9,6%&#!&4,:$&83&#+$&%+!(#>,00&)"&>8"-%<&'!((!9)"*&!3#)!"%&,($&/$(6&
8"1$(#,)"&,#&#+)%&#)4$<&=#&)%&"!#&10$,(&9+,#&)43,1#&%85%#,"#),0&5!((!9)"*&9!80-&
+,/$&!"&#+$& !8"1)0&!(&-$0)/$(6&!>&3,(#"$(%+)3&3()!()#)$%<&2+)%&4$,"%&#+,#&#+$&
3(!;$1#$-&,1+)$/$4$"#&!>&4)")484&%#,"-,(-%&56&DFPT&)%&"!#&1$(#,)"<&2+$&
 !8"1)0&9)#+&)#%&3,(#"$(%&"$$-%&#!&-!&4!($&#!&$"%8($&1!"#)"*$"16&30,"%&,($&)"&
30,1$&%!&#+,#&4)")484&%#,"-,(-%&,($&4$#&,#&#+$&$,(0)$%#&!33!(#8")#6<&

E$)%F1(4-"'#(*&'-("'(!-16&'1-2(

2+$&0!1,0&3,(#"$(%+)3&R&#+$&1!8"1)0?&3850)1&%$(/)1$%?&/!08"#,(6&!(*,")%,#)!"%&,"-&
58%)"$%%$%&R&)%&-)%18%%)"*&+!9&5$%#&#!&4,:$&#+$&)43(!/$4$"#%&"$$-$-<&2+)%&
4,6&)"/!0/$&#+$&3,(#"$(%+)3&-!)"*&-)>>$($"#&!(&,--)#)!",0&9!(:?&!(&%$$:)"*&+$03&
>(!4&!#+$(&1!8"1)0%&!(&3850)1&%$(/)1$%&?&!(&>(!4&#+$&3850)1&%$1#!(M%&!9"&
)43(!/$4$"#&,*$"16<&=#&4,6&,0%!&)"/!0/$&,"&)"%3$1#)!"&56&!"$&!(&4!($&!>&#+$&
)"%3$1#!(,#$%<&@$M00&83-,#$&#+)%&%$1#)!"&9)#+&4!($&-$#,)0$-&)">!(4,#)!"&9+$"&
#+)%&)%&,*($$-<&

=96!&,"'#($&51"'#()'*()77&!*)4"."%:(

2+$&,)4&!>&3,(#"$(%&)%&>!(&#+$&1)#6&#!&5$&U,&30,1$&9)#+&,&9)-$&1+!)1$&!>&-$1$"#&
+!8%)"*&#!&4$$#&3$!30$M%&"$$-%&>!(&,&%#,50$&+!4$&,"-&#+$)(&,5)0)#6&#!&3,6M<&
L!%#&0!1,0&#,(*$#%&,($&5$)"*&4$#&58#&#!!&4,"6&1!8"1)0&+!4$%&>,)0&#!&4$$#&
4)")484&*!/$("4$"#&%#,"-,(-%?&4$,")"*&4,"6&0!9&)"1!4$&#$","#%&,"-&#+$)(&
>,4)0)$%&,($&1!"#)"8)"*&#!&0)/$&)"&8"%8)#,50$&1!"-)#)!"%<&

'()*+#!"&,"-&.!/$&+,%&+)*+&+!8%$&3()1$%&,"-&+)*+&+!8%)"*&-$4,"-<&L,"6&
0!1,0&3$!30$&1,""!#&,>>!(-&#!&586&!(&($"#&0!1,0&+!8%$%<&2+$&3!380,#)!"&)%&
*(!9)"*&,"-&#+$&1)#6&9)00&"$$-&,"&$7#(,&PP?^FF&+!4$%&!/$(&#+$&"$7#&DF&6$,(%<&
O!(#6&3$(&1$"#&!>&#+$%$&9)00&"$$-&#!&5$&0!9&1!%#&>!(&0!1,0&3$!30$&#!&586&!(&($"#<&

2+$& !8"1)0&9)#+&)#%&3,(#"$(%&+,%&,&*!!-&($1!(-&)"&3(!/)-)"*&"$9&+!8%)"*&#+,#&
3$!30$&1,"&,>>!(-&#!&586&!(&($"#&58#&-$4,"-&)%&!8#%#()33)"*&%83306<&2+$6&+,/$&
*!!-&)">!(4,#)!"&,5!8#&#+$&1!"-)#)!"&!>&1!8"1)0&+!4$%&,"-&#,(*$#%&#!&5()"*&
$43#6&+!4$%&5,1:&)"#!&8%$&,($&5$)"*&$71$$-$-<&G,(#"$(%&+,/$&5$$"&$>>$1#)/$&
)"&3($/$"#)"*&+!4$0$%%"$%%&)"108-)"*&>!(&6!8"*&3$!30$&,"-&#+$6&+,/$&4,-$&
5)*&18#%&)"&#+$&"845$(&!>&3$!30$&9+!&%0$$3&(!8*+&!"&#+$&1)#6M%&%#($$#%<&2+$&
'()*+#!"&,"-&B,%#&J8%%$7&2!*$#+$(&G,(#"$(%+)3&Z'BJ2\&+,%&)43(!/$-&+!8%)"*&
1!"-)#)!"%&>!(&/80"$(,50$&3$!30$&9+!&0)/$&)"&3()/,#$06R!9"$-&+!4$%<&

J#($"*#+$")"*&1!448")#)$%&,"-&)"/!0/)"*&

3$!30$&

G,(#"$(%&+,/$&,*($$-&,&3()!()#6&#!&4,:$&#+$&1)#6&U,&30,1$&9+$($&1!448")#)$%&
,($&%#(!"*?&)"108%)/$&,"-&+,/$&!33!(#8")#)$%&#!&)">08$"1$&-$1)%)!"&4,:)"*<&C&
30,1$&9+$($&)"-)/)-8,0%&,($&,50$&#!&#,:$&,-/,"#,*$&!>&!33!(#8")#)$%&#!&
)43(!/$&#+$)(&A8,0)#6&!>&0)>$M<&

2+$&3(!3!(#)!"&!>&($%)-$"#%&9+!&5$0)$/$&3$!30$&>(!4&-)>>$($"#&5,1:*(!8"-%&
*$#&!"&9$00&#!*$#+$(&)%&+)*+$(&#+,"&)"&%)4)0,(&,($,%&$0%$9+$($&)"&B"*0,"-<&2+$&
1)#6&+,%&,"&)"#$(",#)!",0&($38#,#)!"&>!(&1$0$5(,#)"*&-)/$(%)#6&,"-&#+)%&)%&3,(#&!>&
)#%&,##(,1#)!"&#!&($%)-$"#%&,"-&/)%)#!(%<&C&($1$"#&%8(/$6&%+!9%&#+,#&,5!8#&DW&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     14     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

80



1)#6&+,%&,"&)"#$(",#)!",0&($38#,#)!"&>!(&1$0$5(,#)"*&-)/$(%)#6&,"-&#+)%&)%&3,(#&!>&
)#%&,##(,1#)!"&#!&($%)-$"#%&,"-&/)%)#!(%<&C&($1$"#&%8(/$6&%+!9%&#+,#&,5!8#&DW&
3$(&1$"#&!>&($%)-$"#%&#+)":&#+,#&#+$6&1,"&)">08$"1$&-$1)%)!"%&,>>$1#)"*&#+$)(&
0!1,0&,($,<&2+)%&)%&"!#&,%&+)*+&,%&$0%$9+$($&,"-&3,(#"$(%&,($&0!!:)"*&#!&5$##$(&
8"-$(%#,"-&#+)%&,"-&+!9&3$!30$&1,"&5$&4!($&)"/!0/$-<&L!%#&1+)0-($"&,"-&
6!8"*&3$!30$&,($&+$03$-&9$00&#!&4,:$&,&3!%)#)/$&1!"#()58#)!"&#!&#+$)(&
1!448")#6&,"-&#,:$&3,(#&)"&-$1)%)!"&4,:)"*&3(!1$%%$%&R&,0#+!8*+&%$1!"-,(6&
%1+!!0%&,"-&#+$&*$"$(,0&>8(#+$(&$-81,#)!"&1!00$*$%&0!1,#$-&)"&#+$&,($,&,($&
!"06&%,#)%>,1#!(6&)"&#+$&9,6&#+$6&-!&#+)%<&

G,(#&!>&9+,#&4,:$%&#+$&,($,&,##(,1#)/$&)%&)#%&180#8(,0&-)/$(%)#6&X &#+$&/,()$#6&!>&
3$!30$&,"-&1!448")#)$%&R&,"-&#+$&%#(!"*&(!0$&!>&,(#%&,"-&180#8($<&2+$%$&
,##(,1#&4,"6&/)%)#!(%&,"-&)%&,&:$6&($,%!"&9+6&4,"6&$430!6$(%&,"-&($%)-$"#%&
4!/$&#!&#+$&1)#6<&2+$&1)#6&)%&#+$&+!4$&#!&4,"6&)"#$(",#)!",006&($1!*")%$-&
>$%#)/,0%<&'()*+#!"&O$%#)/,0&)%&#+$&0,(*$%#&,(#%&>$%#)/,0&)"&B"*0,"-&,"-&G()-$&#+$&
1!8"#(6M%&0,(*$%#&0$%5),"?&*,6?&5)%$78,0&,"-&#(,"%*$"-$(&>$%#)/,0<&I$9&$/$"#%&
1!"#)"8$&#!&-$/$0!3<&O!(&$7,430$?&#+$&@+)#$&I)*+#%&$/$"#&4,(:)"*&#+$&$"-&!>&
'()#)%+&J844$(&2)4$&)"&DFFW&$"1!8(,*$-&3$!30$&#!&$730!($&#+$&1)#6&,#&")*+#<&=#&
+$03$-&#!&-)%3$0&>$,(&!>&1()4$&,"-&3(!/)-$-&,0#$(",#)/$&$"#$(#,)"4$"#&#!&
-()":)"*<&

G,(#"$(%&9!(:&9$00&#!*$#+$(&#!&$"%8($&#+,#&#+)%&180#8($&1!"#)"8$%&#!&#+()/$<&
2!*$#+$(&#+$6&-$/)%$&,(#%&3(!;$1#%&9+)1+&+$03&4$$#&0!1,0&3()!()#)$%<&O!(&
$7,430$?&56&%#,*)"*&$/$"#%&>!(&!0-$(&3$!30$&#!&$"1!8(,*$&+$,0#+6&0)/)"*&,"-&
,(#&3(!;$1#%&9)#+&#$","#%&#!&>!%#$(&3()-$&)"&0!1,0&$%#,#$%&,"-&-)%1!8(,*$&,"#)R
%!1),0&5$+,/)!8(<&

="-)/)-8,0&3,(#"$(%&9!(:&9$00&#!*$#+$(&#!&%#,*$&,(#%&3(!;$1#%&,"-&>$%#)/,0%<&2+$&
'()*+#!"&d&.!/$&C(#%& !44)%%)!"&+,%&,&5)*&%,6&,5!8#&#+$&1+!)1$&!>&180#8(,0&
$/$"#%&,"-&+!9&#+$6&%+!80-&5$&%#,*$-<&C(#%&3(!;$1#%&,($&($/)$9$-&#!&%$$&+!9&
9$00&#+$6&+,/$&9!(:$-&,"-&+!9&#+$6&1,"&5$&)43(!/$-&)"&#+$&>8#8($<&'8#&#+$&
DFDF&3,(#"$(%+)3&-!$%&"!#&($1$)/$&481+&)">!(4,#)!"&,5!8#&#+)%&3()!()#6<&=#&
%+!80-&5$&10$,($(&,5!8#&9+,#&%811$%%&0!!:%&0):$&%!&#+,#&)#&1,"&4!")#!(&
9+$#+$(&/,08$&>!(&4!"$6&)%&5$)"*&*)/$"<&=#&"$$-%&#!&5$&%8($&#+,#&#+$&,(#%&,"-&
>$%#)/,0&3(!*(,44$&9)00&1!"#)"8$&#!&+$03&4$$#&0!1,0&3()!()#)$%&56&%$##)"*&!8#&)#%&
$73$1#,#)!"%&10$,(06&,"-&#(,1:)"*&%811$%%<&

G(!4!#)"*&($%!8(1$&$>>)1)$"16&,"-&

$"+,"1)"*&#+$&$"/)(!"4$"#&

G,(#"$(%&+,/$&,*($$-&#!&,)4&>!(&#+$&1)#6&#!&5$&U,&30,1$&#!&0)/$&9+)1+&)%&10$,"?&
,##(,1#)/$?&8%$%&$"$(*6&,"-&",#8(,0&($%!8(1$%&$>>)1)$"#06?&($-81$%&3!008#)!"?&
$"%8($%&#+$&5$%#&8%$&!>&0,"-?&3(!4!#$%&5)!-)/$(%)#6?&,33(!/$%&9$00&-$%)*"$-&
-$/$0!34$"#%&,"-&+,%&,11$%%)50$&!3$"&%3,1$&,"-&1!8"#(6%)-$M<&

 ,(5!"&-)!7)-$&$4)%%)!"%&,($&"!#&>,00)"*&A8)1:06&$"!8*+&#!&4$$#&0!1,0&#,(*$#%&
,*($$-&56&3,(#"$(%<&G,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&#+$&"$$-&#!&%3$$-&83&3(!*($%%&,"-&
,($&38##)"*&)"&30,1$&%#$3%&#!&-!&4!($<&

'8#&#+$($&,($&4,"6&$7,430$%&!>&3(!*($%%&)"&%,/)"*&$"$(*6<&O!(&$7,430$?&#+$($&
,($&4!($&#+,"&SF&1,(&1085&3,(:)"*&%3,1$%&,1(!%%&#+$&1)#6&,"-&$0$1#()1&/$+)10$&
1+,(*)"*&3!)"#%&,($&5$)"*&)"%#,00$-<&

J#($$#%&,($&10$,"&,11!(-)"*&#!&,&4,;!()#6&!>&0!1,0&($%)-$"#%&)"&,&($1$"#&%8(/$6<&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     15     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

81



J#($$#%&,($&10$,"&,11!(-)"*&#!&,&4,;!()#6&!>&0!1,0&($%)-$"#%&)"&,&($1$"#&%8(/$6<&
I845$(%&!>&,5,"-!"$-&!(&58("#&!8#&1,(%&!"&#+$&1)#6&%#($$#%&+,/$&-(!33$-&,"-&
#+$&1)#6&1!8"1)0&+,%&#,:$"&>!18%%$-&,1#)!"&#!&($-81$&*(,>>)#)&,"-&0)##$(<&
 !448",0&5)"%&,1(!%%&#+$&1)#6&,($&+$03)"*&4,:$&#+$&%#($$#%&10$,"$(<&

V$1610)"*&0$/$0%&,($&0!9$(&#+,"&$0%$9+$($&,"-&4,"6&0!1,0&3$!30$&%,6&#+$6&,($&
"!#&%,#)%>)$-&9)#+&#+$&($>8%$&1!00$1#)!"&,"-&($1610)"*&%$(/)1$<&2+$&,4!8"#&!>&
9,%#$&1!00$1#$-&>(!4&+!4$%&)%&"!#&>,00)"*&,%&A8)1:06&,%&)"&%!4$&!#+$(&,($,%<&

2+$&1)#6&+,%&,"&,##(,1#)/$&",#8(,0&$"/)(!"4$"#&"$%#0$-&5$#9$$"&#+$&%$,&,"-&
#+$&J!8#+&K!9"%<&=#&+,%&4,"6&>)"$&58)0-)"*%&,"-&1!"%$(/,#)!"&,($,%<&2+$&1)#6&
1!8"1)0&)%&18(($"#06&1!"%80#)"*&0!1,0&3$!30$&!"&30,"%&>!(&>8#8($&-$/$0!34$"#&R&
:"!9"&,%&#+$&1!($&%#(,#$*6<&G(!/)-)"*&$"!8*+&;!5%&,"-&+!4$%&>!(&,"&
)"1($,%)"*&"845$(&!>&($%)-$"#%&9+)0%#&3(!#$1#)"*&#+$&$"/)(!"4$"#&)%&,&:$6&
1+,00$"*$<&G,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&,0)*"&30,"%&>!(&>8#8($&-$/$0!34$"#&9)#+&#+$)(&
3()!()#)$%&>!(&4!($&;!5%&,"-&+!4$%<&

G(!4!#)"*&%8%#,)",50$&#(,"%3!(#&

2+$&1)#6&"$$-%&$>>$1#)/$&#(,"%3!(#&#!&4,:$&%8($&#+,#&0!1,0&3$!30$&,"-&/)%)#!(%&
1,"&4!/$&,(!8"-&#+$&1)#6<&2+$&,##(,1#)!"&!>&#+$&1)#6&,%&,&30,1$&3$!30$&9,"#&#!&
0)/$?&9!(:&,"-&/)%)#&)%&-,4,*$-&)>&3$!30$&1,"M#&4!/$&,(!8"-&$,%)06<&G0,"%&#!&
)"1($,%$&"845$(%&!>&+!4$%&,"-&$"1!8(,*$&58%)"$%%$%&)"#!&#+$&1)#6&9)00&
)"1($,%$&#(,"%3!(#&"$$-%<&

G,(#"$(%&+,/$&,*($$-&,"&,)4&#+,#&#+$&1)#6&5$&U,&30,1$&9)#+&,"&)"#$*(,#$-&
%8%#,)",50$&#(,"%3!(#&%6%#$4&#+,#&4)")4)%$%&-,4,*$&#!&#+$&$"/)(!"4$"#&,"-&
3(!4!#$%&9,0:)"*?&1610)"*&,"-&3850)1&#(,"%3!(#&8%$&,"-&1!"#()58#$%&#!&,&%,>$(?&
10$,"$(?&A8)$#$(&1)#6M<&2+$6&8"-$(%#,"-&#+$&)43!(#,"1$&!>&$>>$1#)/$&#(,"%3!(#&
>!(&)43(!/)"*&#+$&A8,0)#6&!>&0)>$&>!(&0!1,0&3$!30$&,%&9$00&,%&>!(&$"1!8(,*)"*&
/)%)#!(%&,"-&58%)"$%%$%<&

2+$($&)%&481+&3(!*($%%<&'8%&3,%%$"*$(&"845$(%&1!"#)"8$&#!&)"1($,%$<&'8%$%&
#+,#&(8"&,00&")*+#&,"-&1+,"*$%&)"&#+$&9,6&#(,/$0&)">!(4,#)!"&)%&*)/$"&X &
)"108-)"*&#,0:)"*&58%&%#!3%&>!(&#+!%$&9)#+&3!!(&%)*+#&R&1!"#()58#$&#!&+)*+&
"845$(%&!>&0!1,0&3$!30$&8%)"*&#+$&%$(/)1$%<&2+)%&+,%&,0%!&($-81$-&>$,(&!>&1()4$&
,"-&18#&"845$(%&!>&1,(&;!8("$6%<&L!($&3$!30$&,($&9,0:)"*&,"-&1610)"*&,"-&
3,(#"$(%&8"-$(%#,"-&+!9&#+)%&)%&)43(!/)"*&+$,0#+&,"-&+$03)"*&#+$&$"/)(!"4$"#&
56&$,%)"*&#(,>>)1&1!"*$%#)!"<&

G0,"%&#!&-$/$0!3&3,(:R,"-R()-$&,"-&)"#$*(,#)"*&/,()!8%&>!(4%&!>&#(,"%3!(#&,#&
:$6&%)#$%&,1(!%%&#+$&1)#6&,"-&5$6!"-&,($&5$)"*&-(,9"&83&58#&#+$6&,($&,#&,"&
$,(06&%#,*$<&2+$%$&,($&1!430$7&-$1)%)!"%&,"-&3,(#"$(%&9)00&"$$-&#!&9!(:&
#!*$#+$(&$>>$1#)/$06&#!&$"%8($&#+$6&,*($$&!"&>8#8($&3(!*($%%<&

2+$&DFDF&3,(#"$(%+)3&-!$%&"!#&($1$)/$&481+&)">!(4,#)!"&,5!8#&+!9&3,(#"$(%&
,($&9!(:)"*&#!&)43(!/$&#(,"%3!(#&,"-&-$0)/$(&#+)%&3()!()#6<&B71$3#&>!(&#9!&
#,(*$#%&)"&#+$&0!1,0&,($,&,*($$4$"#&3,(#"$(%&-!&"!#&($*80,(06&1!"%)-$(&
3(!*($%%<&2+)%&4$,"%&#+,#&3,(#"$(%&1,""!#&5$&%,#)%>)$-&#+,#&#+$($&)%&/,08$&>!(&
4!"$6&,"-&#+,#&,00&!33!(#8")#)$%&#!&)43(!/$&#(,"%3!(#&,($&#,:$"<&

G(!/)-)"*&%8%#,)",50$&#(,"%3!(#&)"/!0/$%&1!430$7&,"-&$73$"%)/$&0!"*R#$(4&
-$1)%)!"%<&2+$&3!0)#)1,0&,-4)")%#(,#)!"&!>&#+$& !8"1)0&+,%&1+,"*$-&%)"1$&
U ($,#)"*&,&1)#6&!>&!33!(#8")#6M&9,%&,-!3#$-<&C%&#+$&#(,"%3!(#&,8#+!()#6?&#+$&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     16     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

82



-$1)%)!"%<&2+$&3!0)#)1,0&,-4)")%#(,#)!"&!>&#+$& !8"1)0&+,%&1+,"*$-&%)"1$&
U ($,#)"*&,&1)#6&!>&!33!(#8")#6M&9,%&,-!3#$-<&C%&#+$&#(,"%3!(#&,8#+!()#6?&#+$&
1!8"1)0&"$$-%&#!&-$/$0!3&)#%&"$9&#(,"%3!(#&30,"&,"-&10,()>6&9+,#&)#&)"#$"-%&#!&
-!<&G,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&-$/$0!3&#+$&($>($%+$-&%8%#,)",50$&1!448")#6&%#(,#$*6&#!&
($>0$1#&%+,($-&3()!()#)$%&,"-&$"%8($&#+,#&#+$($&,($&%+,($-&30,"%&>!(&
)43(!/$4$"#<&G,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&>)"-&9,6%&#!&%$#&10$,(&4$,%8($%&!>&%811$%%&
,*,)"%#&9+)1+&#+$6&1,"&#(,1:&3(!*($%%<&C#&#+$&4!4$"#&#+)%&3()!()#6&)%&"!#&*)/$"&
%8>>)1)$"#&,##$"#)!"&56&3,(#"$(%<&

G(!/)-)"*&A8,0)#6&%$(/)1$%&

C&3()!()#6&>!(&3,(#"$(%&)%&#+,#&#+$&1)#6&U5$&,&30,1$&9+$($&($%)-$"#%?&9!(:$(%&,"-&
/)%)#!(%&($1$)/$&+)*+&A8,0)#6&18%#!4$(&>!18%%$-&%$(/)1$%M<&.!9$/$(?&#+$&
3,(#"$(%+)3&-!$%&"!#&4$,%8($&+!9&%811$%%>8006&)#&)%&-!)"*&#+)%<&2+$6&+,/$&"!#&
10$,(06&%$#&!8#&9+,#&%811$%%&0!!:%&0):$<&

G,(#"$(%&"$$-&#!&1!"%)-$(&9+,#&)%&*,)"$-&56&+,/)"*&#+)%&,%&,&3()!()#6<&=#&
18(($"#06&($,-%&,%&,&3()!()#6&>!(&)"-)/)-8,0&!(*,")%,#)!"%&"!#&3,(#"$(%&#!*$#+$(<&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     17     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

83



 CC&0!!:%&,#&+!9&9$00&0!1,0&3850)1&%$(/)1$%?&9!(:)"*&#!*$#+$(?&,($&4$$#)"*&#+$
"$$-%&!>&#+$&3$!30$&#+$6&%$(/$<&=#M%&,&;!)"#&,%%$%%4$"#&4,-$&56&,&*(!83&!>&
)"-$3$"-$"#&9,#1+-!*%&,5!8#&#+$&3$(>!(4,"1$&!>&0!1,0&3850)1&%$(/)1$%?&,"-&
+!9&0):$06&#+$6&,($&#!&4$$#&0!1,0&3()!()#)$%<&O(!4&b&K$1$45$(&6!8&9)00&>)"-&#+$&
($%80#%&!>& !43($+$"%)/$&C($,&C%%$%%4$"#&!"&#+$&a"$30,1$&9$5%)#$&R&
+##3_ff!"$30,1$<-)($1#<*!/<8:f&

3.%-!')%",-(7&!9)%1&R&=>&6!8&($A8)($&,&1!36&!>&GKO&-!184$"#%&)"&#+)%&%)#$&)"&
0,(*$&3()"#?&)"&'(,)00$?&!"&#,3$?&!(&)"&,&0,"*8,*$&!#+$(&#+,"&B"*0)%+?&30$,%$&1,00_&
IJKK(LMJ(LILI&

C8-)#& !44)%%)!"?&P%#&O0!!(?&L)005,":&2!9$(?&L)005,":?&H!"-!"&J@PG&^.g&&
2$0$3+!"$_&FW^^&SbW&PDPD&
O,7_&FW^^&SbW&Db^E&
2$7#3+!"$&Z4)")1!4\_&FW^^&SbW&Db^Q&
999<,8-)#R1!44)%%)!"<*!/<8:&&

     Area Assessment                                                                                Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     18     Brighton and Hove

)*#+ (,- !""#$%&' (

84



(#)*+,-.'$./'0-!"'1),2'1-3.4)%

 #*$.)8$,)-.$%';88"887".,''

3)%-*(R(3-1-;J-!(?QQR(

 !!"#$%&'(

85



 !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(."%/(.&0'1"2(

 !"#$%%&'(#)*+,-.'$./'0-!"'1),2'1-3.4)%'5"#6-#78'

9"% %'

3-41!"5%"&'(&6(41&!-47((

89 :'(&!#)'"4)%"&'(%$)%(*&-4('&%(;--%(;"'";0;(!-<0"!-;-'%4=(>-!6&!;4(>&&!2/((

?9 :'(&!#)'"4)%"&'(%$)%(;--%4(&'2/(;"'";0;(!-<0"!-;-'%4=(>-!6&!;4(:*-<0)%-2/((

@9 :'(&!#)'"4)%"&'(%$)%(-A1--*4(;"'";0;(!-<0"!-;-'%4=(>-!6&!;4(B-22((

C9 :'(&!#)'"4)%"&'(%$)%(4"#'"6"1)'%2/(-A1--*4(;"'";0;(!-<0"!-;-'%4=(>-!6&!;4(DA1-22-'%2/((

:377$#2''

E,-!)22( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(."%/(.&0'1"2(5-!6&!;4(F-229(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(5!&,"*"'#
;)'/(#&&*(4-!,"1-4()'*("4(-66-1%",-()%(%)1H2"'#("440-4(%$)%()!-(";5&!%)'%(%&(
2&1)2(5-&52-9(G$-4-()!-7(";5!&,"'#(%$-(I&J(&55&!%0'"%"-4(6&!(5-&52-(F"%$"'(%$-(
1"%/=(5)!%"102)!2/(%$-(2&'#(%-!;(0'-;52&/-*=(5!&,"*"'#(#&&*(<0)2"%/(4-!,"1-4(6&!
&2*-!(5-&52-()'*(%$-(;&4%(,02'-!)J2-()'*(4055&!%"'#(%$-(1"%/K4(J04"'-44-4(
%$!&0#$(%$-(1!-*"%(1!0'1$9(>-&52-(2"H-(2","'#("'( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-()'*(%$-!-("4(
)(!-)2(4-'4-(&6(1&;;0'"%/9(.&0'1"22&!4()'*(4%)66(F&!H(F-22(%&#-%$-!=()'*(%$-(
.&0'1"2("4(-66-1%",-()%(";5!&,"'#(%$"'#4(6&!(%$-(5-&52-(&6( !"#$%&'(L(+&,-9(G$-
.&0'1"2("4(#&&*()%(;)')#"'#("%4(;&'-/()'*(;)H"'#(4),"'#4(

 !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(."%/(.&0'1"2(41&!-4(@(&0%(&6(C(6&!(;)')#"'#(5-!6&!;)'1-9(M%
H'&F4(%$)%(H--5"'#(%$-(4%!--%4(12-)'=($-25"'#(,02'-!)J2-(5-&52-(2",-("'(%$-"!(
&F'($&;-4(6&!(2&'#-!=(H--5"'#(5-&52-(6"%%-!()'*($-)2%$"-!()'*(-'40!"'#(
5-&52-()!-(4)6-()!-(";5&!%)'%(%&(2&1)2(5-&52-()'*("%("4(-66-1%",-()%(*-2",-!"'#(
%$-4-(%$"'#49(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(F&!H"'#(F-22(F"%$(%$-(5&2"1-(%&(!-*01-(1!";-()'*(
)'%"N4&1")2(J-$),"&0!()'*(F"%$(%$-(*!0#(%!-)%;-'%(4-!,"1-4(%&(#-%(5-&52-(F$&(
)J04-(*!0#4("'%&(%!-)%;-'%()'*(%$-'(H--5"'#(%$-;(%$-!-9(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(
-66-1%",-()%(1!-)%"'#('-F(I&J4(%$!&0#$("%4(2&1)2(-;52&/;-'%(5!&#!);;-(F$"1$
"4(5!&,"*"'#(I&J(&55&!%0'"%"-4(6&!(%$-(2&'#(%-!;(0'-;52&/-*9(M%(#",-4(4055&!%(%&
5-&52-()'*(2&1)2(J04"'-44-4(%$)%()!-(4%!0##2"'#(F"%$(6"')'1")2(5!&J2-;4=(*0!"'#(
%$-(1!-*"%(1!0'1$9(O-)!2/(P(&0%(8Q(5-&52-()!-(4)%"46"-*(F"%$(%$-(F)/(.&0'1"2(
!0'4(%$"'#4=(F$"1$("4()J&,-(%$-(),-!)#-(1&;5)!-*(%&(4";"2)!()0%$&!"%"-49(

G$-!-()!-()(6-F(%$"'#4($&F-,-!(%$)%(%$-(.&0'1"2(1&02*(*&(J-%%-!9(G$-(.&0'1"2(
$)4()($"#$('0;J-!(&6($&04-$&2*4("'(%-;5&!)!/()11&;;&*)%"&'=()2%$&0#$(%$"4(
"4(!-*01"'#("'(?QQR()'*(*&-4('&%(!-1/12-()4(;01$()4(4";"2)!()0%$&!"%"-49(
S-1&'*)!/(41$&&2(-*01)%"&'("4('&%()4(#&&*()4(-24-F$-!-9(G$-!-()!-()24&(%&&(
;)'/(1&0'1"2($&;-4(6)"2"'#(%&(;--%(;"'";0;(#&,-!';-'%(4%)'*)!*4=(4&(;)'/(

V)')#"'#(5-!6&!;)'1-( A'-3,'-6'B'

\4-(&6(!-4&0!1-4( A'-3,'-6'B''

V)')#"'#(6"')'1-4 @(&0%(&6(C((

U&,-!'"'#(%$-(J04"'-44 ?(&0%(&6(C((

V)')#"'#(!-4&0!1-4 @(&0%(&6(C((

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     2     Brighton and Hove City Council 86



S-1&'*)!/(41$&&2(-*01)%"&'("4('&%()4(#&&*()4(-24-F$-!-9(G$-!-()!-()24&(%&&(
;)'/(1&0'1"2($&;-4(6)"2"'#(%&(;--%(;"'";0;(#&,-!';-'%(4%)'*)!*4=(4&(;)'/(
2&F("'1&;-(%-')'%4()'*(%$-"!(6);"2"-4()!-(1&'%"'0"'#(%&(2",-("'(0'40"%)J2-(
1&'*"%"&'49(

E64%-*($)4(!)%-*(%$-(.&0'1"2K4(1$"2*!-'K4(4-!,"1-4()4(5-!6&!;"'#(F-229(G$-!-(
)!-()($"#$('0;J-!(&6(#&&*(<0)2"%/(1$"2*(1)!-(5!&,"*-!4("'(%$-(1"%/=(F"%$(&,-!(
$)26(&6(%$-('0!4-!"-4(5!&,"*"'#()'(&0%4%)'*"'#(4-!,"1-9(>!";)!/(41$&&24(5!&,"*-(
)(#&&*(2-,-2(&6(-*01)%"&'()'*(4055&!%(%&("%4(505"24()'*(1$"2*!-'()%(5!";)!/(
41$&&24("'( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(*&(J-%%-!(%$)'(-24-F$-!-("'(%$-(1&0'%!/9(E,-!)22=
%$-(<0)2"%/(&6(4-1&'*)!/(-*01)%"&'("4('&%()4(#&&*()4(4";"2)!()!-)4()'*(&'-(
4-1&'*)!/(41$&&2("4('&%(;--%"'#(%$-(!-<0"!-*(-*01)%"&')2(4%)'*)!*49(:%(8T=(
1$"2*!-'K4(U.SD(!-402%4()!-(I04%(J-2&F(%$-(')%"&')2(),-!)#-9(

 !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-($)4(#&%(%F&(#&&*(4"A(6&!;(1&22-#-4(%$)%(-'40!-(%$)%(;)'/(
/&0'#(5-&52-(*&(F-22(J&%$("'(%$-"!(U.D(:S(L(:(2-,-2(!-402%49(G$-(4%)'*)!*4(&6(
41$&&2(4"A%$(6&!;4("'(%$-(1"%/()!-($&F-,-!(J-2&F(%$-(')%"&')2(),-!)#-()'*(
'--*(";5!&,"'#9(V&!-(/&0'#(5-&52-()#-*(8TN8W()!-(#&"'#("'%&(-*01)%"&'=(
-;52&/;-'%(&!(%!)"'"'#()'*(/&0'#(5-&52-K4(4H"224()%(8R()!-(#&&*9(.$"2*!-'(
F"%$(45-1")2('--*4=(%$&4-(6!&;(2&F("'1&;-(6);"2"-4=(%$&4-("'(1)!-()'*(6!&;(
-%$'"1(;"'&!"%/(J)1H#!&0'*4(*&()4(F-22()%(41$&&2()'*(1&22-#-4()4(&%$-!(4";"2)!(
)!-)49(

X&!(1$"2*!-'()'*(/&0'#(5-&52-(F$&4-(1"!10;4%)'1-4(;)H-(%$-;(,02'-!)J2-=(
%$-(1$"2*!-'K4($&;-4()'*(%$-(6&4%-!"'#()#-'1/(5!&,"*-()'(&0%4%)'*"'#(4-!,"1-9
G$-(45-1")2(41$&&24()'*(%$-()*&5%"&'()#-'1/()!-(#&&*()'*(%$-(5!",)%-(
6&4%-!"'#()!!)'#-;-'%4()!-(4)%"46)1%&!/(&,-!)229(>-!6&!;)'1-("'*"1)%&!4(4$&F(
%$)%(%$-(.&0'1"2K4(5-!6&!;)'1-("'($-25"'#(1$"2*!-'("'(1)!-(4%)/(4)6-()'*(*&(
F-22()%(41$&&2("4(4";"2)!(%&(&%$-!()!-)49(G$-(.&0'1"2(!-45&'*4(-66-1%",-2/()'*(
<0"1H2/(F$-'(1$"2*!-'()!-(!-6-!!-*(%&(1$"2*!-'(4-!,"1-4()'*(%$-(45--*(&6(
)44-44"'#()(1$"2*K4('--*4("4(J-%%-!(%$)'(-24-F$-!-9(

G$-(.)!-(Y0)2"%/(.&;;"44"&'($)4(!)%-*(%$-(.&0'1"2K4()*02%(4&1")2(1)!-()4(
5-!6&!;"'#(F-229(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(5!&,"*"'#(#&&*(4-!,"1-4(6&!(%$-(5-&52-(F$&(
04-(%$-(4-!,"1-4()'*(6&!(%$-(1)!-!49(D66-1%",-(4$&!%(%-!;($&;-(1)!-(4055&!%("4(
$-25"'#(;)'/(5-&52-(%&(4%)/()%($&;-(2&'#-!()'*($)4(!-*01-*(%$-('0;J-!(&6(
)*02%4('--*"'#(2&'#-!(%-!;(1)!-9(S-!,"1-4(6&!(1)!-!4()'*(%$&4-(F$&('--*(1)!-(
)!-(1&;5!-$-'4",-()'*()!-(J)4-*(&'(F$)%(%$-/(F)'%9(G$-(1$&"1-(&6(F$&(
5!&,"*-4(1)!-(4-!,"1-4("4("'1!-)4"'#()'*(;&'-/(N(H'&F'()4(*"!-1%(5)/;-'%4(N("4
#",-'(%&(%$&4-(F$&('--*(1)!-(4&(%$)%(%$-/(1)'(5)/(6&!("%(%$-;4-2,-49(.)!-!4(
)'*(5-&52-(F$&(04-(4-!,"1-4=("'120*"'#(%$&4-(F$&(60'*(%$-"!(&F'(1)!-=()!-(
4055&!%-*(J/()(F"*-(!)'#-(&6("'6&!;)%"&'()'*()*,"1-=(F$"1$("'120*-4($-25"'#(
5-&52-(%&(12)";()22(%$-(J-'-6"%4(%$)%()!-(),)"2)J2-(%&(%$-;9(G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(
;)*-(J"#(";5!&,-;-'%4("'(!-45&'4-(%";-4(6&!(!-<0-4%4(6&!($&;-(1)!-(4055&!%(
)'*(;"'&!()*)5%)%"&'4(%&(5-&52-K4($&;-4=()2%$&0#$(%$-(.&0'1"2K4(5-!6&!;)'1-
"4('&%()4(#&&*()4(4";"2)!()0%$&!"%"-49(G$-(.&0'1"2(F&!H4(F-22(F"%$(2&1)2(J04"'-44
%&(";5!&,-(-;52&/;-'%(&55&!%0'"%"-4(6&!(5-&52-(F"%$(2-)!'"'#(*"4)J"2"%"-49(G$-(
.&0'1"2=(%&#-%$-!(F"%$(5)!%'-!4=("'120*"'#(%$-(,&20'%)!/()'*("'*-5-'*-'%(
5!&,"*-!4()!-(F&!H"'#(F-22(%&(-'40!-(,02'-!)J2-()*02%4()!-(4)6-9(

>-&52-(2"H-(2","'#("'( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-=(6--2(%$)%(%$-/(%!-)%(-)1$(&%$-!(F"%$(
!-45-1%()'*(6--2(%$)%(5-&52-(6!&;(*"66-!-'%(J)1H#!&0'*4(#-%(&'(F-22(%&#-%$-!9
:(!-1-'%(40!,-/(4$&F4(%$)%(WT(5-!(1-'%(&6(5-&52-()!-(4)%"46"-*(F"%$( !"#$%&'(L
+&,-()4()(52)1-(%&(2",-9(O-)!2/(R(&0%(&6(8Q(!-4"*-'%4(4)/(%$)%(5-&52-(6!&;(
*"66-!-'%(J)1H#!&0'*4(#-%(&'(F-22(%&#-%$-!()'*(Z(&0%(&6(8Q(5-&52-(6--2(%$)%(
%$-/(%!-)%(-)1$(&%$-!(F"%$(1&'4"*-!)%"&'()'*(!-45-1%=(F$"1$()!-(;01$($"#$-!(
%$)'(4";"2)!()!-)49(G$-(.&0'1"2(F"%$(&%$-!4($)4()(4%!&'#(!-50%)%"&'(6&!(

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     3     Brighton and Hove City Council 87



%$-/(%!-)%(-)1$(&%$-!(F"%$(1&'4"*-!)%"&'()'*(!-45-1%=(F$"1$()!-(;01$($"#$-!(
%$)'(4";"2)!()!-)49(G$-(.&0'1"2(F"%$(&%$-!4($)4()(4%!&'#(!-50%)%"&'(6&!(
1-2-J!)%"'#(%$-(*",-!4"%/(F"%$"'(%$-(1"%/(%$!&0#$(6&!(-A);52-(%$-( !"#$%&'(
6-4%",)2()'*(>!"*-(%$-(1&0'%!/K4(2)!#-4%([-4J")'=(U)/=( "N4-A0)2()'*(
G!)'4#-'*-!(6-4%",)2()'*(%$-!-("4()(!-)2(4-'4-(&6(1&;;0'"%/(F"%$"'(%$-(1"%/9(

+&04-(5!"1-4("'( !"#$%&'()!-($"#$=(J0%(%$-(.&0'1"2($)4(*&'-(F-22("'(5!&,"*"'#(
?@?($&;-4(%$)%(2&1)2(5-&52-(1)'()66&!*(%&(J0/(&!(!-'%(2)4%(/-)!=(F$"1$("4(
)J&,-("%4(%)!#-%9(M%($)4()24&(!-*01-*(%$-('0;J-!(&6(-;5%/(5!",)%-(5!&5-!%"-4("'
%$-(1"%/9(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(1&'6"*-'%(%$)%("%(F"22(;--%(%$-(#&,-!';-'%(%)!#-%(%&(
J0"2*(88=(CQQ('-F($&;-4(J/(?Q?T=(F$"1$(F"22("'120*-($&;-4(%$)%(2&1)2(5-&52-(
1)'()66&!*9(

G$-(.&0'1"2(41&!-4(@(&0%(&6(C(6&!(\4-(&6(]-4&0!1-49(G$-(.&0'1"2(2&&H4(1)!-6022/
)%(%$-(;&'-/("%($)4(%&(45-'*=()'*(52)'4()1%","%"-4(J)4-*(&'(%$"49(G$-(.&0'1"2(
;)')#-4("%4(;&'-/(F-22()'*(45-'*4("%(&'(F$)%(;)%%-!4(%&(2&1)2(5-&52-9(G$-(
.&0'1"2(52)'4(F-22(F$"1$(-')J2-*("%(%&(*-)2(-66-1%",-2/(F"%$()(40J4%)'%")2(-<0)2
5)/(12)";9(M%(4-%4(%)!#-%4(%&(;)H-(4),"'#4()'*(04-4(),)"2)J2-("'6&!;)%"&'(%&(
$-25("'(;)H"'#(*-1"4"&'4(&'($&F(F-22(4-!,"1-4()!-(!0'9(G$"4("4(4055&!%-*(J/()(
5!&#!);;-(&6(4-!,"1-(!-,"-F4(%$)%(-'40!-4(%$)%(2&1)2(5-&52-()!-(#-%%"'#(#&&*(
,)20-(6&!(;&'-/(6!&;("%4(4-!,"1-49(

G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(;)*-(40!-(%$)%(.&0'1"22&!4()'*(4-'"&!(4%)66()!-($-2*(
!-45&'4"J2-(6&!(%$-(;&'-/(%$-/(1&'%!&29(G$-!-()!-(!-#02)!(.&0'1"2(;--%"'#4(
F$-!-(.&0'1"22&!4(&,-!4--(J0*#-%4=()'*(;)H-(40!-(%$)%(.&0'1"22&!4()'*(4%)66(
)!-(J-$),"'#(5!&5-!2/=(6&!(-A);52-("'()F)!*"'#(1&'%!)1%4(&!(12)";"'#(
-A5-'4-49(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(;)H"'#("'6&!;)%"&'(&'("%4(5-!6&!;)'1-(-)4"-!(%&(6"'*9
M%("4(*-,-2&5"'#(F-22(%$-(F)/(*-1"4"&'4()!-(%)H-'=(%$-(F)/(!"4H4()!-(;)')#-*(
)'*($&F("%(J0/4(#&&*4()'*(4-!,"1-49(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(!-*01"'#($&F(;01$("%(
5&220%-4(%$-(-',"!&';-'%()'*("4(-'1&0!)#"'#(2&1)2(5-&52-()'*(J04"'-44-4(%&(*&
%$-(4);-9(

;<-3,'(#)*+,-.'$./'0-!"'1),2'1-3.4)%'

:J&0%(?PQ(QQQ(5-&52-(2",-("'(%$-(1"%/(&6( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-()'*(%$-('0;J-!("4(
"'1!-)4"'#9(G$-(5&502)%"&'("4(#-'-!)22/(/&0'#()'*(*",-!4-(F"%$(;)'/(5-&52-(
J&!'(&0%4"*-(D'#2)'*()'*()(2)!#-(4%0*-'%(5&502)%"&'9(>-&52-()!-()%%!)1%-*(%&(
%$-(1"%/(J-1)04-(&6("%4(,"J!)'%()'*(*",-!4-(102%0!-()'*("%4(2&1)%"&'(J/(%$-(4-)=(
12&4-(%&([&'*&'9(

V)'/(5-&52-("'(%$-(1"%/()!-($"#$2/(<0)2"6"-*(J0%(%$-(2&1)2(-1&'&;/("4(
*&;"')%-*(J/(;)'/(2&F(4H"22(I&J49(:*;"44"&'4(%&($&45"%)2(!-2)%-*(%&()21&$&2=(
40"1"*-(!)%-4()'*(;-'%)2("22'-44()!-($"#$(1&;5)!-*(%&(&%$-!()!-)49(

O&'-(&6(%$-(5&2"%"1)2(5)!%"-4("4("'(&,-!)22(1&'%!&29(G$-(.&'4-!,)%",-4()4(%$-(
;)I&!"%/(5)!%/(1&'%!&22"'#(?P(&6(%$-(PC(4-)%4(2-)*(%$-(.&0'1"29(G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(
F&!H-*(F"%$(2&1)2(5-&52-()'*()#!--*(6",-(5!"&!"%"-49(G$-4-()!-7(

N(>!&%-1%(%$-(-',"!&';-'%(F$"2-(#!&F"'#(%$-(-1&'&;/(

N(]-*01"'#("'-<0)2"%/(J/("'1!-)4"'#(&55&!%0'"%/(

N(X)"!(-'6&!1-;-'%(&6(%$-(2)F(

N( -%%-!(04-(&6(50J2"1(;&'-/(

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     4     Brighton and Hove City Council 88



N( -%%-!(04-(&6(50J2"1(;&'-/(

N(E5-'()'*(-66-1%",-(1"%/(2-)*-!4$"5(

 #*$.)8$,)-.$%'$88"887".,''

=#-,"4,).*',+"'".!)#-.7".,'9+)%"'*#-9).*',+"'

"4-.-72''''

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(F&!H"'#(F"%$(&%$-!(&!#)'"4)%"&'4()'*(2&1)2(5-&52-(%&(";5!&,-(
%$-(1"%/^4(-',"!&';-'%9(M%($)4(2&&H-*()%($&F(;01$("%(5&220%-4(%$-(1"%/()'*("4(
F&!H"'#(F"%$(2&1)2(5-&52-()'*(2&1)2(J04"'-44-4(%&(10%(%$"4(*&F'9(M%($)4(
";5!&,-*(%$-(-66"1"-'1/(&6(1&0'1"2(J0"2*"'#4()'*($)4(!-*01-*(1)!J&'(-;"44"&'4(
J/(C(5-!(1-'%=(F$"1$($)4(4),-*(_PQ=QQQ(6!&;(%$-(.&0'1"2^4(-'-!#/(J"229(G$-(
.&0'1"2("4(F&!H"'#()%(!-*01"'#(1)!J&'(-;"44"&'4(6!&;(,-$"12-4(J/(-'1&0!)#"'#(
2&1)2(J04"'-44-4(%&(04-()2%-!')%",-(6&!;4(&6(%!)'45&!%()'*("%(5!&,"*-*(8Q(
-2-1%!"1(,-$"12-(1$)!#"'#(5&"'%4("'(?QQW`QR9(((

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(*&"'#(F-22()%($-25"'#(1!-)%-(;&!-(I&J4(6&!(5-&52-("'(%$-(1"%/9(
G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(F&!H-*(4011-446022/(F"%$(2&1)2(J04"'-44-4(%&(#-%(5-&52-(F"%$(
%$-(!"#$%(4H"224(;)%1$-*(%&(%$-(!"#$%(I&J4=(6&!(-A);52-=(B"!-*(S044-A("4()(
41$-;-(%&(;)%1$(;-*")(5!&6-44"&')24(F"%$(%$-(1"%/^4(*"#"%)2(;-*")(J04"'-44-49(
PQ(5-!(1-'%(&6(%$&4-(F$&(%&&H(5)!%($),-(J--'(&66-!-*()(I&J9(G$-(.&0'1"2(F"%$
&%$-!4("4($-25"'#(%$-(2&'#(%-!;(0'-;52&/-*()'*(5-&52-("'('--*(#-%()(I&J9(G$-(
a #-%(J)1H(%&(F&!Hb (41$-;-($)4(5!&,"*-*(@Q(F&!H(52)1-;-'%4()'*(P(I&J4(6&!(
5-&52-(12)";"'#(J-'-6"%4()'*(%$-(2&1)2(-;52&/;-'%(41$-;-($)4($-25-*(PW(
2&1)2(!-4"*-'%4(6!&;(*"4)*,)'%)#-*(J)1H#!&0'*4(#-%()(I&J9(M%()24&("4($-25"'#(
2&1)2(5-&52-(*-,-2&5(%$-(4H"224(%$-(1"%/('--*4(J/(-;52&/"'#(8R()55!-'%"1-4(%&(
2-)!'(%$-(4H"224()'*(%!)*-4(F)'%-*(J/(2&1)2(-;52&/-!49((

[&1)2(J04"'-44-4()!-(J-"'#(4055&!%-*(%$!&0#$(%$-(-1&'&;"1(!-1-44"&'9(G$-(
.&0'1"2("4($-25"'#(2&1)2(J04"'-44-4(J/(5)/"'#(F$)%("%(&F-4(%$-;("'(%-'(F&!H"'#
*)/4(!)%$-!(%$)'(%$-(4%)'*)!*(%$"!%/(*)/4=(J/(5!&,"*"'#(J04"'-44()*,"1-(12"'"14(
)'*(J/(,"4"%"'#(8=8QQ(4;)22(J04"'-44-4(%&(-'1&0!)#-(%$-;(%&()552/(6&!(J04"'-44
!)%-(!-2"-69(M%($)4()24&(#&%(8ZQ(2&1)2(J04"'-44-4(4"#'-*(05(%&(%$-( -([&1)2=( 0/(
[&1)2(1);5)"#'=(((

G$-(.&0'1"2("4($-25"'#(2&1)2(5-&52-(%$!&0#$(%$-(1!-*"%(1!0'1$9(>-&52-()!-(
-'1&0!)#-*(%&(12)";()22(%$-(J-'-6"%4(%$-/()!-(-'%"%2-*(%&()'*(%$-(.&0'1"2(
H'&F4(%$)%("%('--*4(%&(45--*(05($&F("%(*-)24(F"%$(J-'-6"%(12)";4(J-1)04-(
*-2)/4()66-1%(;)'/(5-&52-(F$&(4066-!(*"4)*,)'%)#-9(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(F&!H"'#(
F"%$(%$&4-(F$&(;)/(J-()%(!"4H(&6(2&4"'#(%$-"!($&;-4()'*("%($)4(J--'(4011-44602
"'(!-*01"'#(%$-('0;J-!(&6(5-&52-(J-1&;"'#($&;-2-44=("'120*"'#(/&0'#(5-&52-9
G$-!-($)4(J--'()(J"#(*!&5("'(%$-('0;J-!(&6(5-&52-(42--5"'#(!&0#$(&'(%$-(
4%!--%49(G$-('0;J-!4("'(%-;5&!)!/()11&;;&*)%"&'(4%"22(!-;)"'(1&;5)!)%",-2/(
$"#$9(G$-(.&0'1"2($)*(@TT($&04-$&2*4("'(%-;5&!)!/()11&;;&*)%"&'("'(
?QQW`QR=(F$"1$("4(F)/()J&,-(%$-('0;J-!("'(4";"2)!()0%$&!"%"-49(G$-(.&0'1"2(
$)4($&F-,-!(!-*01-*(%$"4(%&(@QT($&04-$&2*4("'(%-;5&!)!/()11&;;&*)%"&'(J/(
c02/(?QQR9(((

+&04-(5!"1-4("'( !"#$%&'()!-($"#$=(J0%(%$-(.&0'1"2($)4(*&'-(F-22("'(5!&,"*"'#(
?@?($&;-4(%$)%(2&1)2(5-&52-(1)'()66&!*(%&(J0/(&!(!-'%(2)4%(/-)!=(F$"1$("4(
)J&,-("%4(%)!#-%9(M%($)4()24&(!-*01-*(%$-('0;J-!(&6(-;5%/(5!",)%-(5!&5-!%"-4("'

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     5     Brighton and Hove City Council 89



?@?($&;-4(%$)%(2&1)2(5-&52-(1)'()66&!*(%&(J0/(&!(!-'%(2)4%(/-)!=(F$"1$("4(
)J&,-("%4(%)!#-%9(M%($)4()24&(!-*01-*(%$-('0;J-!(&6(-;5%/(5!",)%-(5!&5-!%"-4("'
%$-(1"%/9(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(1&'6"*-'%(%$)%("%(F"22(;--%(%$-(#&,-!';-'%(%)!#-%(%&(
J0"2*(88=(CQQ('-F($&;-4(J/(?Q?T(F$"1$(F"22("'120*-($&;-4(%$)%(2&1)2(5-&52-(
1)'()66&!*9((

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(*&"'#(F-22()%(";5!&,"'#(5!",)%-(4-1%&!($&04"'#9(B&!H"'#(F"%$(
&%$-!4("'(%$-( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-()'*(D)4%(S044-A(G&#-%$-!(d DSGe(5)!%'-!4$"5(
%$-(.&0'1"2(#&%(60'*"'#(&6(_?9P(;"22"&'(F$"1$("%("4($)4(04-*(%&(";5!&,-(5!",)%-(
$&04"'#("'(%$-(1"%/=(5)!%"102)!2/(6&!(%$&4-(5-&52-(F$&()!-(;&4%("'('--*=(G$-(
.&0'1"2($-25-*(ZCW($&04-$&2*4(%&(J-()J2-(%&()66&!*(%&(H--5(%$-"!($&;-4(F)!;
"'(%$-(F"'%-!(*0!"'#(?QQW9((((

:2;&4%($)26(&6(2&1)2(1&0'1"2($&;-4(6)"2(%&(;--%(;"'";0;(#&,-!';-'%(
4%)'*)!*49((G$-(.&0'1"2(*-1"*-*(%&(%!)'46-!(1&0'1"2($&;-4(%&()($&04"'#(
)44&1")%"&'(J0%()(%-')'%(J)22&%("'(?QQZ(!-I-1%-*(%$"4(&5%"&'9(M%($)4(F&!H-*($)!*
4"'1-(%$-'(%&("',&2,-(%-')'%4("'(*-1"4"&'4(&,-!(%$-(60%0!-(&6(%$-($&04"'#(4%&1H9(
+&F-,-!=("%("4(12-)!(%$-(#&,-!';-'%^4(%)!#-%(6&!()1$"-,"'#(%$-(*-1-'1/(
4%)'*)!*(J/(?Q8Q(F"22(J-(;"44-*=(2)!#-2/(*0-(%&(2)1H(&6(5!&#!-44("'(6"'*"'#()(
F&!H)J2-(4&20%"&'9([)!#-();&0'%4(&6(;&'-/()!-('--*-*(%&(60'*(%$-(F&!H(
!-<0"!-*(%&(J!"'#($&;-4(05(%&()'()11-5%)J2-(4%)'*)!*9((G$-!-($)4(J--'(!-1-'%
5!&#!-44(F"%$(52)'4(%&(";5!&,-(%$-4-($&;-(J0%(;)I&!(0'1-!%)"'%"-4(!-;)"'9(
G$"4(;-)'4(%$)%(%$-(5!&I-1%-*()1$"-,-;-'%(&6(;"'";0;(4%)'*)!*4(J/(?Q8@("4(
'&%(1-!%)"'9(((

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(!-*01"'#(%$-();&0'%(&6(!0JJ"4$("%(4-'*4(%&(2)'*6"229(G$-(.&0'1"2(
$)4(42"#$%2/(";5!&,-*(%$-();&0'%("%(!-1/12-4=(J0%("%4(5-!6&!;)'1-("4(J-2&F(%$-(
')%"&')2(),-!)#-()'*(%$-!-("4(%&&(;01$(F)4%-(#&"'#(%&(2)'*N6"22(4"%-49(G$-(
.&0'1"2(!-1/12"'#(!)%-("4(?R9P(5-!(1-'%("'(?QQW`QR(1&;5)!-*(%&(?W9@R(5-!(1-'%(
"'(?QQZ`QW9(:(!-1-'%(40!,-/(4$&F4(%$)%(%$-(!-4"*-'%(4)%"46)1%"&'(F"%$(%$-(
!-604-(1&22-1%"&'(4-!,"1-=(*&&!4%-5(!-1/12"'#()'*(%$-(!-1/12"'#(1-'%!-4("4(J-2&F
4";"2)!()!-)49(G$-(.&0'1"2(!-1&#'"4-4(%$-('--*(6&!(";5!&,-;-'%()'*("4(
%$-!-6&!-(4%-)*"2/(";5!&,"'#(%$-(F)4%-(1&22-1%"&'()'*(!-1/12"'#(4-!,"1-9(M%($)4(
!&22-*(&0%(TQQ(1&;;0')2(J"'4("'(%$-(1-'%!-(&6(%$-(1"%/=(F$"1$($)4(!-402%-*("'(
4"#'"6"1)'%(";5!&,-;-'%4("'(4%!--%(12-)'2"'-44("'(%$&4-()!-)49((

[&1)2(5-&52-()!-(4)%"46"-*(F"%$( !"#$%&'()4()(52)1-(%&(2",-9(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(
F&!H"'#(F"%$(&%$-!4(%&(!-;&,-(2"%%-!()'*(#!";-9(X&!(-A);52-=(5!&J2-;4(F"%$(
)J)'*&'-*(&!(J0!'%(&0%(1)!4('&F(4%)'*4()%(Z(5-!(1-'%(6!&;()($"#$(&6(C8(5-!(
1-'%("'(?QQ@9(PP(5-!(1-'%(&6(2&1)2(5-&52-()!-(52-)4-*(F"%$(4%!--%(12-)'2"'-44(
F$"1$("4($"#$(1&;5)!-*(F"%$(&%$-!(52)1-49((

>0J2"1(%!)'45&!%(F"%$"'( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-("4(#&&*9(E,-!)22(4)%"46)1%"&'(F"%$(%$-
2&1)2(J04(4-!,"1-("4(,-!/($"#$9(>-&52-()!-(4)%"46"-*(F"%$(%$-(4-!,"1-()'*(
6!-<0-'1/(&6(%$-(J04-4=(%$-(<0)2"%/(&6(%$-("'6&!;)%"&'(#",-'()'*(%$-('0;J-!(
&6(J04(4%&549(((

>"/34).*')."?3$%),2'<2').4#"$8).*'-55-#,3.),2'

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(-66-1%",-()%(!-*01"'#("'-<0)2"%/()1!&44(%$-(1"%/(J/(";5!&,"'#(%$-(
&55&!%0'"%"-4(6&!()22("%4(1$"2*!-'()'*(/&0'#(5-&52-()'*($-25"'#(%$&4-()*02%4("'(
;&4%('--*9(G$-(E64%-*(!)%"'#(6&!(1$"2*!-'^4(4-!,"1-4("'( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-("4(
%$)%("%(5-!6&!;4(F-229(G$-(.&0'1"2($)4()(#&&*(0'*-!4%)'*"'#(&6(%$-('--*4(&6(
2&1)2(5-&52-()'*("%($)4(J--'(4011-44602("'(-'1&0!)#"'#(%$-(*-,-2&5;-'%(&6(
;&!-(1$"2*(1)!-(4-%%"'#4()1!&44(%$-(1"%/9(G$-!-()!-()($"#$('0;J-!(&6(#&&*(
<0)2"%/(1$"2*(1)!-(5!&,"*-!4("'(%$-(1"%/9(O0!4-!"-4()!-(J-%%-!(%$)'(-24-F$-!-=(

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     6     Brighton and Hove City Council 90



;&!-(1$"2*(1)!-(4-%%"'#4()1!&44(%$-(1"%/9(G$-!-()!-()($"#$('0;J-!(&6(#&&*(
<0)2"%/(1$"2*(1)!-(5!&,"*-!4("'(%$-(1"%/9(O0!4-!"-4()!-(J-%%-!(%$)'(-24-F$-!-=(
F"%$(&,-!($)26(&6(%$-;(5!&,"*"'#()'(&0%4%)'*"'#(4-!,"1-9(.$"2*;"'*-!4(5!&,"*-(
)(4)%"46)1%&!/(4-!,"1-(&,-!)229((((

>!";)!/(41$&&24(5!&,"*-()(#&&*(2-,-2(&6(-*01)%"&'()'*(4055&!%(%&("%4(505"24()'*
1$"2*!-'()%(5!";)!/(41$&&24("'( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(*&(J-%%-!(%$)'(-24-F$-!-("'(
%$-(1&0'%!/9(E,-!)22=(%$-(<0)2"%/(&6(4-1&'*)!/(-*01)%"&'("4('&%()4(#&&*()4(
4";"2)!()!-)4()'*(&'-(4-1&'*)!/(41$&&2("4('&%(;--%"'#(%$-(!-<0"!-*(
-*01)%"&')2(4%)'*)!*49(:%(8T=(1$"2*!-'^4(U.SD(!-402%4()!-(I04%(J-2&F(%$-(
')%"&')2(),-!)#-9(((

 !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-($)4(#&%(%F&(#&&*(4"A(6&!;(1&22-#-4(%$)%(-'40!-(%$)%(;)'/(
/&0'#(5-&52-(*&(F-22(J&%$("'(%$-"!(U.D(:S(L(:(2-,-2(!-402%49(G$-(&,-!)22(
<0)2"%/(&6(41$&&2(4"A%$(6&!;4("'(%$-(1"%/("4('&%()4(#&&*()4(-24-F$-!-($&F-,-!(
)'*('--*4(";5!&,"'#9(G$-(1&0'1"2(F"%$(&%$-!4("4(-66-1%",-()%(-'1&0!)#"'#()'*(
$-25"'#(41$&&2(2-),-!4()%(8T(%&(*-,-2&5(%$-(4H"224(%$-/('--*(6&!(60%0!-(F&!H9(
V&!-(/&0'#(5-&52-()#-*(8TN8W()!-(#&"'#("'%&(-*01)%"&'=(-;52&/;-'%(&!(
%!)"'"'#()'*(/&0'#(5-&52-^4(4H"224()%(8R()!-(#&&*9(G$-('0;J-!(&6(/&0'#(5-&52-
F$&(#)"'([-,-2(?(&!(@(<0)2"6"1)%"&'4(f (-<0",)2-'%(%&(6",-(#&&*(U.SD4()'*(
$"#$-!(2-,-2(<0)2"6"1)%"&'4(N("4(4"#'"6"1)'%2/()J&,-(%$-(')%"&')2(),-!)#-9((

.$"2*!-'(F"%$(45-1")2('--*4=(%$&4-(6!&;(2&F("'1&;-(6);"2"-4=(%$&4-("'(1)!-()'*
6!&;(-%$'"1(;"'&!"%/(J)1H#!&0'*4(*&()4(F-22()%(41$&&2()4(&%$-!(4";"2)!()!-)49(
 !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-("4()24&(4--"'#()'("'1!-)4-("'(%$-('0;J-!(&6(/&0'#(5-&52-(
6!&;(%$-4-(J)1H#!&0'*4(#&"'#("'%&($"#$-!(-*01)%"&'=(401$()4(0'",-!4"%"-49(((

G$-(1$"2*!-'^4($&;-4()'*(%$-(1&0'1"2^4(6&4%-!"'#()#-'1/()!-(&0%4%)'*"'#()'*(
4055&!%(1$"2*!-'()'*(/&0'#(5-&52-(F$&4-(1"!10;4%)'1-4(;)H-(%$-;(
,02'-!)J2-(,-!/(F-229(G$-(45-1")2(41$&&24()'*(%$-()*&5%"&'()#-'1/(5!&,"*-()(
#&&*(4-!,"1-()'*(%$-(5!",)%-(6&4%-!"'#()!!)'#-;-'%4()!-(4)%"46)1%&!/(&,-!)229(
>-!6&!;)'1-("'*"1)%&!4(4$&F(%$)%(%$-(.&0'1"2^4(5-!6&!;)'1-("'($-25"'#(
1$"2*!-'("'(1)!-(4%)/(4)6-()'*(*&(F-22()%(41$&&2("4(4";"2)!(%&(&%$-!()!-)49(G$-(
.&0'1"2(!-45&'*4(-66-1%",-2/()'*(<0"1H2/(F$-'(1$"2*!-'()!-(!-6-!!-*(%&(
1$"2*!-'(4-!,"1-4()'*(%$-(45--*(&6()44-44"'#()(1$"2*^4('--*4("4(J-%%-!(%$)'(
-24-F$-!-9((((

G$-(.&0'1"2(F"%$("%4(5)!%'-!4("4(-66-1%",-()%(5!&;&%"'#($-)2%$/(2"6-(4%/2-4(6&!(
1$"2*!-'("'(%$-(1"%/9(:22(41$&&24($),-()1$"-,-*($-)2%$/(41$&&2(4%)%04()'*(%$-(
'0;J-!(&6(&J-4-(1$"2*!-'()#-*(@N88("4(2&F-!(%$)'(-24-F$-!-9(G$-(.&0'1"2(
F"%$(&%$-!4($)4("'1!-)4-*(%$-(5)!%"1"5)%"&'(!)%-4("'(2-"40!-()'*(45&!%(J/(
1$"2*!-'()'*(/&0'#(5-&52-9(R@?(/&0'#(5-&52-(5)!%"1"5)%-*("'(40;;-!(60'(
)1%","%"-4()'*(8T=?8T(/&0'#(5-&52-(5)!%"1"5)%-*("'(%$-(a %)H-(5)!%b (-,-'%("'(
%$-(40;;-!(&6(?QQW9(((

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(5!&,"*"'#(#&&*(4-!,"1-4(6&!()*02%4(F$&('--*(4055&!%()'*(1)!-9(
G$-(.&0'1"2("4(1$)'#"'#(%$-(F)/("%(5!&,"*-4(4-!,"1-4(%&()*02%4(4&(%$)%(%$-/(
$),-(;&!-(1$&"1-()'*()!-()J2-(%&(2",-("'(%$-"!(&F'($&;-4(6&!(2&'#-!9(U&&*(
4$&!%(%-!;($&;-(1)!-(4055&!%("4($-25"'#(;)'/(5-&52-(%&(4%)/()%($&;-(2&'#-!(
F"%$&0%('--*"'#(%&(#&(%&($&45"%)2()'*("4($-25"'#(%&(!-*01-(%$-(%";-(5-&52-()!-
"'($&45"%)29(G$"4(4055&!%($)4(!-*01-*(%$-('0;J-!(&6()*02%4('--*"'#(2&'#-!(
%-!;(1)!-("'(?QQW`QR9(G$-(.&0'1"2()24&(5!&,"*-4(#&&*(4055&!%(%&(%$&4-(5-&52-(
2-),"'#($&45"%)2(4&(%$)%(%$-/()!-()J2-(%&()*I04%(;&!-(<0"1H2/(%&(2","'#(
"'*-5-'*-'%2/()%($&;-9(+&F-,-!=(%$"4(#&&*(F&!H($)4('&%(/-%(J--'(!-62-1%-*(
"'(5&4"%",-(!-4"*-'%(6--*J)1H9(:(!-1-'%(40!,-/(4$&F-*(%$)%(&'2/()(<0)!%-!(&6(
2&1)2(5-&52-(6-2%(%$)%(&2*-!(5-&52-(!-1-",-*(%$-(4055&!%(%$-/('--*(%&(2",-(
"'*-5-'*-'%2/(F$"1$("4(2-44(%$)'(;&4%(&%$-!(52)1-4("'(%$-(1&0'%!/9(((

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     7     Brighton and Hove City Council 91



2&1)2(5-&52-(6-2%(%$)%(&2*-!(5-&52-(!-1-",-*(%$-(4055&!%(%$-/('--*(%&(2",-(
"'*-5-'*-'%2/(F$"1$("4(2-44(%$)'(;&4%(&%$-!(52)1-4("'(%$-(1&0'%!/9(((

G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(4"#'"6"1)'%2/(";5!&,-*(!-45&'4-(%";-4(6&!(!-<0-4%4(6&!($&;-(
1)!-(4055&!%()'*(;"'&!()*)5%)%"&'4(%&(5-&52-^4($&;-4=()2%$&0#$(%$-(.&0'1"2^4
5-!6&!;)'1-("4('&%()4(#&&*()4(-24-F$-!-9(>-&52-()!-($&F-,-!($"#$2/(4)%"46"-*(
F"%$(%$-(4-!,"1-(5!&,"*-*9(G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(";5!&,-*()11-44(%&("%4(4-!,"1-4(6&!(
)22()*02%4=(4&(%$)%()'/(!-4"*-'%(1)'(J-(#",-'()*,"1-()'*(4055&!%9( /(I&"'%(
F&!H"'#()!!)'#-;-'%4(F"%$(%$-(3-5)!%;-'%(&6(B&!H()'*(>-'4"&'4(%$-(
.&0'1"2($)4()24&(-'1&0!)#-*(5-&52-(%&(12)";()22(%$-(J-'-6"%4(),)"2)J2-(%&(%$-;9
(((

G$-(.&0'1"2(F&!H4(F-22(F"%$(2&1)2(-;52&/-!4(%&(";5!&,-(-;52&/;-'%(
&55&!%0'"%"-4(6&!(5-&52-(F"%$(2-)!'"'#(*"4)J"2"%"-49(G$"4($)4(!-402%-*("'()($"#$(
'0;J-!(&6(5-&52-(F"%$()(2-)!'"'#(*"4)J"2"%/(#-%%"'#()(6022N%";-(I&J=(F$-'(
1&;5)!-*(%&(-24-F$-!-9(G$-(.&0'1"2("4()1%",-2/(5!&;&%"'#()'*(-'1&0!)#"'#(
$-)2%$"-!()'*(4)6-!(2"6-4%/2-4(6&!(5-&52-(F"%$(2-)!'"'#(*"4)J"2"%"-4()'*(;-'%)2(
$-)2%$('--*4(X&!(-A);52-=($)26(&6(%$-(F)2H-!4(&'(%$-(g+-)2%$(F)2H^(41$-;-(
$),-(1$!&'"1($-)2%$(1&'*"%"&'4(&!()!-(*"4)J2-*9(((

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(F&!H"'#(F"%$(&%$-!4(%&(5!&,"*-(1)!-(4-!,"1-4(%$)%(";5!&,-(%$-(
<0)2"%/(&6(2"6-(6&!()*02%4("'('--*9(S-!,"1-4(6&!(1)!-!4()'*(%$&4-(F$&('--*(1)!-(
)!-(1&;5!-$-'4",-()'*()!-(J)4-*(&'(F$)%(%$-/(F)'%9(G$-(1$&"1-(&6(F$&(
5!&,"*-4(1)!-(4-!,"1-4("4("'1!-)4"'#()'*(;&'-/(N(H'&F'()4(*"!-1%(5)/;-'%4(N("4
#",-'(%&(%$&4-(F$&('--*(1)!-(4&(%$)%(%$-/(1)'(5)/(6&!("%(%$-;4-2,-49(G$-(
.&0'1"2("4()24&(-'40!"'#()'/(4-!,"1-(5!&,"*-*(J/("'*-5-'*-'%(1)!-(5!&,"*-!4(
;--%4(4%!"1%(<0)2"%/(4%)'*)!*49(G$-(.&0'1"2($&F-,-!('--*4(%&(-'40!-(%$)%("%(
!&0%"'-2/(!-,"-F4(%$-(-66-1%",-'-44(&6(%$-(1)!-(4055&!%(#",-'(%&()*02%4()'*(
%$)%("%(-66-1%",-2/(;&'"%&!4(%$-(%)H-N05(&6()*02%(1)!-(4-!,"1-4(J/(5-&52-(6!&;(
*"66-!-'%(J)1H#!&0'*49(((

G$-(.&0'1"2=(%&#-%$-!(F"%$(5)!%'-!4=("'120*"'#(%$-(,&20'%)!/()'*("'*-5-'*-'%(
5!&,"*-!4()!-(F&!H"'#(F-22(%&(-'40!-(,02'-!)J2-()*02%4()!-(4)6-9(>-&52-($),-()
#&&*(0'*-!4%)'*"'#(&6(F$)%(%&(2&&H(6&!()'*($&F(%&(5!-,-'%()*02%()J04-()'*(
%$"4("4(!-62-1%-*(J/(%$-($"#$('0;J-!(&6(4)6-#0)!*"'#(!-6-!!)249(G$-(.&0'1"2(
$&F-,-!(4$&02*(-'40!-(%$)%(%$&4-(5-&52-(F$&(60'*(%$-"!(&F'(4&1")2(1)!-()!-(
12-)!()J&0%(%$-(1&0'1"2()!!)'#-;-'%4(6&!(H--5"'#(,02'-!)J2-()*02%4(4)6-9((((

@$)#'".6-#4"7".,'-6',+"'%$9''

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(F&!H"'#(F-22(F"%$(S044-A(>&2"1-()'*($-25"'#(5-&52-(F"%$"'(
 !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-(%&(6--2(4)6-!9([-,-24(&6(1!";-()'*()'%"N4&1")2(J-$),"&0!()!-(
!-*01"'#9(G$-(.&0'1"2()'*(>&2"1-(4$)!-("'6&!;)%"&'()'*(%)!#-%()1%","%"-4("'(
1!";-($&%45&%4(%$)%()!-($),"'#()(4"#'"6"1)'%(";5)1%(&'(1!";-(6"#0!-49(E5-!)%"&'
]-*01%"&'("4(%)1H2"'#(%$-(40552/(&6(12)44(:(*!0#4=(2"H-($-!&"'()'*(1&1)"'-("'%&(
%$-(1"%/9(G$-(.&0'1"2()'*(&%$-!4($),-(J--'(4011-44602("'(*"4!05%"'#(%$-(40552/(
&6(*!0#4(%&(04-!4(J/(%$-(&!#)'"4-*(1!";-(4/'*"1)%-4()'*($)4("'1!-)4-*(%$-(
),)"2)J"2"%/(&6(*!0#(%!-)%;-'%(4-!,"1-4=(F$"1$($)4(!-*01-*(%$-('0;J-!(&6(
;0##"'#4()'*(5-%%/(%$-6%49((((

:(!-1-'%(40!,-/($)4(4$&F'(%$)%(%$-!-(J--'()'(";5!&,-;-'%("'(%$-(F)/(
!-4"*-'%4(6--2()J&0%()'%"N4&1")2(J-$),"&0!=(*!0#4(04-(L(!&F*/(J-$),"&0!("'(%$-(
1"%/9(E,-!(%$!--(<0)!%-!4(&6(2&1)2(5-&52-(J-2"-,-(%$)%()'%"N4&1")2(J-$),"&0!()'*(
*!0'H-'(J-$),"&0!("4('&%()(5!&J2-;("'( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-9(:#)"'=(%$-(.&0'1"2(
F"%$(&%$-!4($)4(J--'(4011-44602()%(!-*01"'#()'%"N4&1")2(J-$),"&0!(%$!&0#$(
-66-1%",-(;)')#-;-'%(&6(%$-()!-)4(&6(%$-(1"%/(F-!-(%$-!-("4()'()1%",-('"#$%(

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     8     Brighton and Hove City Council 92



F"%$(&%$-!4($)4(J--'(4011-44602()%(!-*01"'#()'%"N4&1")2(J-$),"&0!(%$!&0#$(
-66-1%",-(;)')#-;-'%(&6(%$-()!-)4(&6(%$-(1"%/(F-!-(%$-!-("4()'()1%",-('"#$%(
2"6-()'*(%$!&0#$(%)!#-%-*("'"%")%",-49(X&!(-A);52-=(E5-!)%"&'(>)!H("',&2,"'#(%$-
5&2"1-=(%$-(/&0%$(&66-'*"'#(4-!,"1-()'*(%$-(1$"2*!-'()'*(/&0'#(5-&52-(%!04%(
$)4(F&!H-*(F-22()%(!-*01"'#(*!0'H-'()'*(!&F*/(J-$),"&0!()'*(5-%%/(1!";-(
J/(/&0'#(5-&52-9(:4(5)!%(&6(%$"4("'"%")%",-=(/&0'#(5-&52-(1)0#$%(0'*-!N)#-(
*!"'H"'#($),-(J--'(-41&!%-*($&;-(J/(5&2"1-()'*(%$-"!(5)!-'%4("'6&!;-*(&6(
%$-"!()1%"&'49(M'()**"%"&'=(%$-(X);"2"-4(M'%-!,-'%"&'(>!&I-1%($)4($-25-*(!-*01-(
J/(&,-!(%$!--N<0)!%-!4(1&;52)"'%4()#)"'4%(6);"2"-4(F$&($),-()($"4%&!/(&6()'%"N
4&1")2(J-$),"&0!9((((

G$-(.&0'1"2($)4()24&(J--'(4011-44602("'(-'40!"'#(1)6-4=(!-4%)0!)'%4()'*(%)H-N
F)/4()!-(12-)'=($/#"-'"1()'*(5!&,"*-()(#&&*(4%)'*)!*(&6(6&&*(%&(104%&;-!49(M%(
'&F($)4(8=@Z8(6&&*(&0%2-%4("'("%4(a S1&!-4(&'(%$-(3&&!4b (41$-;-()'*(%$-(
'0;J-!(&6(6",-(4%)!(5!-;"4-4($)4("'1!-)4-*(6!&;(Z(5-!(1-'%(%&(??(5-!(1-'%("'(
%$-(2)4%(8W(;&'%$49((

(",,"#'38"'-6'53<%)4'7-."2'''

G$-(.&0'1"2(;)')#-4("%4(;&'-/(F-22()'*(45-'*4("%(&'(F$)%(;)%%-!4(%&(2&1)2(
5-&52-9(M%($)4(41&!-*(@(&0%(&6(C(6&!(\4-(&6(]-4&0!1-49(G$-(.&0'1"2(2&&H4(
1)!-6022/()%(%$-(;&'-/("%($)4(%&(45-'*=()'*(52)'4()1%","%"-4(J)4-*(&'(%$"49(M%(
F)4()J2-(%&(*-)2(F"%$()(40J4%)'%")2(-<0)2(5)/(12)";(F"%$&0%(-66-1%"'#(4-!,"1-(
*-2",-!/(&!($),"'#(%&(!)"4-(1&0'1"2(%)A9(M%(4-%4(%)!#-%4(%&(;)H-(4),"'#4()'*(04-4
"'6&!;)%"&'(%&($-25("'(;)H"'#(*-1"4"&'4(&'($&F(F-22(4-!,"1-4()!-(!0'9(G$"4("4(
4055&!%-*(J/()(5!&#!);;-(&6(4-!,"1-(!-,"-F4(%$)%(-'40!-(%$)%(2&1)2(5-&52-(
)!-(#-%%"'#(#&&*(,)20-(6&!(;&'-/(6!&;()22(&6("%4(4-!,"1-49(G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(
!-*01-*(1&4%4("'()*02%(4&1")2(1)!-=(&0%(&6(1"%/(52)1-;-'%4(6&!(1$"2*!-'(F"%$(
45-1")2('--*4()'*("'(F)4%-()'*(!-1/12"'#(9M%($)4()24&(!-*01-*(%$-(1&4%(&6(
)#-'1/(4%)66("'($&04"'#(;)')#-;-'%(6!&;(_T??=(QQQ("'(?QQZ`QW(%&(_@??=(QQQ(
"'(?QQW`QR9(>-&52-(1)'(6"'*(12-)!("'6&!;)%"&'()J&0%( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-^4(
6"')'1-4(&'(%$-(.&0'1"2(F-J4"%-()'*("'(%$-(1&0'1"2(;)#)h"'-9(((

G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(;)*-(40!-(%$)%(.&0'1"22&!4()'*(4-'"&!(4%)66()!-($-2*(
!-45&'4"J2-(6&!(%$-(;&'-/(%$-/(1&'%!&29(G$-!-()!-(!-#02)!(.&0'1"2(;--%"'#4(
F$-!-(.&0'1"22&!4(&,-!4--(J0*#-%4=()'*(;)H-(40!-(%$)%(.&0'1"22&!4()'*(4%)66(
)!-(J-$),"'#(5!&5-!2/=(6&!(-A);52-("'()F)!*"'#(1&'%!)1%4(&!(12)";"'#(
-A5-'4-49(((

G$-(.&0'1"2("4(;)H"'#("'6&!;)%"&'(&'(%$-(.&0'1"2^4(5-!6&!;)'1-(-)4"-!(%&(6"'*9
M%("4(*-,-2&5"'#(F-22(%$-(F)/(*-1"4"&'4()!-(%)H-'=(%$-(F)/(!"4H4()!-(;)')#-*(
)'*($&F("%(J0/4(#&&*4()'*(4-!,"1-49(M%("4(";5!&,"'#(%$-(F)/(%$)%(1&0'1"2(
J0"2*"'#4()!-(J-"'#(04-*9(G$-(.&0'1"2("4(!-*01"'#($&F(;01$("%(5&220%-4(%$-(
-',"!&';-'%()'*("4(-'1&0!)#"'#(2&1)2(5-&52-()'*(J04"'-44-4(%&(*&(%$-(4);-9((

 5".'$./'"66"4,)!"'4),2'%"$/"#8+)5''

>-&52-(2",-(2","'#("'( !"#$%&'()'*(+&,-=(6--2(%$)%(%$-/(%!-)%(-)1$(&%$-!(F"%$(
!-45-1%()'*(1&'4"*-!)%"&'()'*(6--2(%$)%(5-&52-(6!&;(*"66-!-'%(J)1H#!&0'*4(
#-%(&'(F-22(%&#-%$-!9(:(!-1-'%(40!,-/(4$&F4(%$)%(WT(5-!(1-'%(&6(5-&52-()!-(
4)%"46"-*(F"%$( !"#$%&'(L(+&,-()4()(52)1-(%&(2",-9(O-)!2/($)26(&6( !"#$%&'(L(
+&,-(!-4"*-'%4()!-(4)%"46"-*(F"%$(%$-(F)/(%$-(.&0'1"2(!0'4(%$"'#4=(F$"1$("4(
)J&,-(%$-(')%"&')2(),-!)#-9(O-)!2/(R(&0%(&6(8Q(!-4"*-'%4(4)/(%$)%(5-&52-(6!&;(
*"66-!-'%(J)1H#!&0'*4(#-%(&'(F-22(%&#-%$-!()'*(4-,-'(&0%(&6(%-'(5-&52-(6--2(
%$)%(%$-/(%!-)%(-)1$(&%$-!(F"%$(1&'4"*-!)%"&'()'*(!-45-1%=(F$"1$()!-(;01$(

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     9     Brighton and Hove City Council 93



*"66-!-'%(J)1H#!&0'*4(#-%(&'(F-22(%&#-%$-!()'*(4-,-'(&0%(&6(%-'(5-&52-(6--2(
%$)%(%$-/(%!-)%(-)1$(&%$-!(F"%$(1&'4"*-!)%"&'()'*(!-45-1%=(F$"1$()!-(;01$(
$"#$-!(%$)'(4";"2)!()!-)49(G$-(.&0'1"2(F"%$(&%$-!4("4(-66-1%",-()%(1-2-J!)%"'#(
*",-!4"%/(%$!&0#$(6&!(-A);52-(%$-( !"#$%&'(6-4%",)2()'*(>!"*-(N(%$-(1&0'%!/^4(
2)!#-4%([-4J")'=(U)/=( "N4-A0)2()'*(G!)'4#-'*-!(6-4%",)29(G$-(.&0'1"2(
0'*-!4%)'*4(%$-('--*4(&6(*"66-!-'%(5-&52-()'*(1&;;0'"%"-4=("%("4(!)%-*(%$-(%&5
2&1)2(#&,-!';-'%(-;52&/-!("'(%$-(S%&'-F)22(F&!H52)1-(-<0)2"%/("'*-A()'*("4(
F&!H"'#(%&(";52-;-'%()('-F(')%"&')2(-<0)2"%/(4%)'*)!*(J/(V)!1$(?Q8Q9((

G$-(.&0'1"2(F&!H4(F-22("'(5)!%'-!4$"5(F"%$(&%$-!49(G$-!-()!-(12&4-(2"'H4(F"%$(
%$-(?Q?Q(.&;;0'"%/(>)!%'-!4$"5(F$-!-(2&1)2(50J2"1(4-!,"1-4("'120*"'#(%$-(
5&2"1-()'*(%$-($-)2%$(4-!,"1-(1&;-(%&#-%$-!(%&(*-2",-!(4$)!-*(2&1)2()";4(6&!(
%$-(1"%/9(G$-(.&0'1"2(1&;;0'"1)%-4(F-22(F"%$(2&1)2(5-&52-()J&0%("%4(5!"&!"%"-4(
)'*(%)1H2-4("440-4(%$)%()!-(";5&!%)'%(%&(2&1)2(5-&52-9(X&!(-A);52-=(%$-(4-%%"'#(
05(&6()!%(5!&I-1%4(F"%$(1&0'1"2(%-')'%4(%&(6&4%-!(5!"*-("'(%$-"!(2&1)2(-4%)%-()'*(
%&(*"41&0!)#-()'%"N4&1")2(J-$),"&0!9(G$-(.&0'1"2(2"4%-'4(%&(F$)%(2&1)2(5-&52-(
4)/()'*(;)H-4(1$)'#-4(%&("%4(4-!,"1-4(6&!(-A);52-i(%$-(-'6&!1-;-'%(&6(%$-(
h"#Nh)#(2"'-4()!&0'*(41$&&24($)4(!-*01-*()11"*-'%4()'*(%$-(.&0'1"2($)4(
";5!&,-*(5),-;-'%()11-44=(6&22&F"'#(1&'402%)%"&'(F"%$(5)!-'%4()'*(*"4)J2-*(
5-&52-9(((

G$&4-(!-45&'4"J2-(6&!(!0''"'#(%$-(.&0'1"2()!-(5!&,"*"'#(#&&*(2-)*-!4$"59(
.&0'1"22&!4()'*(;)')#-!4(#-'-!)22/(F&!H(F-22(%&#-%$-!(%&(5!&,"*-(#&&*(
<0)2"%/(4-!,"1-4(%&(2&1)2(5-&52-9(G$-();J"%"&'4(6&!(%$-()!-)()!-(12-)!2/(4-%(&0%(
-)1$(/-)!()6%-!()4H"'#(2&1)2(5-&52-(F$)%(%$-/(%$"'H(%$-(.&0'1"2(4$&02*(6&104(
&'9(G$-(2-)*-!(&6(%$-(1&0'1"2()'*(%$-()1%"'#(1$"-6(-A-10%",-(J&%$(0'*-!4%)'*(
%$-(";5&!%)'1-(&6(F&!H"'#(F"%$(%$-(2&1)2(1&;;0'"%/()'*(J&%$($),-($"#$(
5!&6"2-4("'(%$-(1&;;0'"%/9(G$-(.&0'1"2($)4(!-1-'%2/()55&"'%-*()('-F(1$"-6(
-A-10%",-9(M%($)4()1$"-,-*(M',-4%&!4("'(>-&52-()(')%"&')22/(!-1&#'"4-*(4%)'*)!*
*-4"#'-*(%&($-25(&!#)'"4)%"&'4(";5!&,-(%$-"!(J04"'-44(J/($),"'#(-66-1%",-(
52)'4(6&!("%4(4%)669((

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     10     Brighton and Hove City Council 94



52)'4(6&!("%4(4%)669((

.::(2&&H4()%($&F(F-22(2&1)2(50J2"1(4-!,"1-4=(F&!H"'#(%&#-%$-!=()!-(;--%"'#(%$-
'--*4(&6(%$-(5-&52-(%$-/(4-!,-9(M%K4()(I&"'%()44-44;-'%(;)*-(J/()(#!&05(&6(
"'*-5-'*-'%(F)%1$*&#4()J&0%(%$-(5-!6&!;)'1-(&6(2&1)2(50J2"1(4-!,"1-4=()'*(
$&F(2"H-2/(%$-/()!-(%&(;--%(2&1)2(5!"&!"%"-49(X!&;(R(3-1-;J-!(/&0(F"22(6"'*(%$-(
!-402%4(&6(.&;5!-$-'4",-(:!-)(:44-44;-'%(&'(%$-(E'-52)1-(F-J4"%-(N(
$%%57``&'-52)1-9*"!-1%9#&,90H`(

;%,"#.$,)!"'6-#7$,8(N(M6(/&0(!-<0"!-()(1&5/(&6(>3X(*&10;-'%4("'(%$"4(4"%-("'(
2)!#-(5!"'%=("'( !)"22-=(&'(%)5-=(&!("'()(2)'#0)#-(&%$-!(%$)'(D'#2"4$=(52-)4-(1)227(
CDBB'EFD'ECEC(

:0*"%(.&;;"44"&'=(84%(X2&&!=(V"22J)'H(G&F-!=(V"22J)'H=([&'*&'(SB8>(C+Y(
G-2-5$&'-7(QWCC(ZRW(8?8?(
X)A7(QWCC(ZRW(?RCP(
G-A%5$&'-(d;"'"1&;e7(QWCC(ZRW(?RCT(
FFF9)0*"%N1&;;"44"&'9#&,90H((

     Organisational Assessment                                                               Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

     11     Brighton and Hove City Council 95



96



HEALTH OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Commission  

Agenda Item 73 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  

 

Subject: Referral from Audit Committee: Health 
Inequalities 

Date of Meeting: HOSC 02 December 2009 

OSC 26 January 2010 

Report of: The Director of Strategy and Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Giles Rossington Tel: 29-1038 

 E-mail: Giles.rossington@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE  

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 

1.1 At its 29 September 2009 meeting, the Audit Committee considered an Audit 
Commission report on Health Inequalities in Brighton & Hove (the Audit 
Commission report is reprinted as Appendix 1 to this report; an extract from 
the relevant Audit Committee minutes is reprinted as Appendix 2). 

 

1.2 The Audit Committee decided to refer the Audit Commission report to HOSC 
in order for HOSC to monitor the implementation of the report 
recommendations. Although not explicitly stated in the Audit Committee 
minutes, it seems reasonable to assume that the matter was referred to 
HOSC because Audit Committee members felt that ‘health inequalities’ were 
a HOSC issue. 

 

1.3 However, whilst ‘health inequalities’ undoubtedly fall within HOSC’s remit, it 
is clear from the Audit Commission report Action Plan that most of the report 
recommendations are not for implementation by health bodies. In fact, the 
bulk (seven out of nine) of the report’s recommendations require 
implementation by officers of Housing Strategy (albeit sometimes working in 
conjunction with Public Health officers).  

 

97



 

 

1.4 The scrutiny of Housing Strategy normally falls under the remit of the Adult 
Social Care & Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee (ASCHOSC). As this 
is ostensibly an ASCHOSC matter and as ASCHOSC has well-established 
links with Housing Strategy, it might be thought more appropriate for 
ASCHOSC to monitor this issue. 

 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

2.1 That members: 

 

(I)  note the contents of the Audit Commission Health Inequalities 
report (Appendix 1); 

 

 (II) agree to refer the report to ASCHOSC for further consideration. 

 

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

3.1 ‘Health Inequality’ refers to the variable health outcomes across the 
population, with some groups of people typically suffering much worse 
health and earlier mortality than others.  

 

3.2 Given the existence of a national framework of standardised  NHS 
healthcare provision available to all UK citizens free at the point of 
contact, it is not generally considered that health inequalities 
significantly correlate with unequal access to healthcare or with major 
differences in the quality of NHS provision from place to place (although 
poorer communities may typically experience some access problems, 
particularly in terms of primary care services such as GP surgeries and 
dental practices). 

 

3.3 Rather, health inequality is thought to correlate most strongly with social 
factors, such as worklessness, poor housing etc. Therefore, tackling 
health inequality requires effective partnership working between health 
bodies, local authorities and other agencies. 

 

4. CONSULTATION 

 

4.1 No formal consultation has been undertaken in preparing this paper. 

 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 

Financial Implications: 

98



 

 

5.1 There are none for Overview & Scrutiny, as any monitoring work can 
be managed by the Overview & Scrutiny (O&S) team in the course of 
its day to day work. 

 

 

 

 

Legal Implications: 

5.2 The scrutiny of Housing Strategy falls under the remit of the Adult 
Social Care & Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee and as such a 
referral to this committee is appropriate.  

 

Equalities Implications: 

5.3 Health Inequalities are clearly a core equalities issue. However, in the 
context of determining which O&S committee is best placed to monitor 
the implementation of the Audit Commission report, there are no 
particular equalities implications to consider. 

 

Sustainability Implications: 

5.4 None identified. 

 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

5.5 None identified. 

 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

5.6 For Overview & Scrutiny to work efficiently, it is important that issues 
should be dealt with by the most appropriate O&S committee. 

 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

5.7 Tackling health inequalities is a core priority of the Council (“Reduce 
Inequality by increasing opportunity”). It is also a significant driver for 
the Local Area Agreement and one of the key determinants of NHS 
Brighton & Hove’s commissioning strategy.  

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices: 

1. The Audit Commission Health Inequalities report; 

 

2. Extract of relevant minutes from the 29.09.09 Audit Committee 
meeting. 

 

99



 

 

Documents in Members’ Rooms: 

None 

 

Background Documents: 

None 

 

100



Managing Health 
Inequalities
Phase 2 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  

Brighton and Hove City Council 

Audit 2008/09 

September 2009 

101



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive 
directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. 
Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

 any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

 any third party.

Contents

Introduction 3

Background 4

Audit approach 7

Main conclusions 8

Way forward 14

Appendix 1 – Feedback presentation 15

Appendix 2 – Action plan 22

Appendix 3 – Partners' response to draft report 27

102



Introduction

3   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

Introduction
1 Health inequalities exist when some groups of the population suffer from significantly 

greater ill-health (morbidity) and earlier death (mortality) than the average and other 
groups of the population. There are significant levels of inequality globally, in some 
parts of the UK, and varying levels in all areas of the UK. 

2 There is national and international recognition for the need to tackle health inequalities 
collaboratively. The 'Health is Global' (2008) five year national strategy demonstrates 
the links between economy, prosperity and health. It sets out actions to: 

 'improve the health of the UK and the world's population'; by 

 'combating global poverty and health inequalities'. 

3 Tackling health inequalities is a formal requirement both of local authorities and 
Primary Care Trusts (PCTs). The reform agenda, as set out in the ‘Commissioning 
framework for health and well being’, emphasises the need for: 

 ‘joint strategic needs assessment by councils, PCTs and other relevant partners'; 
and

 ‘sharing and using information more effectively’. 

4 Tackling health inequalities absorbs huge amounts of public money in both local 
government and health sectors. Securing optimum value for money from these 
combined resources requires effective joint working among the public sector bodies in 
order to achieve public service agreement (PSA) targets. 

5 Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) is a new assessment framework for councils 
and their partners to be implemented in 2009. Proposals describe an area-wide 
assessment by the inspectorates considering outcomes for people in an area and a 
forward look at prospects for sustainable improvement. This assessment will look at 
how well local public services are delivering better outcomes for local people in local 
priorities such as health. In managing partnership relationships, public bodies need to 
have regard to the risks to delivery. This includes identifying local needs and 
addressing them. The way in which health inequalities may be experienced by 
vulnerable groups will be a key part of this assessment in 2009. 

103



Background 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  4

Background
6 South East England is one of the healthiest regions in England with a comparatively 

well qualified workforce, low levels of unemployment and higher incomes. However, 
Brighton and Hove (B&H) presents a mixed picture when compared to England and 
the South East. For example: 

 full-time workers in B&H gross weekly pay at £524.30 is greater than that of Great 
Britain (GB) at £479.20; 

 more people are receiving job seekers allowance in B&H at 4.3 per cent compared 
to 3 per cent in the SE and 4.1 per cent in GB;1

 life expectancy in the SE was the second highest in England in 2007 at 77.7 years 
for men and 81.8 years for women;2 and life expectancy in B&H is only slightly 
lower with only 17.5 per cent of local people reporting limiting long term illness.3

However, this masks comparative inequalities in health outcomes between social 
groups and geographic areas. 

Deprivation

7 To address inequalities the government has established a number of national 
regeneration programmes (NRP) that prioritise action in the most deprived areas 
where health inequalities are greatest. One of these is based in Brighton. B&H has 
some of the most deprived areas in England as measured by super output areas 
(SOAs) using the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) and these are mostly in the East 
of Brighton.

Population

8 National Census information shows the people of B&H describe themselves as mostly 
white British (91.5 per cent), Christian (72.9 per cent) and with some of the lowest level 
of gypsy/travellers in England. Although we know there is a significant gay, lesbian and 
transgender (GLTG) population, there are no local statistics available for sexual 
orientation.  

9 There are clear differences in the make up of the population of B&H that impact on 
health compared to other areas in the South East of England. For example B&H has:4

 the lowest proportion of 0 to 14 year olds (15.3 per cent); and

 the highest proportion of 15 to 49 year olds (54.9 per cent) who represent the bulk 
of the economically active population (workforce) and the large student population 
associated with local universities. 

1
 Source: the Office of National Statistics (ONS) 2008 estimates 

2
 Source: South East Coast SHA Health Inequalities Strategy, 2007

3
 Source: Department of Health SHA Health Inequalities Baseline Audit, 2007

4
 Source: the Office of National Statistics (ONS) most recent population data - 2004 mid year. 

104



Background 

5   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

Key issues 

10 Key issues currently affecting health outcomes in B&H include: 

 high levels of non-decent housing in some parts of the city; as housing is the 
primary determinant impacting on health outcomes, we would expect housing to be 
the key focus of planning across B&H organisations; 

 some of the highest suicide rates in England, which are persistently high despite 
intervention and linked to substance misuse; a cross-organisational planning 
initiative during 2008/09 worked to establish a Suicide Prevention Strategy;

 comparatively high levels of substance abuse – injectors; the Drug and Alcohol 
Action Team (DAAT) reported in 2005 that there were approximately 2,300 
injecting users in the city, a higher rate than parts of inner London and the 
incidence of drug related deaths is amongst the highest in the country;1

 the high level of injecting drug users also means HIV infection is a key health issue 
in B&H;

 persistently higher rates of teenage pregnancy than the national average; and 

 an increase in sexually transmitted disease. 

11 Brighton and Hove's Director of Public Health who is appointed jointly by Brighton and 
Hove City Council ('the Council'), Brighton and Hove City Teaching PCT ('the PCT'), 
provides strong leadership on the public health agenda. 

12 In 2004, Brighton and Hove was designated a 'Healthy City' by the World Health 
Organisation acknowledging strong commitment by the Council, PCT and partners to 
reduce health inequalities (HI). The Healthy City phase four programme currently 
focuses on urban planning and Health Impact Assessment (HIA). 

13 The Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) has identified 'improving health and well-being' 
as one of its strategic priorities in its Sustainable Community Strategy 'Creating the 
City of Opportunities'. It has adopted a Health Inequalities Strategy and City Health 
Development and Action Plans to target cross sector action on the wider determinants 
of health. 

14 Consultants commissioned by the Council and its partners to assist the Public Services 
Board (PSB) and LSP have reported on policy options for the future to reduce 
inequality and undertaken a detailed analysis mapping where inequality is most acute. 

15 The Local Area Agreement 2008 to 2011 (LAA) for Brighton and Hove includes a 
number of relevant national and local indicators. Lead partners include the Council, the 
PCT, the Children and Young People's Trust, the Sussex Partnership Trust, Police and 
Fire authorities. These reflect the recognition that partnership working across the 
sectors is essential in tackling the wider determinants of health and inequality. 

1
 Source: Brighton and Hove City Council Corporate Assessment, October 2006 

105



Background 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  6

16 The first phase of our review of Health Inequalities (HI) in Brighton and Hove was 
completed in May 2008. It found that the Council and the PCT have made good 
progress in establishing joint strategic arrangements to reduce HI. However, there is a 
high level of poor housing in Brighton and Hove and some health outcomes are 
persistently not improving and amongst the highest in England ie teenage pregnancy, 
drug and alcohol misuse, including smoking and suicide rates. People suffering poorer 
health outcomes are often also in housing need. 

106



Audit approach 

7   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

Audit approach 
17 We agreed with the Council and the PCT that Phase 2 of our health inequalities work 

would evaluate the effectiveness of cross-organisational working on health inequalities. 
In order to probe this effectively, we focused on housing, the primary determinant of 
health.

18 The local Strategic Housing Partnership, led by the Council, is in the process of 
drafting and agreeing a new housing strategy for 2009 to 2013. Subsidiary strategies, 
including those for homelessness and Supporting People, are already in place. Further 
partnership working takes place at a sub-regional level in the Brighton and Hove East 
Sussex Together Partnership (BEST), set up to tackle housing conditions particularly 
for vulnerable people.  

19 Our review focus has assessed the effectiveness of partnership working in: 

 identifying and addressing need;  

 consulting and engaging with local people;  

 working together to allocate resources and secure good outcomes; 

 sharing data for planning and monitoring; 

 establishing means to measure outcomes and impact; and

 delivering on ambition.  

20 We have carried out this work by: 

 reviewing key strategies and supporting documents; 

 interviewing officers from the Council and the PCT; and 

 using a workshop at the Healthy Urban Planning Group (HUPG) to discuss our 
early findings with partner officers.

21 The presentation of findings and challenge questions which we used at HUPG in 
March 2009 is attached at Appendix 1.

107



Main conclusions 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  8

Main conclusions 
22 The partners in Brighton and Hove are working well together, demonstrating a strong 

commitment to tackling inequalities. However, against a backdrop of a multitude of 
different needs and a diverse range of targets, some of which have poorly defined 
success criteria, there is considerable work still to be done. For example, the partners 
led by the Council and the PCT need to prioritise objectives, agree areas of joint action 
and the use of health and housing resources so as to have the maximum impact in 
reducing health inequalities in the City. 

Identifying and addressing need 

23 The local strategic partnership has effectively gathered a good analysis of local needs 
to inform planning. The Local Area Agreement (LAA) for 2009 to 2011 effectively 
identifies local need. It makes clear links to other key documents that show inequalities 
between the most and least deprived people living in Brighton and Hove. In particular, 
it draws on the Reducing Inequalities Review, a thorough analysis of local issues 
which gives local partners a clear understanding of priority needs for disadvantaged 
people and places.

24 The draft housing strategy is clearly driven by the needs analysis. It is based on needs 
identified through the reducing inequalities review. Data was drawn together and 
presented on each of the themes in the strategy to identify local issues and to consult 
with stakeholders on headline goals and objectives. This means that the strategy aims 
to tackle important local issues. 

25 Supporting strategies effectively identify needs and propose ways in which they should 
be addressed. They focus positively on local health inequalities. The homelessness 
strategy refers to the Reducing Inequalities Review and highlights key target groups. 
The first objective is to 'provide housing and support solutions that tackle 
homelessness and promote health and wellbeing of vulnerable adults'. This references 
other work driven by the single homeless strategy and the supporting people strategy. 
The priority actions in support of this objective identify actions which are clearly 
focused on the housing and support needs of vulnerable groups. For instance, they 
include actions to support people with mental health needs, to tackle delayed transfers 
of care and for people with learning disabilities.

26 However, some weaknesses were identified. Housing strategies do not define clear 
success criteria. The homelessness strategy, for instance, does not give a clear 
indication of the likely impact for vulnerable groups. The success of action for people 
with mental health needs is a reduction in homelessness due to mental ill health, 
without being specific and without linking to related impacts, such as reducing risk of 
suicide. It is therefore not clear how health inequalities will be reduced as a 
consequence.

108



Main conclusions 

9   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

Recommendation

R1 Define success criteria in housing strategies more clearly and with a sharper focus 
on outcomes for vulnerable people. This is a high priority that should be completed 
in six months. This is a high priority that should be completed within six months. 

Consultation and engagement 

27 The housing strategy has been informed by consultation with local people. Each 
planning group had representatives from stakeholders and the local community 
champions. In addition, there was some action to reach target groups. Service users in 
hostels were trained to carry out consultation sessions with other users. This enables 
real life issues to be brought into the setting of strategy.

Working together 

28 The awareness of the health inequalities agenda is well established in the City's 
partnerships. The LSP has emphasised the importance of Healthy City and this means 
a good impact in discussions at many levels. For instance, planning policy in the local 
development framework supports the way housing provision will address health 
inequalities, such as in setting minimum standards for development. All new homes in 
the City are required to be built to lifetime home standards so that they are adaptable 
to lifestyle changes such as the need for wheelchair access. This broad agenda 
creates the potential for impact across many services.

29 There is a range of fora which offer good opportunities for discussion of housing issues 
and health inequalities. At a high level, the Strategic Housing Partnership oversees this 
work and is chaired by the Leader of the Council. The partnership has not yet reviewed 
its objectives in light of the Health Impact Assessment findings and aims of the new 
Housing Strategy. The Healthy Urban Planning Group provides a good forum for 
discussion of detailed health issues that may emerge from proposed significant 
planning developments and a useful vehicle for highlighting the beneficial impacts that 
developments may have on reducing health inequalities. This has also been used to 
discuss housing strategy in its broader context. These fora are building awareness and 
understanding between partners of inequalities agenda.  

30 Partnership working in developing housing strategy is good. For each element of the 
housing strategy, partnership development groups have been established with good 
representation from the PCT and the voluntary and community sectors. The Council is 
taking steps to maintain its involvement in implementation, for instance by allocating a 
monitoring and scrutiny role into the future. The involvement of many partners in its 
development offers the prospect of a good level of ownership in implementation.  

109



Main conclusions 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  10

31 However, the extent of the impact of this awareness and discussion on policy and 
practice is not yet fully developed. From our review, it is not clear how specific needs 
will be addressed in a shared way by partner organisations, nor how resources of 
separate organisations will be prioritised to address shared outcomes. Where we can 
judge some strengths in the housing strategy and its supporting plans, separation of 
function continues to drive action. For instance, there is little reference in the PCT's 
Strategic Commissioning Plan to the way in which action on housing needs can 
achieve health priorities. Although needs data has created an understanding that 
inequalities need to be addressed through a focus on people and place, there is no 
explicit response to this in the strategies we have reviewed. These indicators suggest 
that there is more to do to transfer a broad commitment into a robust method of 
sharing and prioritising resources and actions between partner organisations.  

32 The sub-regional partnership, Brighton and East Sussex Together (BEST), is 
developing a broader focus to include health inequalities issues. The group has 
developed an approach to bidding for and sharing housing renewal resources. It is a 
positive example of partnership working in allocating the funding jointly. In addition, the 
partnership intends to use its new understanding around health inequalities to refocus 
its years 2 and 3 programme to achieve better health outcomes. 

Recommendations

R2 Ensure that the roles and responsibilities of key partnership groups with input to 
housing strategy are clearly set out and understood; in particular, review and revise 
the objectives of the Strategic Housing Partnership and BEST to reflect the broader 
focus on health inequalities issues. This is a high priority that should be completed 
within six months. 

R3 Use partnership fora as a means to challenge further the way in which resources 
are allocated to address need, and challenge particularly how resources in health 
and local government can be focused to tackle needs. This is a high priority that 
should be completed within six months. 

Sharing data

33 The LSP has high quality shared data. The reducing inequalities review, in two phases, 
established a clear analysis of deprivation and inequalities experienced in the City. It 
has been used since to inform planning. The public health annual report also presents 
strong analysis of data. The LSP has a partnership data group which agrees 
approaches to the use of data by partners. And the LSP has created a local 
intelligence service called Brighton and Hove Local Information Service (BHLIS) which 
presents a range of data in one place, accessible to partners and available for 
analysis. Data is therefore a key shared resource for partners locally.

110



Main conclusions 

11   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

34 Data is not yet being used well to focus on outcomes. It is not clear from our review 
how strategies respond directly to specific data analysis, for instance by 
commissioning services to address specific needs identified and targeting services on 
deprived wards. Nor is it clear how well the shared data enables partners to agree 
targets and focus the use of separate resources. This might lead to the type of 
challenge where the partnership focuses extra investment in reducing teenage 
conceptions because of its potential to reduce demand for housing or other services. It 
is notable that BHLIS does not contain any of the LAA or other partnership targets. 
Therefore, though it offers a rich data source, it does not enable a focus on the desired 
or expected outcomes. Data is therefore confirming the current position rather than 
challenging future impact.

Recommendation

R4 Make shared data work harder by: 

 making clear links to LAA targets and LSP planned outcomes; and 

 using it to analyse the way in which resources are allocated for maximum impact.

This is a high priority that should be completed within six months.

Measuring outcomes 

35 The proposed measures of success in housing strategies are inadequate. The 
proposed success measures tend to be: 

 general rather than specific, eg reduction in homelessness; 

 not clear about the health benefits of actions; and

 not clear about the impact on people.

The supporting people strategy, for instance, does not set specific and measurable 
indicators of success. The success criteria tend to focus on general reductions in 
homelessness, street drinking, delayed discharge, and many more - without being 
specific about what will be achieved. The integrated pathways of care are referenced - 
but the involvement of health services is not clear and beneficial health outcomes are 
not identified. For instance, in providing a range of actions to promote independent 
living for people with mental health needs and physical disabilities, the measures focus 
on reductions in homelessness and delayed discharge, without being clear of the 
health benefits to individual service users. In this respect, it is difficult to have a sense 
of priority and an understanding of impact on health inequalities.

36 The health impact assessment (HIA) of the housing strategy is a strong demonstration 
of the commitment to reducing health inequalities in addressing housing need. The HIA 
is an impressive attempt to cover all the factors that interact between housing and 
health and relates these to the various component parts of the draft housing strategy. 
The HIA contains many recommendations but these have not yet been developed as a 
prioritised SMART Action Plan whose implementation can be monitored by the 
partners.

111



Main conclusions 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  12

37 Partners are innovative in the use of HIAs for proposed major local developments. The 
Council and its partners have commissioned health impact assessments of significant 
developments. The HIA for Brighton Marina is a very good example of a
socio-environmental model of HIA and demonstrates that the PCT and the Council are 
offering a best practice initiative to developers in Brighton. However, the HIA does not 
contain an economic impact assessment of the development proposed, for instance in 
calculating the consequential financial impact of health changes resulting from 
development.

38 The extent of future use of HIAs by the partners is unclear. There is some doubt about 
the capacity and the capability of the PCT to continue to offer this service in the long 
term. The use of consultancy is costly without demonstrating specific benefits.

Recommendations

R5 Review the success measures in the draft housing strategy and supporting 
strategies to ensure that they: 

 are SMART and clearly prioritised; 

 offer assessment of health impacts; and 

 show outcomes for people and how needs are addressed/reduced.

This is a high priority that should be completed in six months. 

R6 Use the HIA of the housing strategy to develop an action plan. This is a high priority 
that should be completed within six months. 

R7 Have a clear policy on future use of HIAs, including the assessment of economic 
impact. This is a medium priority that should be completed within six months. 

Delivering on ambition 

39 Strategies are now in place, though it is too early to establish whether they are 
effective. Some actions are being delivered by partners, for instance in the GP practice 
provision for homeless people. However, more work is required to define the expected 
impact of key strategies and to establish methods of measurement. In our presentation 
to HUPG, we emphasised that to ensure delivery of ambitions, the challenge for 
partners may be encapsulated in the following questions. 

 Is there an agreed set of priorities which will test your achievement over time in 
reducing health inequalities? 

 Do your people understand these priorities?  

 How will you measure success in addressing needs? 

 By what means will you measure impact in the short term?

 How challenging are your targets? 

 How do you plan to deal with the economic downturn? 

112



Main conclusions 

13   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

Recommendation

R8 Consider holding a workshop for key partners to address the challenge questions 
relating to delivery of ambitions ie: 

 is there an agreed set of priorities which will test your achievement over time in 
reducing health inequalities; 

 do your people understand these priorities; 

 how will you measure success in addressing needs; 

 by what means will you measure impact in the short term; 

 how challenging are your targets; and 

 how do you plan to deal with the economic downturn? 

This is a medium priority that should be completed within six months. 

Follow up of phase 1 recommendations 

40 In phase 1 of our health inequalities work we made two recommendations.

41 The first recommendation has been completed. We recommended: 

Ensure the City Council scrutiny committee receive regular health 
inequality reports to improve understanding of local health inequality 
issues and thereby support appropriate challenge. 

The PCT presented a report on health inequalities to the Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee last autumn. This was timed to coincide with the requirement to produce a 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and in accordance with World Class 
Commissioning requirements. 

42 The second recommendation has been partially achieved. We recommended: 

Include health inequality outcomes in performance reports to 
demonstrate progress against investment and to indicate if plans have 
produced effective health outcomes and value for money. 

The PCT has increased its performance monitoring in general using its Programme 
Office approach and close monitoring by its Delivery Board. Inequality targets such as 
reducing teenage pregnancy and smoking in particular have been subject to regular 
scrutiny. More work is required for the PCT to be able to demonstrate value for money 
from its investments in reducing health inequalities. 

Recommendation

R9 Consider the best way in which to report the achievement of value for money from 
investments in reducing health inequalities. This is a high priority that should be 
completed within six months. 

113



Way forward 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  14

Way forward 
43 We have made nine recommendations for improvement in this report. They are 

included in an Action Plan at Appendix 2. The Council and the PCT have responded to 
the recommendations. This response is shown at Appendix 3.

44 We will follow up on the Action Plan in the course of our future audit and assessment 
work with the organisations, and as part of our Area Assessment work.

114



Appendix 1 – Feedback presentation 

15   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

Appendix 1 – Feedback 
presentation

Health inequalities –
phase 2

Brighton & Hove CC/PCT
Healthy Urban Planning 
Group

23rd March 2009

Marius Kynaston, Stephen Dowsett, Norma Christison

Performance Team, South East

B&H HI Phase 22

Agenda

• In Phase 1 of our work on HI we found: 
– The PCT and City Council have a history of working in partnership and have 

made good progress in establishing joint strategic arrangements to manage 
HI.

– However, not all targets were SMART, and although Performance reporting 
at both the PCT and Council is improving some areas of weakness remain. 

– We are currently following up the recommendations from Phase1

• In Phase 2 we have evaluated the effectiveness of cross-
organisational arrangements to address HI and deliver the 
outcomes agreed by partners, in particular in relation to 
housing especially for vulnerable people

• .This is a presentation of initial findings

… and some challenge questions

115



Appendix 1 – Feedback presentation 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  16

B&H HI Phase 23

Strategy: identifying need 

• High quality analysis of “Reducing Inequalities” provides 

sound basis for planning

• Housing strategy based on good needs data

Challenge:
– Is there direct response to the data provided? E.g. in commissioning 

services to address specific need identified; targeting services on 

deprived SOA

– Do partners have shared priorities of need?

– Are resources invested to best effect? 

E.g. does extra investment in reducing teenage conceptions potentially 

reduce housing demand?

B&H HI Phase 24

Strategy: addressing need

• Draft Housing Strategy / Homelessness Strategy 
– Both tell the story really well of what is the need and how will we address it

– But the expected outcomes and success criteria are not always clear 

Challenge
– Are partners confident that there is a golden thread within and between 

the organisations and their plans? 

– Is there a shared understanding and prioritisation of outcomes?

– Is the intent to reduce health inequalities adequately reflected in the 

housing strategy?

– Does the PCT’s Strategic Commissioning Plan have due regard to 

housing?

– Will the strategy drive actions by the partners?

116



Appendix 1 – Feedback presentation 

17   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

B&H HI Phase 25

Strategy: consultation

Consultation on housing strategy
– Processes are good

– Good stakeholder involvement

Challenge
– What examples are there of impact of consultation on policy and 

strategy? 

B&H HI Phase 26

Partnership working 

• Developing shared agenda on housing role in 

addressing health inequalities

• Recognition that partners are on a journey: getting 

better at identifying shared issues

Challenge
– HI agenda is known but not always clearly understood – could it 

be used more to challenge custom and practice?

117



Appendix 1 – Feedback presentation 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  18

B&H HI Phase 27

Partnership working

• Good range of partnership forums
– Healthy City Group and LSP at high level

– Strategic housing partnership

– Healthy urban planning group

– Partnership groups on the housing strategy themes

Challenge:
– Strategic Housing Partnership – responsibilities and objectives not 

clear

– BEST targeting of resources – too much emphasis on spending the 
money rather than targeting its impact?

– Are partners clear of their respective roles in delivery given that this is 
not always explicit in the plans? 

B&H HI Phase 28

Data quality and information

• High quality shared data
– Reducing inequalities – phase 1 and 2 

– PH annual reports

• Positive action taken to share data through the SCS 
and BHLIS 

Challenge
– How effectively is the data used to drive outcomes? 

– In terms of health inequalities and housing what gaps exist in 
the data and how do you plan to address?

– BHLIS data is not linked to targets – a weakness?

118



Appendix 1 – Feedback presentation 

19   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

B&H HI Phase 29

Health impact

• Health Impact Assessments 
– Positive about the commitment

– HIA recommendations for Draft Housing Strategy need to be SMART if they 

are to have impact

– HIAs lack health economics perspectives – absence of cost benefit analysis 

means its difficult to demonstrate VFM 

Challenge
– Why no health economics analysis – measuring impact and VFM of 

action for vulnerable groups and cost benefit analysis?
– What Is the most valuable thing we are not doing? 

– What is the least valuable thing we are doing? 

– Do you know what resources each partner is applying to specific health 

/ housing initiatives in each locality aimed at reducing inequalities?

B&H HI Phase 210

Measures of success

• Success measures in housing strategies are:
– General and not specific, e.g. reduction in homelessness

– Not clear about the health benefits of actions

– Not clear about the impact on people

Challenge
– How can you develop more SMART indicators?

– Mix of long and short term outputs and outcomes?

– Greater focus on health impacts for people?

– Do you know your priority outcomes? 

– Given the quality of needs data, will you measure success in 

reducing need? 

119



Appendix 1 – Feedback presentation 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  20

B&H HI Phase 211

Achievement

Challenge

• Is there an agreed set of priorities which will test your 

achievement over time in reducing health inequalities? 

• Do your people understand these priorities? 

• How will you measure success in addressing needs?

• By what means will you measure impact in the short term? 

• How challenging are your targets (some examples follow)?

• How do you plan to deal with the economic downturn?

B&H HI Phase 212

NI 112 – Teenage Conceptions

Target Reductions

•2008 -28%

•2009 -36%

•2010 -45%

120



Appendix 1 – Feedback presentation 

21   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

B&H HI Phase 213

 NI 141: Percentage of vulnerable 
people achieving independent living

• This indicator is being led by Brighton & Hove City Council & 

Strategic Housing Partnership.

• It measures the number of service users (i.e. people who are 

receiving a Supporting People Service) who have moved on 

from supported accommodation in a planned way, as a 

percentage of total service users who have left the service 

• This indicator has been selected in 70 LAAs

• The LAA Baseline is 65% Subsequent targets are:
– 2008/9 – 66%

– 2009/10 – 67%

– 2010/11 – 68%

B&H HI Phase 214

Next steps

• NOW - opportunity to comment and respond on the 

challenge questions.

• We will take on your views in order to develop a 

draft report

121



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 
 

2
2

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(s
a
v
in

g
s
, 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 r
is

k
s
, 

b
e
tt

e
r 

v
a

lu
e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
) 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

fa
il
in

g
 t

o
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
(w

h
e
re

 
s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t)
 

D
a

te
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

to
 t

h
e

 
B

o
a

rd
/

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t
b

y
 w

h
e

n
 

R
1
 D

e
fi
n

e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 i
n

 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 m

o
re

 
c
le

a
rl

y
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 a
 s

h
a
rp

e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

. 

H
ig

h
H

o
u
s
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 

d
o

 n
o

t 
d

e
fi
n

e
 c

le
a
r 

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
 c

ri
te

ri
a

. 
T

h
e

 h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
fo

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
, 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

in
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

lik
e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
fo

r 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

2
.2

B
e
tt
e
r

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

In
a
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
 

N
o

n
e

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

R
2
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
k
e
y
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h

 i
n
p

u
t 

to
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

re
 c

le
a

rl
y
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
; 
in

 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
is

e
 

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 
B

E
S

T
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 b

ro
a
d
e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 

is
s
u
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 
th

a
t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
w

it
h
in

 s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
. 

H
ig

h
W

it
h
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
to

 
th

e
s
e

 b
o

d
ie

s
, 
th

e
re

 
is

 l
it
tl
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 w
it
h

 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

r 
o
f 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 

o
n

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 

g
re

a
te

s
t 
h
e
a
lt
h

 
in

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

2
.3

G
re

a
te

r 
c
la

ri
ty

 
o
f

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s

in
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 j
o
in

t 
g

o
a

ls
. 

L
o
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

fo
r 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

N
o

n
e

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
,

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d
 P

ri
v
a
te

 
S

e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 

2
0

0
9

122



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

2
3
 
  

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(s
a
v
in

g
s
, 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 r
is

k
s
, 

b
e
tt

e
r 

v
a

lu
e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
) 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

fa
il
in

g
 t

o
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
(w

h
e
re

 
s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t)
 

D
a

te
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

to
 t

h
e

 
B

o
a

rd
/

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t
b

y
 w

h
e

n
 

R
3
 U

s
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
ra

 a
s
 a

 
m

e
a

n
s
 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
th

e
 

w
a

y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 n

e
e
d

, 
a
n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

o
w

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 l
o
c
a

l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 t
o
 

ta
c
k
le

 n
e

e
d

s
. 

H
ig

h
It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
le

a
r 

h
o
w

 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 n
e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 a
 

s
h

a
re

d
 w

a
y
 b

y
 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
n
o
r 

h
o
w

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
s
e

p
a

ra
te

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 t
o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

2
.1

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

v
fm

 b
y
 

a
p
p
ly

in
g
 j
o
in

t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 

jo
in

t 
g
o
a
ls

. 

P
ie

c
e

m
e

a
l 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 m

a
y
 

m
e

a
n

 g
o
a

ls
 a

re
 

n
o
t 
s
o
 e

a
s
ily

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

N
o

n
e

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
,

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d
 P

ri
v
a
te

 
S

e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 

2
0

0
9

R
4
 M

a
k
e

 s
h

a
re

d
 d

a
ta

 w
o
rk

 h
a

rd
e

r 
b
y
:

 
m

a
k
in

g
 c

le
a
r 

lin
k
s
 t
o
 L

A
A

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 L
S

P
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
; 
a

n
d

 

 
u
s
in

g
 i
t 
to

 a
n
a
ly

s
e
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
 a

re
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 f
o
r 

m
a
x
im

u
m

 
im

p
a
c
t.

H
ig

h
It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
le

a
r 

h
o
w

 
w

e
ll 

th
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 

d
a

ta
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 f
o
c
u
s
 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
e
p
a
ra

te
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

2
.2

B
e
tt
e
r 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 

o
f 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
b
e
tt
e
r 

v
fm

. 

L
o
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

 b
e
s
t 

v
fm

.

N
o

n
e

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/

 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

123



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 
 

2
4

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(s
a
v
in

g
s
, 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 r
is

k
s
, 

b
e
tt

e
r 

v
a

lu
e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
) 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

fa
il
in

g
 t

o
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
(w

h
e
re

 
s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t)
 

D
a

te
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

to
 t

h
e

 
B

o
a

rd
/

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t
b

y
 w

h
e

n
 

R
5
 R

e
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 

in
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 t
o

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
: 

 
a
re

 S
M

A
R

T
 a

n
d
 c

le
a

rl
y
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d

; 

 
o
ff
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

im
p
a
c
ts

; 
a
n
d
 

 
s
h

o
w

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
o

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 n
e
e
d

s
 a

re
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
/r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

H
ig

h
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
s
u
c
c
e

s
s
 i
n

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 

in
a

d
e
q

u
a

te
 b

e
in

g
: 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

, 
e
g
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
; 

n
o

t 
c
le

a
r 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
; 
a
n
d
, 
 

n
o

t 
c
le

a
r 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

e
o
p
le

. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

2
.2

B
e
tt
e
r

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
/v

fm
 

G
o

a
ls

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 

m
e
t.

N
o

n
e

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

R
6
 U

s
e

 t
h

e
 H

IA
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
.

H
ig

h
T

h
e

 H
IA

 c
o
n

ta
in

s
 

m
a
n
y

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

b
u
t 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

s
 a

 
p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d

 S
M

A
R

T
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

h
o
s
e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 
b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

2
.2

B
e
tt
e
r

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
/v

fm
 

G
o

a
ls

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 

m
e
t

N
o

n
e

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/

 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

124



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

2
5
 
  

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(s
a
v
in

g
s
, 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 r
is

k
s
, 

b
e
tt

e
r 

v
a

lu
e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
) 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

fa
il
in

g
 t

o
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
(w

h
e
re

 
s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t)
 

D
a

te
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

to
 t

h
e

 
B

o
a

rd
/

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t
b

y
 w

h
e

n
 

R
7
 H

a
v
e

 a
 c

le
a

r 
p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 f
u

tu
re

 
u
s
e
 o

f 
H

IA
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
im

p
a
c
t.

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
o
f 
fu

tu
re

 
u
s
e
 o

f 
H

IA
s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r.

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 

d
o
u
b
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
a
p
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
C

T
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

o
ff
e
r 

th
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 

th
e

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

2
.2

H
IA

s
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
. 

D
e
c
is

io
n
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

ta
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 
in

c
o

m
p

le
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
.

S
o

m
e

 d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 
o

n
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
p
th

 o
f 
H

IA
s
 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n
 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

. 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

R
8
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o

ld
in

g
 a

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 
fo

r 
k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o

 a
d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
m

b
it
io

n
s
 i
e
: 

 
is

 t
h

e
re

 a
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 s
e

t 
o

f 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 t
e
s
t 
y
o
u
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 i
n
 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
in

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
?

 

 
d

o
 y

o
u

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 

th
e

s
e

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
?

  

 
h
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 
s
u
c
c
e

s
s
 i
n

 a
d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 

n
e

e
d
s
?

 

 
b
y
 w

h
a
t 
m

e
a
n
s
 w

ill
 y

o
u
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

 
te

rm
?

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
e

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

re
 

fa
c
e

d
 w

it
h

 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 i
f 
th

e
y
 

a
re

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
ir
 

a
m

b
it
io

n
s
. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

3
.3

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 w
ill

 
b

e
c
o

m
e

 m
o
re

 
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

a
b

le
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 

o
th

e
rs

'
a
m

b
it
io

n
s
. 

M
is

s
e

d
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 t
e
a
t 

th
e

 r
e

a
lis

m
 o

f 
a
m

b
it
io

n
s
. 

M
a
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 s

o
m

e
 

c
o
s
ts

 i
f 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 

e
n

g
a
g

e
d

 t
o

 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

. 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/

 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

125



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

B
ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

it
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 
 

2
6

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
L

in
k
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

L
in

k
 t

o
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

(s
a
v
in

g
s
, 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 r
is

k
s
, 

b
e
tt

e
r 

v
a

lu
e
 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
) 

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 

o
f 

fa
il
in

g
 t

o
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
(w

h
e
re

 
s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t)
 

D
a

te
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

to
 t

h
e

 
B

o
a

rd
/

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t
b

y
 w

h
e

n
 

 
h

o
w

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 a
re

 y
o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

?

 
h
o
w

 d
o

 y
o
u
 p

la
n
 t
o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

d
o
w

n
tu

rn
?

 

R
9
 C

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 b

e
s
t 
w

a
y
 i
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
v
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 f
ro

m
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
. 

H
ig

h
T

h
e
 P

C
T

 h
a

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
ts

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 
b

u
t 
m

o
re

 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
it
 t
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 v
a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 f
ro

m
 i
ts

 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
in

e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
. 

U
o
R

 K
L

O
E

: 

2
.1

D
e

m
o
n

s
tr

a
ti
o
n

 
o

f 
v
fm

 (
o

r 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
) 

w
ill

 
h
e
lp

 i
n
fo

rm
 

fu
tu

re
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 
m

a
k
in

g
.

T
h

e
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

s
o
u
n
d
 v

fm
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

m
a

k
e
s
 f
o

r 
le

s
s
 

ro
b

u
s
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
. 

N
o

n
e

 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/

 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

D
e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

9

126



Appendix 3 – Partners' response to draft report 

27   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

Appendix 3 – Partners' response 
to draft report 
1 The response to the report was received on 21 August 2009, and a summary is 

included here, not including drafting points or factual amendments.

Thank you for your draft report and the time taken by your colleagues 
and yourself in reviewing our work to develop and embed the health 
and housing agenda in Brighton and Hove. 

We very much welcome your report and feel that you have identified 
and highlighted a wide range of positive practice that encapsulates the 
change in working practices, culture and outcomes we are hoping to 
achieve.

In working towards linking health and housing we have been very 
much ahead of national guidance and good practice and it is very 
pleasing to note that we have made some significant steps in this 
direction. The issues and recommendations you have identified will 
help structure and shape our ongoing work and ultimately result in 
more effective outcomes for local people. 

2 The comments made on individual recommendations are shown below where they 
indicate the progress since our fieldwork and the approach to implementation. We 
have also noted where amendments have subsequently been made to the report text 
in response to the comments received.  

Table 1 Comments on recommendations 

Received from Council and PCT August 2009 

Recommendation Comment

1 (para 26) We have taken this on board and improved the success 
criteria in the final drafts of the Housing Strategy, Older People’s 
Housing Strategy and LGBT People’s Housing Strategy which 
are being presented to Council and the Local Strategic 
Partnership for approval in the Autumn. Our previously published 
strategies relating to Supporting People and Homelessness etc 
are already accompanied by more detailed action plans that 
translate the success criteria into SMART actions that are subject 
to ongoing review.

In respect of the lack of clear health outcomes - such as for 
example reducing suicide or mental illness this can only be stated 
as an aim as at a local level as it would be incredibly difficult to 
robustly measure reductions in suicide.

127



Appendix 3 – Partners' response to draft report 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  28

Recommendation Comment

We could look at mental health but that would involve surveys of 
residents before and after re-housing which would be tantamount 
to an experiment and not something that could be done routinely. 
Again the routine markers of mental health would not be able to 
be related to any housing intervention.

One area we are exploring where we may be able to link housing 
interventions directly to health improvements is through our single 
homeless work, and in particular tackling alcohol and substance 
misuse. However, on the whole, our review of the evidence base 
highlighted the need for further research on the impact of housing 
interventions on health outcomes. 

2 (para 29) The objectives of the Strategic Housing partnership are 
closely aligned to the Improving Housing and Affordability block 
of the Local Area Agreement and the citywide Housing Strategy. 
In addition the SHP has acted as the Project Board, overseeing 
the development of the strategy. 

(para 32) The BEST partnership recognises that good quality 
homes are important for the health and well-being of those living 
in them. The partnership is committed to improving the overall 
quality of the private sector housing stock in Brighton and Hove 
and East Sussex, to achieve our vision that every resident lives in 
a ‘warm, safe and secure home’. 

To assist our private sector housing managers and partners in 
Health in achieving a better understanding of the links between 
health and housing, we are piloting the use of the Building 
Research Establishment toolkit which demonstrates the cost 
benefits of some specifically linked housing and health issues. 

The partnership in years 2 and 3 of the programme are targeting 
funding at improving health, by improving insulation and heating 
in homes to reduce excess winter deaths, removing hazards in 
the home which will reduce hospital admissions due to falls, allow 
people to stay in their own homes and facilitate hospital 
discharge by funding disabled adaptations.

We have amended recommendation 2 and paragraphs 29 
and 32 in response to comments. 

128



Appendix 3 – Partners' response to draft report 

29   Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust 

Recommendation Comment

3 (para 31) Across the Council and PCT it has been noted that 
there is now a need to develop a structure that will maximise the 
impact of JSNAs in driving improvements in local service and 
outcomes. As a result, a JSNA Steering Group is being set up 
that is being jointly chaired by senior officers of NHS Brighton and 
Hove and Brighton and Hove City Council.  

One of the key priorities of the group will be to produce a 
summary overview of the health and wellbeing needs of the city, 
including identified health inequalities and evidence of unmet 
need which will inform strategic commissioning and planning and 
particularly the PCT Strategic Commissioning Plan. 

Housing has been invited to become a founding member of the 
new JSNA Steering Group and the lack of comment on housing 
in the NHS Brighton and Hove Strategic Commissioning Plan has 
been noted and will be discussed within NHS Brighton and Hove. 

More effective partnerships are starting to be seen such as the 
JSNAs of Working Age Mental Health, Physical Disabilities and 
accompanying Commissioning Strategies. Additionally, joint work 
on the Local Area Agreement, 2020 Community Strategy Review 
and new Healthy City Strategy will help improve the joint and 
shared approach to tackling the city’s issues. 

However, to be realistic, it will take more than six months to 
achieve this. 

4 (para 34) The potential of BHLIS has been noted and the JSNA 
Steering Group is planning to explore the use of BHLIS to host 
and present health inequality data to complement the summary 
overview document of the health and wellbeing needs of the city. 
This work will in part be supported by a new Head of Public 
Health Research and Analysis has been appointed by NHS 
Brighton and Hove who will be working closely with their City 
Council counterpart. 

The need for common performance management software across 
the Local Strategic Partnership to manage the Local Area 
Agreement has been recognised and is in the process of 
implementation. BHLIS contains the background needs data for 
the partnership with the new Interplan carrying out the 
performance management function. 

5 (para 35) As per our response to Recommendation 1. 

129



Appendix 3 – Partners' response to draft report 

Brighton and Hove City Primary Care Trust  30

Recommendation Comment

6 (para 36) Two half-day workshops for Housing and Health staff 
were held at the end of July and beginning of August. These 
brought together Public Health and Housing staff to discuss and 
agree how the recommendations from the HIA of the new 
Housing Strategy will be taken forward.

An Action Plan is being developed which will become part of the 
Housing Strategy which is currently going through its approval 
process. We have included a recommendation in the HIA around 
the possibility of commissioning a piece of work to conduct a 
health economics study. 

7 (para 38) NHS Brighton and Hove and the Local Authority 
Planning Department are developing a strategy to take forward 
future HIA work. The strategy will outline a small set of options 
including integrating HIA into the scope of Environmental 
assessment where appropriate. NHS Brighton and Hove and the 
Local Authority Planning Department are drafting best practice 
guidance for developers and planners. 

8 (para 40) As per our responses to Recommendation 1 and 
Recommendation 6. 

Across the Local Authority, Primary Care Trust and wider 
stakeholders the need to have an agreed set of priorities for the 
city aligned with clear targets for improving the health and 
wellbeing of local people has been already identified. To address 
this, the 2020 Community Strategy is being refreshed and work to 
develop a Health City Strategy has begun. The first draft of the 
refreshed Community Strategy has recently started its public 
consultation.

9 (para 43) As per our response to Recommendation 3. 

Source: PCT/CC response to draft report 

130



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for 
taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and 
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a 
language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2009 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 0844 798 1212, Fax: 0844 798 2945, Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

131



132



ITEM 73 APPENDIX 2 
 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

4.00pm 29 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Hamilton (Chairman), Watkins (Deputy Chairman), Alford, Fallon-Khan, 
Kitcat, Simpson, Smith, Taylor and G Theobald 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

30. AUDIT COMMISSION: HEALTH INEQUALITIES ASSESSMENT REPORT 
 
30.1 The Committee considered a report from the Audit Commission regarding the Health 

Inequalities Assessment Report (for copy see minute book). 
 
30.2 The District Auditor began by summarising the report and stating that the Health 

Inequalities Assessment Report had been included in the 2008/09 audit plan for the 
Primary Care Trust and Brighton & Hove City Council. The report examined partnership 
working in Brighton & Hove on health inequalities and acknowledged the work already 
being done in this area. A focus on housing issues had been chosen and the conclusion 
had been good, but it was noted that more work needed to be done on sharing priorities 
and identifying and addressing need. 

 
30.3 Councillor Watkins asked why the report had been submitted to the Audit Committee as 

an item for discussion. The Director of Finance & Resources stated that it was part of 
the Committee’s remit to take this item and the District Auditor added it was for 
information only but demonstrated part of the work the Commission was doing for the 
audit fee they charged. 

 
30.4 The Chairman asked if this item would be taken forward to the Health Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) and the District Auditor stated that this would be a matter 
for Officers to decide.  

 
30.5 Councillor Kitcat asked why more joined up working in terms of the Primary Care Trust 

making representations at Licensing Panels was not considered. The District Auditor 
stated that only one theme had been chosen for the basis of the report and this related 
to housing issues. She recognised there was still much progress to be made on further 
joint working between partners however. 

 
30.6 Councillor Watkins was concerned about how the recommendations from the report 

would be followed up and actions monitored, and the Chairman agreed, asking who 
would implement the recommendations of the report. The District Auditor stated that the 

133



 

2 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 29 SEPTEMBER 
2009 

implementation of recommendations would form part of the action plan and it was the 
responsibility of Officers to monitor this. 

 
30.7 The Chairman proposed that this item be referred to HOSC, and this was seconded by 

Councillor Watkins. 
 
30.8 RESOLVED – That: 
 

1. The Health Inequalities Assessment report is noted. 
2. The Health Inequalities Assessment report is referred to the Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee for noting and monitoring of the recommendations. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 6.30pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

134



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMISSION 
 

Agenda Item 74 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Scrutiny Panel Update 

Date of Meeting: 26 January 2010 

Report of: Director of Strategy and Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Tom Hook Tel: 29-1110 

 E-mail: Tom.hook@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1.  SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 
1.1 Section 6, paragraph 5.1 of the Council’s constitution states ‘Each Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee may appoint Ad Hoc Panels to carry out short, sharply 
focused pieces of scrutiny work’. This report provides members with a brief 
summary of the work of the scrutiny panels and select committees to date.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That the Overview and Scrutiny Commission notes the report. 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
 
3.1 During 2009 six scrutiny panel reviews were completed. The Dual Diagnosis 

study was reported to Council in December 2009 and three reports are 
scheduled to be on the agenda for the Council meeting on the 28 January, these 
are: 

• Students in the Community 

• Older People and Community Safety 

• GP-Led Health Centre 
 
3.2 The Children and Young People Alcohol Related Harm Scrutiny Report is to be 

discussed at Licensing Committee on March 4th.  
 
3.3 The Environmental Industries Scrutiny Report is set for discussion at the 

Enterprise, Employment & Major Projects Cabinet Member Meeting on the 26th 
January. 

 
3.4 Panels currently conducting reviews are listed below, along with a short update 

on their activity.  
 

• Street Access Issues (Cllr Sven Rufus) 
Evidence had been taken from a range of witnesses including business 
representatives, charities, local voluntary organisations, council officers and 
residents. Recommendations will focus on traders’ items (A boards and tables 

135



 

 

and chairs), communal and commercial bins and bicycles. The panel is looking 
to report to OSC in March.  

 

• Climate Change Adaptation (Chair Prof Gordon MacKerron) 
The panel is looking at how prepared the Council and partners are to respond 
to a changing climate. The three panel meetings held to date have focused on 
the climate data, the national and regional context and are now starting to look 
at the Council’s and partners preparedness.  
 

• 20mph (Chair Cllr Pete West) 
The panel has held a scoping meeting and will be holding a first public meeting 
on the 19th January. Terms of reference have been agreed as: 
o To gain an understanding of the collision statistics  
o To seek a range of views as to the impact of 20 mph speed limits and 20 
mph zones on road safety in terms of reducing vehicle speeds and casualty 
numbers  

o To investigate what options other local authorities across the country are 
pursuing in terms of 20 mph speed limits/zones 

o To gain an understanding of the potential environmental impacts of 20 mph 
speeds on air quality, tail pipe and carbon emissions as well as noise 

o To gain an understanding of the potential ‘other benefits’ which 20 mph 
speeds may bring, such as health benefits, increased sociability, and better 
walking and cycling conditions 

o To gain an understanding of any potential consequences of any 
displacement of traffic as a result of introducing lower speed limits 

o To gain an understanding of the speed limit review currently being 
undertaken in the city and the links with this investigation 

o To identify the benefits, feasibility and potential costs of various 20 mph 
speed options for the city 

o To develop recommendations for the future development of council policy 
on 20 mph speed limits/zones 

 

• School Exclusions (Chair Cllr Rachel Fryer) 

The panel has taken evidence from a range of witnesses including parents, 
pupils and teachers. Council officers who have given evidence include the AD 
for Learning, Schools and Skills, Senior Secondary and Specials Schools 
Advisor and Behaviour Strategy Manager. External witnesses have included 
staff from the Self Managed Learning Centre, YOT, and the learning support 
service.  

 

Site visits have been undertaken to a number of schools and support services. 
Whilst still ongoing issues raised to date are waiting times to access support 
services, increased support for schools, different levels of support offered in 
different schools and the specialist knowledge required for certain conditions 
and experiences.   

 

• Dignity at Work (Chair Cllr Gill Mitchell) 
 The panel will be meeting in early February to discuss the draft Dignity at Work 
Strategy.  

 

136



 

 

 
 
 

• Dementia Select Committee (Chair Cllr Pat Hawkes) 

The Select Committee on Dementia has now held a series of evidence 
gathering meetings and has heard from the city commissioners of mental 
health services, a range of clinicians and professional care providers, support 
services (e.g. the Alzheimer’s Society) and carers. 

 

The Committee is now considering its draft recommendations, and will shortly 
be producing a report, although it may be necessary to take some more 
evidence in the areas of general acute care (e.g. the diagnosis and support for 
dementia in general hospitals), and the city’s in-patient dementia beds (as a 
consultation on whether to keep these beds in the city is expected to 
commence imminently). 

  

• Staff Disabilities (Chair Cllr David Watkins) 

The Panel has held a scoping meeting and asked for further information on 
relevant legislation, existing council policies, performance and initiatives 
regarding disabled staff recruitment and retention. 

 

Witnesses including staff with disabilities, council officers and other 
professionals working in the area, local organisations, and others with an 
interest are being invited to public meetings on Monday 22 Feb 10am HTH CC 
and Friday 12 March 10am HTH CC. 

 

The Panel’s remit is: 

“Wishing positively to support officers in the good work already being done: 

• To ensure progress on the issues raised about staff disabilities from the 
Diversity Peer Challenge (as reported to 14 July 2009 OSC) 

• To investigate issues relating to performance under the Local Area 
Agreement 

• To investigate action take by the council to encourage people with 
disabilities to apply for a job. 

 

Noting that: Progress from the Equalities and Inclusion Action Plan is being 
monitored via the regular reports within the existing OSC work programme; 
and that the draft Single Equality Scheme is being reported to 15 December 
OSC and considered in more detail at an informal meeting on 12 January 
2010.” 

 

• Support for Victims of Sexual Violence Support Services (Chair David 
Watkins) 

 The scoping meeting for this panel was held on the 18th January. Terms of 
reference were agreed  

 

• Cultural Provision for Children (Chair tbc) 
 Scoping to start in mid-February.  

137



 

 

 
3.5 All panel papers and final reports are available on the Overview and Scrutiny 

pages of the Council’s website.  
 
 
 
4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1  There has been no consultation in relation to this report. 

 
5.  FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
  Financial Implications: 
5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.  
 
  Legal Implications: 
5.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
   
  Equalities Implications: 
5.4 A number of scrutiny panels are investigating issues that will have implications for 

how the council relates to equality issues.  
 
  Sustainability Implications: 
5.5  A number of the scrutiny panels currently ongoing will impact upon sustainability 

issues, most notably the panel on climate change adaptations.  
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
5.9  The scrutiny review into support services for victims of sexual violence will 

probably have some crime and disorder implications.  
 
 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications: 
5.10 Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a duty to ensure that the number of 

Ad Hoc Panels which it appoints does not exceed the capacity of the Member 
and Officer resources available to support their work. 

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
5.11  There are no corporate implications arising from this report.   

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
None 
 
Background Documents 
None 

138



Agenda Item 75 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission Work Plan 2009 - 2010 

 

Issue Overview & Scrutiny Activity Outcome &  
Monitoring/Dates 

2nd June 2009 

Sustainable Communities Act 
 

Information on the legislation and its relevance to O&S. 
Ad hoc panels may generate suggestions for future 
submissions.  
 

Officers to generate a bank of ideas, as 
result of OSC work, which could be 
submitted under future rounds of the 
Act. 

BME/Disabilities  
 

Report requested by Cllr Elgood on BME workforce 
statistics. 

Further report to be provided to OSC 

Recession Information 
 

Item on the Council response to the recession and its 
impact upon the City. Will be possible for OSC to 
contribute to the future development of Third Sector 
Relief Package.   
 

Draft Third Sector Recession Action 
Plan in partnership with the Community 
and Voluntary Sector Forum and the 
LSP be brought back to the Commission 
for comment and Member input prior to 
its agreement 
 

ICT Risk 
 

Referral from Audit Committee.  ICT developments to be reported back 
to the Audit Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Annual 
Report 2008 - 2009 
 

OSC is required to submit Annual report to Council. 
Committee to agree content of report.  
 

Annual report submitted to  Council 16 
July. 

OSC Work Plan 
 

To discuss/agree OSC work plan for the year.  Maintained under review. 

   

1
3
9



Issue Overview & Scrutiny Activity Outcome &  
Monitoring/Dates 

14th July 2009 

LAA Annual Performance 
Report 
 

O&S performance management; opportunity to review 
LAA targets and ask for in-depth information of areas 
of concern.  

Scrutiny Committee Chairs asked to 
review areas of off-target  performance 

Equalities Update 
 

To include Equalities Peer Review. Commission has a 
remit to scrutinise equality issues and has 6 monthly 
updates. 

Scoping report on disabilities to be 
provided to the next meeting, 8 
September 

Good Practice Budget 
Scrutiny 
 

Report on arrangements within other local authorities 
to scrutinise the budget/budget setting process. 
Members will have the opportunity to recommend 
changes to the manner in which budget scrutiny is 
undertaken within the Council. 

Seminars proposed for all O&S 
Committees with outcomes to be 
reported to  26 January OSC 

Budget Provisional turn-out 
2008/09 
 

Ongoing budget monitoring.  Maintain under review 

Work Plan and work plans of 
all O&S Committees 
 

OSC has remit to coordinate the work of all the O&S 
Committees. Chairman of each O&S Committee to 
present the work plan for 2009-10.  
 

Maintain under review 

Overview and Scrutiny and 
the Local Strategic 
Partnership 

 O&S Committees will continue to 
receive quarterly performance reports 
on the LAA.  

 
The Chair of the LSP will be invited to 
the OSC once a year to provide an 
overview of the priorities and 

1
4
0



Issue Overview & Scrutiny Activity Outcome &  
Monitoring/Dates 
achievements of the LSP.  

 
The Chairs of each of the Thematic LSP 
Groups will be invited to attend the 
relevant O&S Committee once a year.  

 
The LSP will be invited to suggest items 
for the O&S work programme including 
in-depth reviews into specific areas of 
work, and O&S Committees will be able 
to request issues for discussion by the 
LSP’. 
 
When undertaking work planning, O&S 
Committees will take into account the 
work of the relevant LSP themed groups 
and actively consult with them. This is 
especially relevant when looking to 
establish a scrutiny panel. 
 

Sustainable Community 
Strategy 
 

O&S chance to feed views into the consultation 
process in developing the Strategy. 

Member Workshop on Sustainable 
Community Strategy to be arranged  

1
4
1



 

8th September 2009 

Place Survey 
 

For information Request for information on Draft  
Volunteering Strategy 

Scoping Report on Disability To determine whether further scrutiny action is needed. Establishment of a four-member scrutiny 
panel 

Scrutiny of Budget Proposals To agree process for scrutiny of budget proposals 
2010-2011 

Process agreed; additional O&S 
meetings to be scheduled 

Strengthening Local 
Democracy 

Government Consultation ECSOSC addition to consultation 
response, to be reported at 22 
September Governance Committee 

GP-led Heath Centre – Report 
of the Scrutiny Panel  

Report approved by October HOSC, for information.  Report noted. 

OSC Work programme For monitoring Request for report on approach to 
collection of Council Tax arrears 
 

Council’s Forward Plan For monitoring Request for information on Corporate 
Procurement of Energy, decision to be 
taken at 17 September Cabinet.  
 
Query on the earlier deferral of decision 
due to ‘O&S Requirements for 
consultation’ 

 
 
 

  

1
4
2



20 October 2009 
 

Discussion with LSP 
Chairman 

Developing relationship between overview and scrutiny 
and local strategic partnership 

Commission submits comments as part 
of the consultation on the refresh of the 
sustainable community strategy 

Targeted Budget 
Management Month Four 
 

Ongoing budget monitoring Senior officers provide information on 
projected overspends and other budget 
pressures. OSC requests report on staff 
vacancy management to next meeting. 

Local Development 
Framework Core Strategy 
 

Scrutiny of Budget and Policy Framework plans and 
strategies 

Commission asks a range of  key 
questions on the Core Strategy. Section 
106 agreements with developers could 
be an area for consideration. 

Corporate Energy 
Procurement Contract  
 

Scrutiny of the re-tendering of the contract as agreed 
by Cabinet 

Consideration of energy prices, 100% 
renewable sources and measures being 
taken to improve heat efficiency in 
schools. 

Draft Volunteering Strategy 
requested by 8 Sept OSC 
 

For comment into early draft Request for further information on the 
Volunteering Strategy to a future meting 

All O&S Committee work 
plans  

For monitoring  Noted. 

Forward Plan For monitoring Concern at the proportion of deferred 
items on the Council’s Forward Plan; 
officer report requested 

O&S Good Practice  Annual programme for scrutiny panels 
agreed in principle; Cabinet Members/ 
Scrutiny Chairmen to continue meetings 
recently established; and consider how 

1
4
3



to raise resident involvement in scrutiny 
process. 
Outcome to be reported to the 
Governance Committee. 

OSC Work Programme  Priorities agreed for next scrutiny 
panels; 20mph speed limit; sexual 
violence service; and staff disabilities 
 

15 December 2009 
 

Budget Strategy 
 

Question and answer session with Central Services 
and Finance Cabinet Members and senior officers 

OSC requests information on: CYPT 
savings proposals before 5 Jan 2010 
CYPOSC; how the budget proposals 
were Equality Impact Assessed; report 
on operational vehicles to be presented 
to the Sustainability Partnership and; 
payments to consultancies and budget 
pressures brought about by staff 
sickness 
 

Targeted Budget 
Management Month Six 
 

Ongoing budget monitoring Replies to queries noted 

Council Tax Collection Policy Report as requested at 8 October 2009 OSC Officers praised for thorough process 
and report 

Staff Vacancy Management Report as requested at 20 October 2009 OSC Request that this information be 
provided annually as part of budget 
scrutiny and asks all OSCs to question 
staff vacancies as part of the current 

1
4
4



budget scrutiny. 
 

Single Equality Scheme Opportunity to comment on early draft Scheme Workshop arranged for 12 January 
2010. Six-monthly update report 
requested. 
 

Council’s Forward Plan  Report to future meeting 

 

26 January 2010 
 

Recommendations on budget 
proposals from O&S 
Committees  
 

OSC to report to 11 February Cabinet  

Third Sector Recovery Plan Pre-decision. Commenting on draft plan.  

Health Inequalities Referral 
from Audit Committee 

OSC asked to agree to refer to ASCHOSC.  

CAA –One Place Assessment Results of the CAA process. Sets context for scrutiny 
prioritisation and working with the LSP.  

 

 

1
4
5



 

16 March 2010 
 

Targeted Budget 
Management Month Nine 

Ongoing budget monitoring.  

Street Accessibility Scrutiny 
Panel Report 
 

OSC to endorse the report.  

Council’s Forward Plan Investigate proportion of items deferred or withdrawn.  

 

27 April 2010 
 

Climate Change Scrutiny 
Panel Report 
 

OSC to endorse the report.  

Section 106 agreements   

Dignity at Work scrutiny panel 
report 

OSC to endorse the report  

OS& Committee updates Each O&S Committee Chair to update OSC on their 
work-programme and key issues.  

 

1
4
6



 

8 June 2010 

Staff Disability Scrutiny panel 
report 

OSC to endorse the report.  

   

   

20 July 2010 

   

   

   

07 September 2010 

   

 

 

 

 

1
4
7



1
4
8


	Agenda
	65 Procedural Business
	66 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 15 December 2009
	69 Good Governance Report - report of the Audit Commission
	Item 69 Good Governance Report Appendix 1
	Item 69 Good Governance Report Extract from Audit Committee Appendix  2

	71 Brighton & Hove Third Sector Recovery Plan
	Item 71 third sector_recovery plan draft

	72 Comprehensive Area Assessment
	Item 72 CAA Appendix 1
	Item 72 CAA Appendix 2

	73 Managing Health Inequalities;  referral from Audit Committee
	Item 73 AuditCommissionManagingHealthInequalities App 1
	Item 73 Extract re health inequalities Audit 29 September 2009 App 2

	74 Scrutiny Panels - Update
	75 OSC Work Plan

